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Our core brands
remained strong and
the market continues
to positively respond to
our portfolio of brands,
allowing us to remain as
the No. 1 beer company
in Hong Kong.
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THE YEAR’'S HIGHLIGHTS NEEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars except number
of shares issued, shareholders and personnel)

(BRE&1ThE - BERBA RE T AR
SMILAERETIR)

2013 2012

—E—-=fF —E——4F

(restated)

(B&7)

Turnover ($'000) g8 (o) 687,093 686,362

Profit for the year ($'000) FEAEF (Fr) 25,824 226,976

Profit per share - Basic (cents) FRRAF) — A (L) 7 64

Taxes paid, including beer tax ($'000) THIREE AT (FT) 19,614 26,683

Taxes paid per share (cents) FRREIE () 5 7

Fixed assets ($'000) EE&E (T7T) 635,893 654,678

Net worth ($000) FE (F7T) 543,678 511,836

Salaries, wages and other benefits ($'000) e ITERAEMBERN (F) 106,631 104,724

Number of shares issued BATIREL 373,570,560 373,570,560

Number of shareholders MRS E 2,094 2,134

Number of personnel BT AZ 587 606
[ ]



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE3R &

To our shareholders,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
registered a consolidated profit of HK$25.8 million in 2013, on the back
of moderate growth in domestic demand and the implementation of
strategic cost management strategies. Excluding the effect of the reversal
of impairment losses on our non-current assets amounting to HK$269.9
million-which pushed last year's profit to HK$227.0 million-this is a significant
turnaround from the consolidated loss of HK$42.9 million in 2012. As a result,
net profit attributable to equity shareholders for 2013 was HK$26.0 million,
compared to HK$237.7 million in the previous year.

The Group’s consolidated turnover was at HK$687.1 million, same level as last
year. Gross profit reached HK$290.3 million, with gross profit margin of 42.2%.

As of year-end, cash and cash equivalents, excluding bank loans, was at
HK$132.9 million (HK$100.9 million as of 31 December 2012). Meanwhile, total
debt as of the end of 2013 was at HK$203.6 million, 12.2% lower than the
HK$231.8 million debt reported at the end of 2012. Total net assets stood at
HK$543.7 million (HK$511.8 million as of 31 December 2012), with a debt-to-
equity ratio of 0.37 (31 December 2012: 0.45).
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DIVIDENDS

On 7 February 2014, the Board of Directors approved the declaration of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013, of HK$0.01 per share to
shareholders on record as of 7 May 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW
HONG KONG OPERATIONS

Our Hong Kong operations posted a strong profit recovery in 2013, as
operating profit considerably improved from the previous year despite
lower volumes. This significant turnaround was achieved in large part
through disengaging from unprofitable business arrangements in the trade
and rationalizing discounts and promotions spending. The price increase
implemented for all brands during the year also contributed to our profit
recovery.

The local incomes and employment levels remained stable as a result of the
3% moderate growth forecast for the Hong Kong economy. The territory’s
beer industry mirrored this growth, thus creating the right environment to
implement the needed changes for San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
(the "Company”). Our core brands remained strong and the market continues
to positively respond to our portfolio of brands, allowing us to remain as the
No. 1 beer company in Hong Kong.

In 2013, the Company also took a major step in restructuring its distribution
strategy by expanding its sales channels and creating a territory focus in
terms of sales management. With this new distribution model, we registered
quarter-on-quarter improvements in volume and revenue in 2013 and we will
build on this momentum for future growth.

Throughout 2013, we maintained our leadership position by launching
strategic programs aimed at enhancing San Miguel’s brand equity and
reinforcing its bond with customers and consumers. Early in the year, we
aired “Meta”, a product-focused television commercial that was well-received
by viewers. In July, we launched a new TVC, “Real Friends”, supported by
a marketing campaign that extended to point-of-sales visibility activities,
market-wide promotions, online communications and public relations
campaigns.

We also reinforced our brand’s strong association with some of Hong Kong's
most iconic events. Early 2013, we helped stage the San Miguel-Lan Kwai
Fong Rugby Festival, one of the biggest post-rugby parties in the city. We
were again the exclusive sponsor of the beer festival in the prestigious Hong
Kong Dragon Boat Carnival organized by the Hong Kong Tourism Board. The
San Miguel BeerFest featured beer and food booths, live performances and
games.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
HONG KONG OPERATIONS (Continued)

San Mig Light continues to gain popularity in on-premise outlets, particularly
in night outlets, where it gained market share. To extend consumer approval
among a wider market of drinkers, we launched a celebrity cross-over
campaign featuring actress-model Chrissie Chau in April, which culminated in
September with the “Fit & Firm Summer Finale”. To further push on-premise
consumption, we promoted food pairing with San Mig Light in Chinese
restaurants and staged dart competitions in various bars.

Our partner brands continue to be among our top performers in terms of
both volume and revenue. As part of our exclusive distributorship of all Kirin
beer brands within the territory, we launched Kirin Ichiban Frozen Beer, which
gained strong acceptance among our trade partners and consumers. With
a bigger and more varied portfolio of strong brands, we are confident that
we will be able to cater to, and satisfy the needs, of a growing and highly
segmented Hong Kong market.

The Company also saw double-digit sales revenue growth in Macau.

SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS

The performance of our two subsidiaries in South China continued to improve
with Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB") and San
Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited (“SMGB") registering a 36%
and 54% reduction in their losses respectively, versus the previous year. The
improvement was a result of the restructuring of our going-to-market and
distribution strategy in GSMB and growth in SMGB's export business.

The new going-to-market and distribution strategy of GSMB involved
expanding the network of dealers and wholesalers to maximize breadth and
depth in distribution of our products, and the clustering of business areas
and activities to increase efficiency. While GSMB's total volumes registered a
decline versus the previous year, the company was able to reap the benefits
of the sales and distribution restructuring implemented in 2013 with volumes
stabilizing and registering an improvement in the last quarter of the year.
Progress in GSMB's expansion areas likewise continued to end the year with
a positive growth versus last year.

To enhance the overall brand image of San Miguel Pale Pilsen, a new
packaging design was launched for its canned variants. At the same time,
the Group launched the 500ml can to increase both distribution and
consumption. A new series of thematic print ads under the slogan “Just
Between Friends” were also introduced to sustain brand familiarity in the
market. A new program designed to raise visibility for the brand with the
theme "“Life, Best Served Light” was also launched for San Mig Light. A series
of channel-based promotions in Chinese restaurants and night outlets
provided on-premise support for the campaign.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS (Continued)

Similarly, a revamp of the packaging of Dragon brand variants was introduced
to create a more cohesive look while at the same time responding to the
challenges of market segmentation. The new packaging underscores the long
history and association of the brand with the district of Shunde. To strengthen
the Group's position in the premium segment of the beer market in South
China, we expanded our brand portfolio and launched a made-in-Hong Kong
Red Horse beer in June.

With the restructuring in 2011, SMGB was able to focus on its tolling business
and to provide not only quality products, but also quality services to GSMB
and San Miguel Brewing International’s export markets. In 2013, SMGB's total
export volume increased 52% over the same period in 2012,

Much work has been done in our South China operations to provide the
Group with the springboard for more profitable volume in the long term.
We will continue to persevere as we gradually reap the benefits of these
initiatives. A calculated approach of balancing sales and profitability will
continue to guide our operations as we move forward in 2014.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Our Company continues to endeavor not just to be commercially successful,
but also to be socially responsible in the way we do business. We are
committed to foster goodwill and work closely with our local communities to
ensure a harmonious co-existence.

We are also committed to actively promote responsible drinking not only
within the organization, but also with our stakeholders. We continue to
sponsor and participate in various local events and contribute to charitable
and non-profit organizations.

The Company is also committed to protecting the environment where it

operates, ensuring that various environmental standards set by government
are consistently met or exceeded.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company has always recognized the role the workforce plays in its
overall success, and as such, we invest in our people by ensuring that they
are equipped with the necessary knowledge, skills and experiences. We
believe in investing resources in training, seminars, mentorship, and team-
building workshops, to develop our employees, support their professional
growth, and foster harmony in the organization.

We offer competitive remuneration packages commensurate with industry
standards as well as provide attractive benefits, including medical and
insurance coverage and retirement packages.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company continued to apply the principles of the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year, with the except of Code Provision A.4.1,
which states that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. At present, all of the non-executive directors
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and re-election at the
Annual General Meeting under the Company's Articles of Association.

FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES

The following are the objectives of the Company for the year 2014:

o In Hong Kong, we will ensure that the initiatives we have put in place
will generate greater profitability and increase our share of the market.
We will invest further in enhancing the brand pull of our key brands and
continue to implement cost-containment measures.

o In South China, we intend to turn the business around by growing the
yield and coverage of new dealers in our core markets. The clustering
initiative in selling will also be replicated in other major markets to
maximize efficiencies. At the same time, we will strengthen the brand
equity of the San Miguel and Dragon brands. We will likewise continue
to seek new areas of growth in our export business and aim to improve
margins and rationalize costs.

Looking ahead, the Company is confident that we have put in place a solid
foundation that will enable us to accelerate our progress and take full
advantage of the growth opportunities in the markets we are in. We wish to
reiterate our full commitment to maximize shareholder value and to ensure
our beer brands are ever more relevant to our customers and consumers,
regardless the occasion, their location and lifestyle. Besides growth strategies
in sales and marketing, we also have various new systems and procedures
in place to facilitate efficient and effective cost management in all aspects of
the operations.
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FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES (Continued)

In closing, we wish to express our heartfelt gratitude to our Board of
Directors for their unwavering guidance and support; our employees for their
dedication and hard work, and most of all, to our shareholders, customers
and consumers for their continued patronage.

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

7 February 2014
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS EE= &

To be presented at the Fifty-first Annual General Meeting of shareholders to
be held at Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hong Kong, Two Pacific
Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong on 25 April 2014 at 3:00 p.m.

The directors submit herewith their Annual Report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the "Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu
Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and distribution
of bottled, canned and draught beers. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

The segment analysis of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the financial year is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable to
the major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the year is as follows:

HHREBNR -_T-OFOA-_+HATF=FIE
REEZETREREALHES _HESEREN
RBEREEEBRBTZERL T —ERRAEAFAK

g LHRR -

EXEeo NBHASBRRREZEBRE_T—=
TA=t—BLFEZFHRIEEZMERE -

FEERME

ERENEERAR AR ([ARF) 2—HRE
BEMRZNRR - M ERENEBEEMNE
RBEEHDBNERRIRE —+ ) \SREHSES
Nig -

FERY

ARBZEBEB AR E RO B - B2 NI
I - SHBARZ EBEKREMMEAEHN
B RS HRFIFE 15 ©

BERAMBEREARRNEMEAR ([RNEHE])
ZEERIAHMT - BREATE IR MIFES o

FEERRUER
U TR AAT R E BE P REEE S Bl A%
B 5Kt KRR 2 AR

Percentage of the Group’s total

hAEEE
The largest customer BAEF 20.03%
Five largest customers in aggregate BRREFAE 43.34%
The largest supplier AW IER 6.93%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate BRARMHEEER 27.02%

One of the five largest suppliers and one of the five largest customers was
San Miguel Corporation (“SMC”) and its associates (collectively the “San
Miguel Group”) in which Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba,
Mr. Ramon G. Torralba, Mr. Teruyuki Daino, Mr. Roberto N. Huang, Mr. Taro
Matsunaga, Mr. Takeshi Wada, Mr. Shobu Nishitani™, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and
Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago have beneficial interests to the extent that they have
equity interests in and/or are/were directors and/or officers of the San Miguel
Group.

14

ENBAR ([EHEAF]) REBE AR (4
WIENER]) s AEEELEAARFE
Rz —e Hebh o ZREEE GIEELRE I
EHLE  REBEXA4E mERLE KK
BB %5 4 - Takeshi Wada st 4 ~ FEA MR LA
Reynato S. Puno ft £ M S ERHEE £ 5%
BoBEr B/ CAEEER UEFAE
EEFE



EBENEEBERAT —B—=ZFFH

REPORT OF DIRECTORS EE= &

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates, or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers or suppliers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out on pages
62 t0 141 of the financial statements.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders of HK$26,010,000 (2012: HK$237,655,000)
has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DIVIDENDS

On 7 February 2014, the directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.01 per share to shareholders of record on 7 May 2014.

CHARITABLE AND OTHER DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$NIl (2012: HK$NIl).

FIXED ASSETS

The Group acquired fixed assets in the amount of HK$4,940,000 (2012:
HK$11,731,000) during the year. Details of these acquisitions and other
movements in fixed assets are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 26(c) to the
financial statements. There were no movements during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report are set out
on page 2 of the Annual Report.

With the exception of Mr. Ramon G. Torralba and Mr. Takeshi Wada who were
appointed as directors on 15 January 2013 and 19 April 2013, respectively, all
of the directors served as such for the full year.

Mr. Taro Matsunaga and Mr. Peter K. Y. Tam resigned as directors on 19 April
2013 and 15 January 2013, respectively.

FEERRERER (&)
BEXHIEBREIN REE  HEZBEALSN
EABEESEFMEEARARBRABBEN ZRZ
ARARBERAAFENRBEREAZEETERF K
HpER 2 (TS o

MBHE
AEEHEE-T—=F+-_A=Z+—HILFEZ
B RANEENEBRZB Z B EGAR - #51
RETERERFE62E 1418 -

IR A G

INEEJE AR B FE (5 2271 26,010,000 7T (— T —— -
237,655,000 7T) BEE AGE - EE 2 EthE
BENGEEREEE -

ﬂa’%‘

R-ZE—ME-A+H EFEZAN TN
FRATHBIBRREMZMERRERDREET
f%0.01# 7T o

EEREMBR
REERAFEARAZEENEMBRARKT ST
(ZZT—=— TB) -

EE&EE
ANEBERREERNEE 4,940,0008 THEE EE
(ZZ—=:11,731,000/87C) - BIEEEZ2EH
FBER IS RERMIEE13

&
BREARRRAZF 1585 R ®RERM T
26(C) ° AN [E 7 PRA AT S AT (] 2B o

BEE

WAFR APSEE 2 REHNE2E -

B i 2 18 5F 4 K Takeshi Wada 5t 4 99 Bl 78 =&
—=F—A+RARZZE-=FOA+ILAEZ
EREFIN 2HETHREFRIESHY -

AR EERBRREED N T —=FMN
ATNBE-Z—=F—-A+hBBEEER% -
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. the Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr.
Carmelo L. Santiago retire by rotation in accordance with Article 105 of the
Company’s Articles of Association at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors were appointed as directors after the last Annual
General Meeting and retire from the offices of director in accordance with
Article 96 of the Company’s Articles of Association, and offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

The directors of the Company as of 31 December 2013 had the following
personal interests in the shares of the Company, its holding companies,
subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) at that date as recorded in the
register of directors’ interests required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO:

(1)  INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES

BTE (B

TEEELT REFLLE - Reynato S. Puno e 4
N £V RIE AR B A EZE 105168
T REERTZBRAFAT FAREERE
LT o

TEEEN E—RABREAFAREREZERES
MAKIEA R RABERE 96 IRIRTE - RENEETT
ZBEREFAG LBRBIE -

RREERREAFA S LBEEEI ESTYEMR
AR RS E AR B A B ZRET AN R A S A AP
BRBANER—FAKRILEMMELEEE (—&RE
FERERRIN) ZBRIBAH -

EFEZHED

B(EHFLRPEED) B352GRN ERTESE
mEnMEsEkmE R —=F+A=+—
BZARREZTRNEARKAARR - HEEAQ
A B AR REMBEAR (EER (EH L
BIEFI)) BETRAZBERERINT

(1) EBBITRARzER

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.50 each in the Company
AARBREE
Bl0S0 Tz ERRZKRAEHE

David K. P Li EHE

500,000 0.13%

Number of common shares in
1 Philippine peso each in
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.
EREE1FEERE
LZERZROEE

Ramon S. Ang £

72,912,281%** 21.78%

**x No. of shares in Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. (“Top Frontier”) held as direct ownership: 75,887 shares
7 Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. ([Top Frontier ]) B8 25 &8 : 75,887 i%

No. of shares in Top Frontier held as indirect ownership: 72,836,394 shares

7 Top Frontier M#EIFH ZIRMNEE : 72,836,394 %
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (Continued)

(1)  INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued)

Ramon S. Ang

Carlos Antonio M. Berba
Roberto N. Huang
Reynato S. Puno
Carmelo L. Santiago
Ramon G. Torralba

FEEX
SR

Reynato S. Puno
i)
fHEE

**x* No. of shares in SMC held as direct ownership: 757,873 shares
RENBRRIEERFE 2RNODEE « 757,873 K%
No. of shares in SMC held as indirect ownership: 233,483,623 shares
RAENBARIEERE 2 RNHEE : 233,483,623 1%

Ramon S. Ang

Carlos Antonio M. Berba
Teruyuki Daino

Roberto N. Huang
Shobu Nishitani™
Carmelo L. Santiago

*includes corporate interest
R 2R YN o

FEX
SR
REFMRRE
"2ER
M=

BBzl w)
(1) EBRITRARZEDS (3)

Number of common shares in
5 Philippine pesos each in
San Miguel Corporation

*HBATREREABESFRERE
ZEBRRBROEE

Number of % of total
CHETCEE issued shares
HERITREG
EREA FCY A= e
234,241,496%*** 6.801447%
3,645 0.000106%
30,397 0.000883%
5,000 0.000145%
5,000 0.000145%
2,600 0.000075%

Number of common shares in
1 Philippine peso each in
San Miguel Brewery Inc.
ENBERARNSREE1FEEERE

ZEBRZBRHEE
Number of % of total
shares held* issued shares
HERITRAG
EREE HEEDLE
5,000 0.000033%
5,000 0.000033%
5,000 0.000033%
5,000 0.000033%
5,000 0.000033%
5,000 0.000033%
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (Continued) ERZziEg @
(2) INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (2) RERERGDZERE
Certain directors of the Company have been granted stock options ARRAETESRBENB LR 2 BRE
to subscribe for common shares in SMC under SMC's stock option STEEREREAREE HBE AR SR
scheme. Particulars of stock options in SMC held by directors during ERED - RFREN=—ZE—=F+=A
the year and as at 31 December 2013 are as follows: —+—HBREFHEENB R 2 BRE
BT -

Stock options in San Miguel Corporation
EHBLARZBRE
Number Number
of options of options Number Number of
outstanding granted/ of options options
Exercise at the (exercised) lapsed outstanding
Date Exercise price per beginning during during atthe end
granted period up to option of the year the year the year of the year
(Philippine pesos)
EriL/
FRREATRE (Bff) FREAN  FERHRGR
SRAEE  ZEREHE  ZRREHE  ZEREHE  ZEREHE
(FeEfZ)

Common (par value L&

of 5 Philippine (BRAEES
pesos each): FEERZ)
Ramon S.Ang BEY 10/11/2005 10112013 65.00 204,654 — (204,654) —
10/11/2005 101172013 89.50 136436 - (136,436) -
01/03/2007 01/03/2015 6350 993,336 - - 993,386
01/03/2007 01/03/2015 7550 662,258 - - 662,258
26/06/2008 26/06/2016 4050 765,603 - - 765,603
25/06/2009 25/06/2017 58.05 587 556 - — 537 556
Carlos Antonio JER 16/12/2010 16/12/2018 12033 11,55 - - 415%
M. Berba
Roberto N. Huang B8R 16/12/2010 16/12/2018 12033 50,793 — - 50,793
Ramaon G, Torralba H#EE 16/12/2010 16/12/2018 12033 8991 - - 8991
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (Continued)

(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All interests in the share and underlying shares of the Company, its
holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors of the Company or any
of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as adopted by the Company.

EREzHR (8
(2) REERDzER (&)

ARTA) - BHERRE - B AR N HE
ERR ARG KA s BT

A

= oo

B EXArsn - ARE - BERAE - M
J& 1 RISk EL B 82 N R AN AR A ] 5 P
NI ELHFARREREEARA R H
NR)Z AR S ERERE o

RIBARETNZ (B LGP 5 352 1%
MRFzERM  HRE LT RRERE
TRHFXHRETRIPIANEARRF] 2
8 B EXFRIERSN  BREE - HECB
HIBBRU N2 FRAEHERAARE - 3
HEEMEZERAR - B ARSHEMBHER
AlZBn - MERARR () M EHERE 2 # e Mok

AN

=
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES TERFTNEMRIEBKBGZIES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES
The Company has been notified of the following interests in the Company's RZ-ZZT—=F+=-A=+—0 ' XA T EE 5

issued shares at 31 December 2013 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary {5 A A2 31T E@EALZ 5% s A _E B ARA 72 3
shares in issue: TR RERS -

Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each
FREEE0.50 T2 EEKRKRG

Number of
ordinary % of total
Substantial shareholders shares held issued shares
HERTRG
FERR FrsEBERER BYzEDLE
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.

(note 1) (MHEE1) 245,720,800 65.78%
San Miguel Corporation (note 1) AT (BRE) 245,720,800 65.78%
Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (note 1) Rk 't (EE1) 245,720,800 65.78%
San Miguel Brewery Inc. (note 1) ENREm AR (FEE1) 245,720,800 65.78%
San Miguel Brewing International Limited HENERRERERAR (HEE1)

(note 1) 245,720,800 65.78%
Neptunia Corporation Limited (note 1) AR AR (HEE) 245,720,800 65.78%
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (note 2) RIEZE (58) BRAR (ME2) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company

(note 2) (as trustee of Limited (B3t 2) (1E&

The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust) The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust

ZIEFEN) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp

(note 2) (as trustee of another Limited (FtzE2) (1E&

discretionary trust) S—RREEFZETEAN) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited  Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation

(note 2) (as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Limited (Fi5E2) (1E/

Unity Discretionary Trust) The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary

Trust Z157EA) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing (note 2) e (MizE2) 23,703,000 6.34%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

Q)

Top Frontier, the ultimate parent company, SMC, (a subsidiary of Top Frontier),
Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (“Kirin”) (a principal shareholder of San Miguel
Brewery Inc. ("SMB")), SMB, and San Miguel Brewing International Limited
("SMBIL") are all deemed to hold the above disclosed interest indirectly through
Neptunia Corporation Limited (“Neptunia”) in the Company because each of
Top Frontier, SMC and Kirin holds more than one third of the voting power
of SMB. SMB has a controlling interest in SMBIL and SMBIL has a controlling
interest in Neptunia.

Mr. Li Ka-Shing is the settlor of each of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary
Trust (“DT1") and another discretionary trust (“DT2"). Each of Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT1”, which is the trustee of DT1) and Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2", which is the trustee of DT2) holds units
in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust (“UT1") but is not entitled to any interest or share
in any particular property comprising the trust assets of the said unit trusts.
The discretionary beneficiaries of each of DT1 and DT2 are, inter alia, Mr. Li Tzar
Kuoi, Victor, his wife and children, and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard. Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Company Limited (“TUT1") as trustee of UT1, together with certain
companies which TUT1 as trustee of UT1 is entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at their general meetings,
hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of Cheung Kong (Holdings)
Limited (“CKH"). CKH is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third
or more of the voting power at the general meetings of Conroy Assets Limited
and Hamstar Profits Limited.

The entire issued share capital of each of TUT1, TDT1 and TDT2 are owned by
Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“Unity Holdco"). Mr. Li Ka-Shing and Mr. Li
Tzar Kuoi, Victor are respectively interested in one-third and two-third of the
entire issued share capital of Unity Holdco. TUT1 is interested in the shares
of CKH by reason only of its obligation and power to hold interests in those
shares in its ordinary course of business as trustee and, when performing
its function as trustee, exercises its power to hold interests in the shares of
CKH independently without any reference to Unity Holdco or any of Mr. Li Ka-
Shing and Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor as a holder of the shares of Unity Holdco as
aforesaid.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Li Ka-Shing (being the settlor and may being
regarded as a founder of each of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the SFO),
TUT1,TDT1, TDT2, and CKH is deemed to be interested in the 23,703,000 shares
of the Company of which 13,624,600 shares are held by Conroy Assets Limited
and 10,078,400 shares are held by Hamstar Profits Limited.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company.

[ ]
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 June 1963, Neptunia provides technical
and advisory services to the Company and may be paid a General Managers'
commission. Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr. Ramon G.
Torralba, Mr. Teruyuki Daino, Mr. Roberto N. Huang, Mr. Taro Matsunaga, Mr.
Takeshi Wada, Mr. Shobu Nishitani”™, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L.
Santiago are interested parties to this contract to the extent that they have
equity interests in and/or are/were directors and/or officers of SMB, SMBIL,
SMC and Top Frontier, the ultimate holding company of Neptunia. General
Managers' commission has not been paid by the Company or charged by
Neptunia since the 1995 financial year.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated corporations
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1) TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

Purchase from/sale to the San Miguel Group

In order to comply with the Listing Rules, the Company entered
into an agreement with SMC on 15 October 2010 (the "Agreement”)
with a view to renewing the agreement to carry out the trade-
related continuing connected transactions from 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2013 under the same terms and conditions as those
under the agreement entered into by SMC and the Company dated
6 December 2007 and 11 May 2009 in respect of such trade-related
continuing connected transactions.

The Agreement, including the trade-related continuing connected
transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was approved by
independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company held on 26 November 2010.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

il
iy

REX S (8

Q)]

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
(Continued)

Purchase from/sale to the San Miguel Group (Continued)

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 8 March 2013,
an amendment agreement dated 7 March 2013 (the “Amendment
Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and SMC
to amend the Agreement by revising the existing sales cap for the
beverage sales for the year ended 31 December 2013 to the revised
sales cap of HK$181 million. Save for the revision of the existing sales
cap to the revised sales cap, all other terms and conditions under the
Agreement remain the same. The Amendment Agreement, including
the revised sales cap, was approved by independent shareholders at
the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 19 April
2013.

Pursuant to the Agreement as amended by the Amendment
Agreement, the Group entered into the following trade-related
continuing connected transactions during the year.

(1

BEEHEEESABNSERERS

(&)

RBE HETFENES (B)

WMESMR-ZT—=F=AN\BZARAR
s ARRIEENERRRIE S
RITF-=F=RAtBzETHH (&
Azl BRI RBWE BRE-F
— =T A=t RLEFEZRREE
ZHAHE LRETAZRETHE LR
181,000,000757C ° BRERIRBIHE LR A
RRIERTHE LIRS - RABBRZ B EAM
BN R G M A T o (BRT R (B
ERTHE LR) ERZT—=FMA+AI
B R IR Bl A& A B AR
BUAE

RAFER  REBERBEHHESETUT
HEZHANRKERERS

2013 2013
—EB-=F —E-=fF
Actual Cap
B PR
continuing connected transactions BEBEXS HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Purchase of packaging materials by AEEREHEBEEREMR
the Group from the San Miguel Group 22,289 61,000
Purchase of packaged beer by the Group AEERENEEREE BEER
from the San Miguel Group 4,825 5,700
Sales of packaged beer and non-alcoholic AEERMENEEFEEEREEE
beverage products by the Group NIEEERERER
to the San Miguel Group, provided ZEMTRENIFREHE
that such sales or distribution of (8 B A B S EBRIN)
packaged beer shall not be carried
out in the Philippines, unless through
SMB 137,605 181,000
——
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(1

26

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
(Continued)

Purchase from/sale to the San Miguel Group (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused them
to believe that the foregoing trade-related continuing connected
transactions as set out in the Agreement in the 2013 financial year
(i) had not been approved by the Board of the Company, (i) were not
entered into in all material respects in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transactions, (iii) had exceeded the cap
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18 October
2010 and 8 March 2013 and in the circular to shareholders dated 8
November 2010 and 28 March 2013, and (iv) were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB") is an
equity joint venture formed between San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited
("SMG") and Guangzhou Brewery (“GB") and is held as to 70% by
SMG and as to 30% by GB. SMG is a 92.989%-owned subsidiary of the
Company and GB is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of its substantial shareholding in GSMB. To facilitate the business
operations of GSMB, San Miguel International Limited (“SMIL") (a
member of the San Miguel Group) and GB have each granted GSMB
a licence to use their respective trademarks upon establishment of
GSMB pursuant to the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement, respectively.

Apart from the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Group
has also entered into other licence agreements with certain other
members of the San Miguel Group: (i) the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement entered into between the Company and Neptunia (an
indirect subsidiary of SMC) and (ii) the SMBIL Sub-licence Agreement
entered into between SMGB and SMBIL (an indirect subsidiary of
SMC).

The directors (including the non-executive directors) considered that
the terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Neptunia
Sub-license Agreement, the SMBIL Sub-license Agreement (collectively,
the “San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements”) and the GB Trademark
Licensing Agreement, including their respective tenures which are
for more than three years, are on normal commercial terms, fair
and reasonable, and that the transactions contemplated under such
agreements are in the interests of the Company and the shareholders
as awhole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The transactions under the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements
(which have been aggregated as a single transaction for purposes
of the Listing Rules) and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34(1)
of the Listing Rules. The annual royalties payable by the Group under
each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement shall be less than HK$10 million
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and each of the financial
years during the remaining term of the relevant licence/sub-licence
agreements. Based on this proposed cap, the transactions under
each of the (i) San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the GB
Trademark Licensing Agreement are only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’” approval requirement.

An announcement was made by the Company on 19 September 2007
in this respect.

In relation to the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the
Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement, as per the payment instructions of
SMC dated 18 December 2000, all royalties receivable from GSMB and
the Company have been assigned and transferred to SMBIL effective
1 January 2000 until further notice.

On 1 April 2010, a Deed of Assignment was entered into between
SMIL, SMBIL and GSMB pursuant to which SMIL agreed to assign,
transfer and convey in favour of SMBIL all of SMIL's rights, title and
interest over the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. Both SMBIL
and GSMB consented to such assignment pursuant to the Deed of
Assignment.

After the assignment, SMBIL became the licensor of the trademarks
licensed to GSMB under the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. All
other terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned
to SMBIL remain unchanged. The transaction contemplated under the
SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned to SMBIL continues
to constitute a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules.

An announcement was made by the Company on 1 April 2010 in this
respect.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The amount of royalties paid to GB and the San Miguel Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013 were HK$2,129,000 and HK$129,000
respectively (2012: HK$2,089,000 and HK$147,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders and as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused them
to believe that the Continuing Connected Transactions in the 2013
financial year (i) had not been approved by the Board of the Company,
(i) were not entered into in all material respects in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing such transactions, (iii) had
exceeded the cap disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 19 September 2007, and (iv) were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement on 1 January 2014, an Extension Letter was signed by
Neptunia and by the Company on 5 November 2013 to extend the
term of the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement for one year from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2014 at nil consideration. Save for such
extension, all other terms of the Neptunia Sub-license Agreement
remain unchanged. An announcement was made by the Company on
5 November 2013 in this respect.
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We were again the
exclusive sponsor of
the beer festival in the
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(3)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP RELATING TO THE USE OF
PIPELINE

SMGB is principally engaged in the production and sale of beer
products in the PRC and has its brewery facilities located at
Shunde District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. San
Miguel (Guangdong) Foods and Beverages Co., Ltd. (“SMGFB"), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of SMC, is principally engaged
in the production and marketing of non-alcoholic beverages and
has its production facilities located at Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC, near the brewing facilities of SMGB.

SMGB uses its waste water discharge pipeline (the “Pipeline”) from its
production facilities to discharge waste water and has connected the
Pipeline to the waste water pipeline system of the Longjiang waste
water treatment plant for waste water treatment. As the production
facilities of SMGFB are also close to the SMGB's facilities, SMGB
has agreed to allow SMGFB to use the Pipeline for the discharge
of SMGFB's production waste water to the Longjiang waste water
treatment plant for waste water treatment.

On 26 November 2009, SMGB and SMGFB entered into an agreement
(the "Agreement to Use Pipeline”) pursuant to which SMGB agreed
to grant SMGFB a non-exclusive right to use the Pipeline for the
discharge of waste water from SMGFB's production facilities to
Longjiang waste water treatment plant for waste water treatment, for
a term of three years from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012.

During the term of the Agreement to Use Pipeline, SMGFB shall pay
SMGB a fee in an aggregate sum of RMB7,800,000, the amount of
which is payable quarterly for three years (i.e. RMB650,000 per quarter
X 12 instalments).

The fees under the Agreement to Use Pipeline are agreed between
SMGB and SMGFB after arm’s length negotiation mainly with reference
to (i) the construction and maintenance costs of the Pipeline and the
estimated volume of waste water to be discharged by the production
facilities of SMGFB to the Pipeline (the volume of which are estimated
based on the production volume of SMGFB) which shall not have any
material impact on the repair and maintenance costs of the Pipeline
that may be incurred by SMGB, and (i) the term of the Agreement to
Use Pipeline of three years.

BEREH ()

(3)

BEEHEEABREREEZHERE
X5

ENEREENFENEEEREERR
Em URPEEREHLTIEEEES
AR - ENR AR ZHEZENBA
AEN (BR) BmSKBERAE ([4£h
BREM]) FERELEEREHIEOR
M MR EERE L TIBE R
BHEERE UEMLENER CBRR
B ©

EHEREREE ([BE]) FRELE
Rt BEK - WEREBERXERITHES
KRR BB BRFETREKERE
HRENERR R EEREIBIES
BRZE®  ENERABEFENER
B EREBRENERRMZEERE
IKBERRE BE 0T $R)5 7K B TR R 1T R K BE
L

R-ZTZNAF+—A-+ B £HER
EENERBRME UG ((EREER
FD Bl A NWERREAEFENER
RmIEBEFEREEE  WBENERR
oh 2 EEREKBER E )T $H)5 /K R 1B R
TEEKEE - BEBARB-_ZE—ZF—H
—BE-_ZET——F+_-_A=+—HItAH
=4

RzEREBHEHRA  £HEREHR
AT NER A AR 7,800,000
FIE - ZFORAN = FERERE A (B
BE AR 650,000 X 12 RD B AT)

EREBHERE BRI AL NERE
ENERRMTIESE()EBZEERR
ERARENEREMZEERBAEE
BERz fhEt Bk E (FTEERZ BEKERIE
ENERRBZEEER) X TE8H4:
NERAGELEZEEREMREERB
RAEAIEAFE - () ZEREERZ
=FHRRE - BRTFRERWE

31



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2013

REPORT OF DIRECTORS EE= &

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(3)

(4)

32

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP RELATING TO THE USE OF
PIPELINE (Continued)

The directors have taken into account the capacity that the Pipeline
can accommodate and the estimated volume of waste water to be
discharged by SMGFB through the Pipeline (with reference to the
production volume of SMGFB) and consider that SMGFB's use of the
Pipeline to discharge SMGFB's production waste water is not expected
to result in any significant increase in the costs of the Group (i.e. the
repair and maintenance costs of the Pipeline which may be incurred
by SMGB) and is not expected to adversely affect the discharge of
SMGB'’s own waste water from its facilities through the Pipeline. On
the other hand, the transactions under the Agreement to Use Pipeline
shall generate additional income and cash flow to the Group.

Transactions contemplated under the Agreement to Use Pipeline
constitute Continuing Connected Transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Based on the consideration,
as the applicable percentage ratios for the Continuing Connected
Transactions on an annual basis are more than 0.1% but are less than
2.5% and the annual consideration shall be less than HK$10 million
for each of the three years ended 31 December 2013, the Continuing
Connected Transactions shall only be subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules but shall be exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules.

An announcement was made by the Company on 9 December 2009
in this respect.

The amount of fee received from SMGFB for the year ended
31 December 2013 was HK$Nil (2012: HK$3,099,000).

OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE
SAN MIGUEL GROUP

The Group purchased brewing materials from the San Miguel Group
during the year, which amounted to HK$184,000 (2012: HK$75,000).
The Group also sold raw materials to fellow subsidiary during the year,
which amounted to HK$289,000 (2012: HKS$Nil). These transactions
are exempt from all the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements according to Chapter 14A.31(2)
of the Listing Rules (De minimis transactions).
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We continue to sponsor
and participate in
various local events

and contribute to
charitable and
non-profit organizations.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong have sponsored a non-
contributory defined benefit scheme, The San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong
Limited Retirement Fund (the "Fund”), which covers local permanent
employees, and was registered in September 1995 under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The Fund'’s assets are held in trust and
administered by a trustee. The members’ benefits are determined based on
the employees’ final remuneration and length of service. Contributions to the
Fund are made in accordance with the recommendations of independent
actuaries who value the retirement scheme at regular intervals, usually
triennially.

The Fund was granted exemption from the Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") regulations by the MPF Scheme Authority on 24 July 2000, following
modifications to the Fund benefits which comply with MPF regulations.

The latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was carried out as at 1 January
2014 and the results were as follows:

Q) The actuary of the Fund is Mr. J. Yip, Fellow of the Society of Actuaries.
In the actuarial valuation, the attained age method was used. Other
major assumptions used in the valuation were: investment return of 4%
per annum; long-term salary escalation of 5% per annum; mortality
rates under the 2011 Hong Kong Life Tables, normal retirement age of
60 years; and early retirement rates allowed between the ages 55 to
60 years.

2) The unaudited market value of the Fund assets was HK$71,953,000 as
at 1 January 2014.

(3) The minimum level of funding as recommended by the actuary of the
Fund was 17.8% of salary for 2014, 2015 and 2016.

(4) The solvency surplus was HK$552,000, i.e. the obligation under the
Fund was 101% covered by the Fund’s assets, at 1 January 2014.

Particulars of the employee retirement plans of the Company and the Group
are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's working capital at 31 December 2013 was net current assets of
HK$114,032,000 compared with HK$34,953,000 as at 31 December 2012.

The Group's cash and bank deposits (excluding pledged deposits) as at
31 December 2013 were HK$132,914,000 (2012: HK$100,904,000) and are
sufficient to fund working capital requirements and capital expenditure in
2014.
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BANK LOANS

The Group has short term credit facilities related to bank loan of HK$Nil (2012:
HKS$NIl) of which HK$NIl (2012: HKS$NiIl) had been utilised as at 31 December
2013.

Total borrowings at 31 December 2013 for the Company and for the Group
were HK$203,560,000 (2012: HK$231,805,000) and HK$203,560,000 (2012:
HK$231,805,000), respectively.

Particulars of bank loans of the Company and the Group as at 31 December
2013 are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 147 of the Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance section on pages 38 to 50 of the Annual
Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.
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AUDITORS % BEm

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A’ EEFEMSEBA T RS ETESEET -5
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company isto EEREER @I EEATIETAR TIZEEM 2

be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. FEFRBNERERRBAEAE LEE -
By order of the board EEEEm

& 4

Ramon S. Ang FE

Chairman 23378

Hong Kong, 7 February 2014 B/HE ZE-NF-_ALA
Mr. Shobu Nishitani has tendered his resignation as director of the Company tobe ™ FEARREACHEEARAAREE —RBIRTH 2
effective upon acceptance by the board. Mr. Takashi Hayashi was nominated to FEESBEMN% LA - Takashi Hayashi 5t £ 1%
fill in the vacated office of Mr. Shobu Nishitani at the forthcoming Annual General RENBEHARMRCETR - WHERNGRITZR
Meeting. RAFRKEHRE -
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Chrissie Chau in April,
which culminated in
September with the
"Fit & Firm Summer
Finale”.
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COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE B HMISOREBARKE

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “"Company”) is committed
to maintaining compliance with statutory and regulatory standards
and adherence to the principles of corporate governance emphasizing
transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and fairness. The
board and the senior management of the Company ensure that effective self-
regulatory practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. These include a board comprised of high calibre members, board
committees and effective internal systems and controls.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "GC Code") throughout the year ended 31 December 2013 (the
"year under review") as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), save for the deviation discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term
(Code Provision A.4.1 of the GC Code) but are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

The following sections set out the principles in the GC Code as they have
been applied by the Company, including any deviation therefrom, for the year
under review.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprised of twelve Directors (one
executive director, who is the managing director, seven non-executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors) who possess the
skills, experience and expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the
management of the business of the Group. The biographies of the directors
are set out from pages 52 to 56 of this report under the “Directors and
Management Executives” section. There is no financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship among the members of the board.

The management and control of the business of the Company is vested in its
board. It is the duty of the board to create value to the shareholders of the
Company, establish the Company’s strategic direction, set the Company’s
objectives and plan in accordance therewith, and provide leadership and
ensure availability of resources in the attainment of such objectives. The
board is bound to manage the Company in a responsible and effective
manner, and therefore every director ensures that he carries out his duty
in good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and acts in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The board and the executive management have clearly defined
responsibilities under various internal control and checks-and-balance
mechanisms. The board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive management of the Company. These responsibilities include:
implementation of the decisions of the board and organisation and direction
of the day-to-day operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the board;
preparation and monitoring of annual production plans and operating budget;
and control, supervision and monitoring of capital, technical and human
resources.

The board held four meetings during the year under review. The chief finance
officer and company secretary attended all the scheduled board meetings
to report matters arising from corporate governance, risk management,
statutory compliance, accounting and finance, and kept detailed minutes
of each meeting, which are available for all directors. At the meeting, the
directors discussed and formulated overall strategies for the Company,
monitored financial performance and discussed the annual and interim
results, as well as other significant matters. Daily operational matters are
delegated to management.

At least 14 days of notice of all board meetings was given to all directors, and
all directors were given the opportunity to include matters for discussion in
the agenda. An agenda and accompanying board papers are sent in full to all
directors at least 3 days before every board meeting.

The number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each
director during the year under review is set out in the following table. Figure
in brackets indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which
the individual was a board member or board committee member (as the case
may be).
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Scheduled
board
Note meetings
BE
HizE Ezgeld
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
David K.P.Li THE 4/(4)
Ng Wai Sun RIEH 3/4)
Carmelo L. Santiago il ae] 4/4)
Reynato S. Puno Reynato . Puno 4/(4)
Adrian M. Li ZRB 0/4)
(Alternate to David K.P Lj) (FHE7EIZE)
Executive director HiTES
Peter K. Y. Tam (Managing Director) 2R ($1/7£2%) (1 N/A
Ramon G. Torralba HER (H1EF) 2 4/4)
(Managing Director)
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ramon S. Ang (Chairman) BEY(ZE) 24
Carlos Antonio M. Berba BT 4/(4)
(Deputy Chairman) (BIxf)
Chan Wen Mee, May (Michelle) EES 2/4)
Teruyuki Daino REg= 4@
Roberto N. Huang =B 4/14)
Shobu Nishitani AAME 4/14)
Taro Matsunaga /7 N ©) 112)
Takeshi Wada Takeshi Wada @ 3/0)

Notes:

M Resigned as executive director on 15 January 2013.
) Appointed as executive director on 15 January 2013.
3 Resigned as non-executive director on 19 April 2013.

(4) Appointed as non-executive director on 19 April 2013.
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Audit Remuneration
committee

committee
meetings
FMZEE
=f

meetings
ENERE

Nomination
committee
meetings
REZEE

2/(2) 2/2) 0/(1)
1/2) 1/Q2) 1/(1)
2/2) 2/2) /1)
N/A N/A /(1)
0/2) 0/2) 1/01)
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A 2/2) N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A 1/01)
N/A 2/(2) N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
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(1) RZT—

2) i

(3) R-T—

(4 R—E—

Annual Extraordinary
General General
Meeting Meeting

RE RE
KAAE

0/ /(1)
1101 /1)
1101 11(1)
1101 11(1)
1101 11(1)
N/A N/A
111 1)
1/01) 1/(1)
1/01) 1)
0/ 0/
1101) 111
1101 /(1)
1101 /(1)
N/A N/A
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THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The chairman of the board is Mr. Ramon S. Ang. The chief executive officer (or
managing director, in the case of the Company) is Mr. Ramon G. Torralba who
was appointed as executive director and managing director of the Company
effective from 15 January 2013 after Mr. Peter K. Y. Tam, resigned as executive
director and managing director of the Company effective from 15 January
2013. The chairman'’s and the managing director’s roles are clearly defined to
ensure their independence, accountability and responsibility.

The chairman takes the lead in formulating overall strategies and policies
of the Company; ensures the effective performance by the board of its
functions, including compliance with good corporate governance practices;
and encourages and facilitates active contribution of directors in board
activities and constructive relations between executive and non-executive
directors. The chairman also ensures effective communication with
shareholders of the Company and receipt by the directors of adequate and
complete information. The role of deputy chairman is carried out by Mr.
Carlos Antonio M. Berba.

The managing director, supported by other board members and the senior
management, is responsible for managing the day-to-day business of the
Company. He is also accountable to the board for the implementation of the
Company'’s overall strategies, and coordination of overall business operations.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this report, the board consists of eleven non-executive
directors and one executive director. Four of the non-executive directors are
independent. Further details of the composition of the board can be found in
the section entitled “The Board” of this report.

All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term, but
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings. Under the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the
directors, including the non-executive directors, are subject to retirement,
rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors are expected to participate in the activities of the
board, particularly in the establishment of a selection process to ensure a
mix of competent directors and officers; adoption of a system of internal
checks and balances; scrutiny of the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of
board authority is within the powers conferred to the board under its Articles
of Association, by-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' INDEPENDENCE (Continued)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the fields of
accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and number in the
board ensure that strong independent views and judgement are brought in
the board’s deliberations and that such views and judgement carry weight in
the board’s decision-making process. Their presence and participation also
enable the board to maintain high standards of compliance in financial and
other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company and the
Company.

Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an annual
confirmation of his independence. The Company considers such directors to
be independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each director, upon reasonable request, is given access to independent
professional advice in circumstances he may deem appropriate and
necessary for the discharge of his duties to the Company, at the expense of
the Company.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company
for the year under review. The directors consider that the financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong, and reflect amounts that are based on the best
estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the board
and management with an appropriate consideration to materiality. As at 31
December 2013, the directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of
the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial reporting
are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 142 to
143.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness of these
systems.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

The board has conducted a review of the Company’s internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2013, including financial, operational and
compliance control and risk management functions and assessed the
effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews performed by the
audit committee, executive management, external advisor and internal
auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES

The board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance
functions set out below:

Q) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the board;

2 reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the GC Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

To assist the directors in the discharge of their duties, the Company provides
every newly appointed director with a comprehensive induction program on
the first occasion of his appointment, where such directors are provided with
information on the Company’s organization and business; the membership,
duties and responsibilities of the board, board committees and senior
management; corporate governance practices and procedures; and latest
financial information on the operations of the Company. Such information
shall be supplemented with visits to the Company’s key plant sites and
meetings with key senior executives.

Throughout their tenure, the directors shall be provided with updates on the
business of the Company, latest developments of the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, corporate social responsibility
matters and other changes affecting the Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the GC Code A.6.5, all directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.
The Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of the directors.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (Continued)

The directors confirm that they have complied with the GC Code on
directors’ training. The Company had received from each of the directors the
confirmations on taking continuous professional training.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the audit committee is composed of three
independent non-executive directors: Mr. Ng Wai Sun, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago
and Dr. the Hon. Sir David K. P Li, who acts as chairman of the committee.
The audit committee met two times in 2013 with full minutes kept by the
company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member at
these meetings is shown in the table presented above.

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee shall assist the board in
fulfilling its corporate governance and oversight responsibilities in relation
to financial reporting, internal control structure, risk management systems
and internal and external audit functions. The audit committee is further
authorised by the board to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference, and is tasked with recommending to the board appropriate actions
emanating from such investigations. The audit committee has unrestricted
access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk assessment
and assurance and senior management, as may be appropriate in the
discharge of its functions.

In 2013, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by:

(1) making recommendations to the board on the reappointment of
the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

2 monitoring the external auditor's independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard, and discussing with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

(3) implementing the Company's policy on the engagement of an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

(4) reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual and interim reports and the
auditors’ report to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Company’s financial position;

(5) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems to ensure that management has discharged its
duty to have an effective internal control system;

(6) coordinating with the internal auditors from SMC to ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company;
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

(7) reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(8) reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material queries
raised by the external auditor to the management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and the
management’s response to such queries; and

9) reporting to the board on the matters set out in the GC Code on the
audit committee.

The audit committee is authorised by the board to obtain external legal or
other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers necessary
in the performance of its functions. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The audit
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the total fee in respect of audit and non-audit
services (mainly tax review and corporate governance review) provided to the
Company and its subsidiaries by external auditors amounted to HK$3,493,000
(2012: HK$3,657,000) and HKS$NIl (2012: HK$86,000), respectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee is composed of three independent non-
executive directors, namely, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun and
Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago and two non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Carlos
Antonio M. Berba and Mr. Roberto N. Huang. The remuneration committee
is chaired by an independent non-executive director, Mr. Ng Wai Sun. The
remuneration committee met twice in 2013 with full minutes kept by the
company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member at
these meetings is shown in the table presented above.

The primary role of the remuneration committee under its terms of reference
is to support and advise the board in fulfilling the board’s responsibility to the
shareholders of the Company to:

(1 establish coherent remuneration policies and practices that will be
observed and enable the Company to attract and retain top calibre
executives and directors,

2 fairly and responsibly reward executives based on their performance
and the performance of the Company, and the general pay
environment; and
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEEZET (8)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued) FMEES (B)

(3)  comply with the GC Code Provisions on remuneration of directors, (3) HAaEHEESMEEEAFABEXHE
mainly by: £ ARET
. determining executive and director remuneration policy;, . BTITHRABRESNEH N
. determining the remuneration of executive directors upon . EERFEINITESHESEEM

consultation with the chairman or managing director regarding
their proposals for such remuneration;,

o reviewing and approving the remuneration of the executives
who directly report to the managing director, and as
appropriate, other senior management; and

o reviewing and approving all equity based plans.

The remuneration committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfill its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The remuneration
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the committee reviewed the remuneration
package of Managing Director and key senior executives. As recommended,
no director fee would be paid for the year 2013.

Details of the remuneration of directors and senior management for the year
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in notes 8 and 29(c) to the financial
Statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee is composed of one non-executive director,
namely Mr. Teruyuki Daino and four independent non-executive directors:
Dr. the Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr.
Carmelo L. Santiago. The nomination committee is chaired by Mr. Carmelo L.
Santiago. The nomination committee met one time in 2013 with full minutes
kept by the company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee
member at the meeting is shown in the table presented above.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Under its terms of reference, proceedings and meetings of the committee will
be governed by the provisions of the Articles for regulating the proceedings
and meetings and of the board of the Company in so far as they are
applicable and not inconsistent with these Terms of Reference. The primary
purpose of the committee is to support and advise the board in fulfilling their
responsibilities to shareholders in ensuring that the board is comprised of
individuals who are best able to discharge the responsibilities of directors
having regard to the law and the highest standards of governance by:

RN

(1) assessing the skills required on the board;

2) from time to time assessing the extent to which the required skills are
represented on the board,;

(3) establishing the process for the review of the performance of
individual directors and the board as a whole;

(4) establishing the process for the identification of suitable candidates
for appointment to the board; and

(5) having oversight of matters relating to corporate governance by
bringing any issues to the attention of the board.

The nomination committee has the following responsibilities:

Q) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the board regarding any proposed changes;

) identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

©) assess the independence of independent non-executive directors;

(4) make recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer,

(5) have oversight of all matters relating to corporate governance; and

(6) being entitled to employ, at the Company’s expense, the services of
such advisers as it deems necessary to fulfill its responsibilities.
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The nomination committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfill its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The nomination
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

CODE OF CONDUCT ON DIRECTORS' SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities transactions and
dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) based on the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. The terms of the Code of Conduct are no less exacting than
the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct applies to all
the relevant persons as defined in the Code, including the directors of the
Company, any employee of the Company, or a director or employee of a
subsidiary or holding company of the Company who, because of such office
or employment, are likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors of the Company who have
confirmed in writing their compliance with the required standards set out in
the Code of Conduct during the year under review.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective communications
with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance such
communications, the Company provides information relating to the Company
and its business in its annual report and also disseminates such information
electronically through its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event
as it provides an opportunity for direct communications between the board
and its shareholders. All directors and senior management make an effort to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address shareholders'
queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of twenty
business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual general meeting of
the Company. The Company supports the GC Code’s principle to encourage
shareholders’ participation.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS BREIEF
CALLING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING CREREEIARE
Pursuant to article 68 of the articles of association of the Company, iRIERARIHSSIRAMEIE 681F » AR Al ZIRE
extraordinary general meetings may also be convened on requisition, as %ﬁjj:@aﬁn@yg;@igﬁ‘r B o IRIEAN BEH
provided by Section 113 of the Companies Ordinance, the shareholders of the  #1131& ' EFRZBRLEEHEHEEIAPR -+

Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-twentieth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of
the deposit may requisition an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.
The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by
the requisitionists and be deposited at the registered office of the Company.
It may also consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more requisitionists. The directors must, within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition, proceed to duly convene a meeting to be held on
a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening
the meeting is given. If the directors fail to convene the extraordinary general
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting.
Any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of the deposit of the requisition.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Shareholders holding not less than one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all
members having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting
to which the requisition relates; or not less than 50 members holding shares
in the Company on which there has been paid up an average sum, per
member, of not less than HK$2,000 may:

— put forward proposal at general meeting.

— circulate to other shareholders written statement with respect to
matter to be dealt with at general meeting.

For further details on the shareholder qualifications, and the procedures and
timeline, in connection with the above, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Section 115A of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).
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Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring director
of the Company for election as a director at a general meeting at which
elections to the office of directors are to be considered. The following
documents must be submitted to the Company no later than seven days
before the date of the general meeting: at the principal office of the Company
at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary: (a) The
Director Nomination Form with the required supporting documents; (b) The
candidate’s resume (c) A written statement signed by the candidate of his/
her willingness to be elected together with (i) that candidate’s information
as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (ii)
the candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/her personal data
and (i) confirmation that there are no grounds for his/her ineligibility and
incompatibility to act as a director and that he/she satisfies the integrity and,
if applicable, independence requirements under the applicable Listing Rules.

SENDING ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company'’s Registrar. Shareholders and the Investment community may at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Shareholders may also make enquiries
to the Board by writing to the Company Secretary at the Company'’s office
in Hong Kong at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen,
Shatin, N.T.
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DIRECTORS

Ramon S. Ang Chairman

Carlos Antonio M. Berba Deputy Chairman
Ramon G. Torralba Managing Director

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chan Wen Mee, May (Michelle)
Teruyuki Daino

Roberto N. Huang

Shobu Nishitani

Takeshi Wada

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

David K.P. Li, GBm, Jp

Ng Wai sun

Reynato S. Puno

Carmelo L. Santiago

Adrian M.K. Li, Alternate to David K.P. Li, GMm, Jp

Mr. Ramon S. ANG, B8SME, aged 60, is the Chairman and a Non-Executive
Director of the Company. He has been appointed as the Chairman since 10
June 2005 and a Non-Executive Director of the Company since 27 November
1998. He is the Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Top Frontier
Investment Holdings, Inc., the ultimate parent company of the Company (the
shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), Vice Chairman,
President and Chief Operating Officer of San Miguel Corporation (“SMC") (the
shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Chairman
of San Miguel Brewery Inc., the Vice Chairman of Ginebra San Miguel, Inc.
(the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Vice
Chairman of San Miguel Pure Foods Company, Inc. (the shares of which
are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and Chief Executive Officer of
Petron Corporation (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange), the Vice Chairman of Manila Electric Company (the shares of
which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Chairman of Liberty
Telecoms Holdings, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange), the President and Chief Operating Officer of PAL Holdings, Inc. (the
shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and Philippine
Airlines, Inc., and Chairman of Petron Malaysia Refining & Marketing Berhad
(the shares of which are listed on the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange). Mr. Ang
is also the Chairman and/or director of various subsidiaries of SMC. He holds
a Bachelor's Degree in Mechanical Engineering from Far Eastern University.
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Mr. Carlos Antonio M. BERBA, MBA, Msc, BSc, aged 49, was appointed as
Deputy Chairman and Remuneration Committee member of the Company
on 27 August 2010. Mr. Berba has been a director of the Company since 16
April 2007. He is the Managing Director of San Miguel Brewing International
Limited, a Director of Neptunia Corporation Limited (a controlling shareholder
of the Company), and a Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. He is also a
Commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Tbk (the shares of which are listed on
the Jakarta and Surabaya Stock Exchanges), a Director of San Miguel Beer
(Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Ltd., San Miguel Marketing
(Thailand) Limited, and various other subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Berba
has 28 years of experience in general management, finance, strategic
planning, and corporate structuring initiatives. Mr. Berba graduated from the
University of the Philippines with a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering.
He later obtained a Master’s degree in Business Administration (with
distinction) from the Wharton School of Business, University of Pennsylvania
and a Master’s degree in Japanese Business Studies from Japan America
Institute of Management Science & Chaminade University of Honolulu.

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, cr4, Bsc, aged 57, was appointed as Executive
Director and Managing Director of the Company with effect from 15
January 2013. Mr. Torralba was the Vice President and Manager for Export
Development of San Miguel Brewing International Limited (a subsidiary
of San Miguel Brewery Inc.) since 2007. He was also a Director of San
Miguel (Thailand) Company, Ltd. from 2006 to 2007 and Vice President and
Commercial Director of San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Ltd. from 2004
to 2007. He was also Assistant Vice President-Consultant for Guangzhou
San Miguel Brewery Co. Ltd., San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Co. Ltd. and
San Miguel (Baoding) Brewery Co. Ltd. of the Beer Division of San Miguel
Corporation from 2002-2004. Mr. Torralba graduated from Zamboanga
AE. Colleges with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Commerce, major in
Accounting. He also attended the Management Development Program at
the Asian Institute of Management (International School of Business and
Management) in the Philippines in 1991. Mr. Torralba is a Certified Public
Accountant and a member of the Philippine Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

CHAN Wen Mee, May (Michelle), aged 49, was appointed as a
Non-Executive Director on 11 March 2011. Ms. Chan serves as Managing
Director of A.S. Watson Industries Limited. She served as Managing Director
of Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited from 1 February 2006 to 31 October 2010
and served as Executive Deputy Managing Director of Hutchison Harbour
Ring Limited from 18 May 2005 to 31 January 2006. Ms. Chan has extensive
experience in managing property development and investment businesses in
mainland China. She also holds directorships in certain companies controlled
by Hutchison Whampoa Limited. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration.
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Mr. Teruyuki DAINO, MBA, 8BS, aged 53, appointed as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 20 May 2011. Mr. Daino is a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is the Executive Vice President
and Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. He is a Director of San Miguel
Brewing International Limited, San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited and San
Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Ltd. He was the General Sales Manager of Gifu
Branch of Kirin Brewery Company Limited (2009- March 2011), and President
and Chief Executive Officer of Four Roses Distillery, LLC (2002-2009). Mr. Daino
graduated from Hitotsubashi University in 1983 with a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics and later obtained a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology in 1998.

Mr. Roberto N. HUANG, MBA, BSME, aged 65, has been appointed as Non-
Executive Director and a member of Remuneration Committee of the
Company with effect from 8 November 2012. Mr. Huang is a Director and
President of San Miguel Brewery Inc. He is also a Director of San Miguel
Brewing International Limited, and Chairman and President of Iconic
Beverages, Inc., Brewery Properties Inc., and Brewery Landholdings, Inc. He
was the General Manager of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (2007-2009), Director
of Ginebra San Miguel Inc. (2004-2008) (the shares of which are listed on the
Philippine Stock Exchange) and San Miguel Pure Foods Company, Inc. (2004-
2008) (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange).
Mr. Huang graduated from Mapua Institute of Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in Science (Mechanical Engineering) and completed academic
requirements for a master’s degree in Business Administration from De La
Salle University. He also attended the Nagoya International Training Center,
Japan International Cooperation Agency Grant for Metal Works Engineering
and Numerical Control Machines course.

Mr. Shobu NISHITANI, aged 50, has been appointed as Non-Executive
Director of the Company effective from 4 November 2011. Mr. Nishitani is
Executive Financial Advisor and Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. He is
also a director of San Miguel Brewing International Limited and San Miguel
Beer (Thailand) Limited. He served as Deputy General Manager of Finance
and Accounting Department of Kirin Group Office Company, Limited. He was
also the Deputy General Manager of Finance and Accounting Department of
Kirin Business Expert Company, Limited (2008-2010) and Manager of Finance
Group (2006-2007). Mr. Nishitani graduated from Waseda University in 1987
with a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce and attended the Harvard Business
School Program for Management Development. He is a Chartered Member of
The Securities Analysts Association of Japan.

Mr. Takeshi WADA, aged 53, has been appointed as Non-Executive Director
of the Company effective from 19 April 2013. Mr. Wada is Executive Vice
President of San Miguel Brewing International Ltd. He is a Director of Sales
Department of Heineken Kirin K.K since 2009. He served in Kirin Brewery Co.,
Ltd. in the following capacities, among others: Deputy General Manager of
the Sales Department (2008-2009), and General Sales Manager (2005-2008).
Mr Wada graduated from University of Tokyo (Faculty of Law) in 1984.
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Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok Po, GBV, GBS, OBE, MA Cantab. (Economics & Law),
Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier), Hon.
D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. D.Litt. (Macquarie),
Hon. DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITR, FCIArb, JP, Officier de I'Ordre
de la Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising
Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur,
aged 75, appointed on 22 March 1991, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Ccommittee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Sir David
is Chairman and Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (listed in
Hong Kong). He is the Chairman of The Chinese Banks' Association, Limited.
He is also a member of the Council of the Treasury Markets Association. Sir
David is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Guangdong Investment
Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, The Hongkong and
Shanghai Hotels, Limited, PCCW Limited and Vitasoy International Holdings
Limited (all listed in Hong Kong). He is a director of CaixaBank, S.A. (listed
in Spain). Sir David was an Independent Non-executive Director of China
Overseas Land & Investment Limited and COSCO Pacific Limited (both listed
in Hong Kong), a Non-independent Non-executive Director of AFFIN Holdings
Berhad (listed in Malaysia) and a member of the Legislative Council of Hong
Kong from 1985-2012.

Mr. NG Wai Sun, aged 70, appointed on 1 April 2001, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member
of the Audit committee and the Nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Ng is Chairman of Jibsen Capital (Holdings) Limited, a director of the Tung
Wah Group of Hospitals (2004-2006 and 2011-2013), Member of the Standing
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, Ambassador of Friendship of Shandong
Province in China and an Executive Director of the Fujian Normal University.
In 2013, Mr. Ng was awarded “Bronze Bauhinia Star” by the Government of
the HKSAR and “Honorary Citizen of Shandong Province” by the Governor of
Shandong Province, China respectively.

Mr. Reynato S. PUNO, vct, Lim, LLB, aged 73, has been appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Director and Nomination Committee member of
the Company from 8 November 2012. Mr. Puno is an independent director
of San Miguel Corporation (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange) since 2011. Mr. Puno served as the Chief Justice of the
Philippine Supreme Court from 6 December 2006 until his retirement on 17
May 2010. He also served previously as an Associate Justice of the Supreme
Court, Associate Justice of the Court of Appeals and Appellate Justice of
the Intermediate Appellate Court. Mr. Puno completed his Bachelor of Laws
from the University of the Philippines in 1962, and has a Master of Laws
degree from the University of California in Berkeley (1968) and a Master in
Comparative Law degree from the Southern Methodist University, Dallas,
Texas (1967).

ZEE B L ° GBM, GBS, OBE, MA Cantab. (Economics &
Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick),
Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon.
LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. D.Litt. (Macquarie),
Hon. DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB,
FBCS, CITR, FCIArb, JR, Officier de I'Ordre de la Couronne, Grand
Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order
of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur
dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d'Honneur * ++ A 5%
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Mr. Carmelo L. SANTIAGO, 854, aged 71, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director, Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is an
Independent Director of the following companies: San Miguel Brewery Inc.,
San Miguel Pure Foods Company, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the
Philippine Stock Exchange), and Liberty Telecoms Holdings Inc. (the shares
of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). Mr. Santiago is the
founder and owner of several branches of Melo’s restaurant in the Philippines
and a director of Terbo Concept, Inc., a Philippine company engaged in retail
and food business. He was a director of the Company from 27 February 2003
to 23 February 2005. Having over 38 years of directorate positions in various
companies in the Philippines and Hong Kong, Mr. Santiago has extensive
experience in foods, beverages, publication, properties, power and banking
industries.

Mr. Adrian M. K. LI, MA(Cantab), MBA, LPC, JP, aged 40, was appointed Alternate
Director to Dr. The Hon. Sir David K.P. Li on 1 August 2002. Mr. Li is Deputy
Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, with responsibility for the
bank’s Hong Kong business. He is a member of the Guangdong Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
a member of the All-China Youth Federation, Deputy Chairman of the
Beijing Youth Federation and a Counsellor of the Hong Kong United Youth
Association. He is a board member of The Community Chest of Hong Kong,
a member of the HKSAR Government-mandated Banking Industry Training
Advisory Committee, and a member of the MPF Industry Schemes Committee
of the MPFA. Mr. Li is an Advisory Committee member of the Hong Kong
Baptist University’'s School of Business, a Vice President of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers’ Council and a Steering Committee member of the Asian
Financial Forum. He also serves as a member of the Election Committees
responsible for electing the Chief Executive of the HKSAR and deputies of
the HKSAR to the 12" National People’s Congress. Mr. Li is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Sino Land Company Limited, Tsim Sha Tsui
Properties Limited, Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited, China State Construction
International Holdings Limited, and COSCO Pacific Limited, all listed in Hong
Kong. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Shanghai Fosun
Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd. (dual listed in Hong Kong and Shanghai), a
Non-Executive Director of The Berkeley Group Holdings plc (listed in London)
and an Alternate Director of AFFIN Holdings Berhad (listed in Malaysia).
He also serves as a member of the International Advisory Board of Abertis
Infraestructuras, S. A. (listed in Spain). Mr. Li holds a Master of Management
degree from Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern University in the
US, and a Master of Arts degree and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Law from
the University of Cambridge in Britain. He is a member of The Law Society of
England and Wales, and The Law Society of Hong Kong. He is the elder son of
Dr. The Hon. Sir David K. P. Li.

56

HEHSLE BBA £+ — BARAZEY
HHMITES  REZEGEFE BERZESRH
MEEEKE - BEAUTRARZEYES : £
N SF i A =] ~ San Miguel Pure Foods Company,
Inc. (LR RIEREFEH X HFT L) KLiberty
Telecoms Holdings Inc. (ERRMHRIEREESFR S
BT £ o i RIEEEMelo'sE B 2 B A
WHEBZEDIE  URIEEE—RTERRME
% /A®] > Terbo Concept, InC. ZE % e ER =
EE=F_A-++HE-EERF_A-+=
ASHEERARRIES  BAEEIFRERSE
Rt ZRAREEES BBA=T/\F- i
SHERRM - SO - k- HE - sERRERTTE
BEHABLYEER -

Z RS54 - MACantab), MBA, LPC, P+ PO+ 5%+ —
T _FNA—BRZEAZTHERS T BEE
Fo HMARTRITAERAFRBITHREH - BR
FIRITHBBES - TEERBFBRARBARH
NEEERELEGELZE  NTERELXETFE
AERERFEEES - kAT EFHAZIERER
ERETFHESLE - TEERERRNESES
EREFRERNRITETEEIZRNEZERELZE
URBEBREBIMEAREFTEEERRFIMAESR
THFEEZESZE - FRAKEALTEAZET
HERShAHNEEENE BB RITESHRE
BerRkEMNERBIEZESELE - LI i
ENMABEEEEEFITHREITHERS CER
ZEGZE  REBENTHERETZEZEA
RREAXEREREBZRGZINE - TEERAEUT
BRLMARZEBUFRITES  BREENEE
ERAR - AVPEEXEBBERAF - EME
JE(EE) BRAR  PREEBBERBRA
AIRPEANFEEERAA - HALELEERESR
Z(5E) RERAR (EEERLEEET) 2
Y83 IE 7T & = - The Berkeley Group Holdings
ple(fEmA L) ZFMTEE - LA KRAFFIN
Holdings Berhad (TE 2k L) 2 BEESE °
1% Jn A2 70 B 2F £ 2 8] Abertis Infraestructuras,
SA.ZBERERAZEGNE - ThERFBEBEA
b REYSRE RS TR E iRl 24 - HE
RBARBEBRBTRET 2 o KR RBIERD
eREERMEZEE - TEENFHER T2
KT o



BEBENDEBERAR —B-=FFR
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MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Ramon G. Torralba
Managing Director

John K.L. Cheung
Chief Finance Officer & Company Secretary

Raymond N.L. Cheng
General Sales Manager

Eric PK. Lam
Marketing Manager

Ric W.T. Yeung
Senior Manager — Logistics

C.K.Ho
Senior Manager — Operations

Steven Co
Senior Manager — Corporate Development

Edith Y.M. Ng

Senior Manager — Human Resources & Administration

Vincent K.M. Kwok

Managing Director, Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited

William B. Montalbo

Plant Manager/Brewmaster, San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company

Limited

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, Managing Director. Please refer to the Directors

section on page 52 for details.

Mr. John K.L. CHEUNG, VBA, B8A, aged 50, Chief Finance Officer & Company
Secretary, joined the Company in 1997. Mr. Cheung is a member of the
Institute of Management Accountants. He has over 28-year solid experience
in finance and accounting in various industries. Mr. Cheung received a
Master’s degree and a Bachelor’s degree, both in Business Administration,

from Georgia State University, USA.
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Mr. Raymond N.L. CHENG, reDBA, 8Sc, aged 50, General Sales Manager,
joined the Company in 2013. Mr. Cheng has 28 years of working experience,
with more than 15 years of solid experience in leading sales department or
holding full P&L responsibilities.

Mr. Eric P.K. LAM, MBA, BA, aged 49, Marketing Manager, joined the Company
in 2008. Mr. Lam has over 20 years of solid experience in marketing in various
industries.

Mr. Ric W.T. YEUNG, B84, aged 50, Senior Manager — Logistics, joined the
Company in 1983. Mr. Yeung has more than 30 years of extensive experience
in supply planning, procurement and physical distribution.

Mr. C.K. HO, msc, DiP, aged 55, Senior Manager — Operations, joined the
Company in 1988. Mr. Ho has over 25 years of service with the Company. He
has extensive experience in the operations of beer production.

Mr. Steven CO, BA, aged 44, Senior Manager — Corporate Development,
joined the Company in 1994. Mr. Co has more than 19 years of experience
in business planning, business research, corporate affairs and quality
management in the Company.

Ms. Edith Y.M. NG, vBA, Dip, aged 51, Senior Manager — Human Resources
& Administration, joined the Company in 1989. Ms. Ng has gained over 24
years of experience in the fields of marketing, sales and human resources.

Mr. Vincent K.M. KWOK, MBA, BBA, aged 45, was appointed as the Managing
Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited on 1 January
2011. Mr. Kwok joined the Company in 2003. He has more than 22 years of
solid experience in marketing in various industries.

Mr. William B. MONTALBO, Bsche, aged 50, Plant Manager/Brewmaster of
San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited. Mr. Montalbo joined San
Miguel Brewery Inc. in 1988. He has extensive working experience in both
Domestic and International Operations. Mr. Montalbo graduated from De La
Salle University with a Bachelor's degree in Chemical Engineering.
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In July,
we launched a new TVC,
“Real Friends”.
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

n\:% E n l.c I:I *ﬁ

Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except
per share data and number of personnel

BET-A=+—HIFE KSR

Win 8iB & 8 T ABIMGIABEE TILatE

Ten Year Review +E[O)
2013 2012 2011
—E-=F —E—fF —E— 4
(restated)
(B &5)
Turnover (1) (1) 687,093 686,362 683,879
Profit/(loss) from operations (6) rmEBF, (BE) (6) 28,674 243,428 (48,365)
Profit/(loss) for the year before RetEMAEAY 2
restructuring costs (6) &%, (&E) ©) 25,824 226,976 (68,638)
Restructuring costs (2) BHEAZ (2 — — —
Profit/(loss) for the year (6) FEAF, (FE) ©) 25,824 226,976 (68,638)
Taxes paid, including beer tax ol TE e A A 19,614 26,683 36,009
Cash dividends attributable to the year FERERSIRE — — —
Cash dividends per share (cents) BRI E2RE () — — —
Fixed assets and projects under development — EEBENZEEFIAR 635,893 654,678 389,671
Net worth (3), (4), (5) F1E (3), (4), (5) 543,678 511,836 297,223
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMER 106,631 104,724 101,023
Number of personnel (7) BT A (7) 587 606 635
Q)] Turnover has been adjusted where discounts, beer duty and consumption tax have been set-off with the gross turnover.

S

activities of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited.

Restructuring cost in 2007 represented restructuring activities on the Company, while restructuring costs in 2005 and 2006 represented restructuring

(3) Net worth for the 2004 have been adjusted for change in accounting policy for non-controlling interests.

(4) Net worth for the 2004 to 2005 have been adjusted for a change in accounting policy for defined benefit retirement plans.

(5) Net worth for the 2004 to 2008 have been restated for a change in accounting policy for intangible assets.

(6) Profit from operations, profit before restructuring costs and profit for 2012 have been restated for the change in accounting policy of employee
benefits.

(7) Number of personnel represents actual headcount as of the last working day of the year.

|
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EEENGERER NG —E—=ZFFHK
rK 4
STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS &% &5t 04
Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except HE+-_A=1+—HLLFE  BESK
per share data and number of personnel AP EIE & B TABIMNILABEE T ILat &
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—ETF —ETNF —ETN\F —ETEF it —ETRHEF —ETNEF
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(BE5) (BE5) (B575) (B55) (B&E%)
589,322 696,824 753,375 754,833 826,817 806,909 777,830
(770,605) (331,879) (301,033) 4,962 (10,625) 10,519 20,025
(773,987) (343,052) (258,155) 50,397 (12,216) (2,692) 12,723
— — — (310,220) (93,159) (63,295) —
(773,987) (343,052) (258,155) (259,823) (105,375) (65,987) 12,723
42,020 68,877 102,485 140,831 127,007 141,219 135,185
— — — — — 3,736 3,736
— — — — — 1 1
398,011 1,087,198 1,379,561 1,496,910 1,769,377 1,838,164 1,939,135
391,474 1,169,484 1,490,925 1,751,565 1,975,617 2,062,000 2,118,432
96,719 99,341 91,656 105,510 118,836 128,539 122,149
732 766 766 838 768 1,151 1,145
(1) EEBO IR - AR EE R ELFE -
) TR FERAY NEARRIZEREY Mo RAFER SR AF2EAAI EEMNENEBERAR ZERHEE -
©) - W 2 FEE B IR R 2 ST BCRE (E A% -
(4) - NEE-_TTRF2FED ?ﬁm%’ﬁﬁafJLWﬁ%ZQJE&%E&”T‘FﬁEJ%?;% °
(5) - NFEE-_TTN\F 2 FEOCHBENEEZ SFTHBORNEEY -
(6) TECFEERT Ekufiiﬂﬁﬁizﬂﬁﬂﬁifﬁﬂa?ﬁﬁ@%mﬂZéﬁﬂ(ﬁ%E& FE o
7) ETAZUERTFERE —ELEFAZERETIHE -
[ ]

61



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2013

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT & W&

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BT —=F+-"A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHEETE)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Note $'000 $'000
BaE Fr v
(Restated)
(BE5)
Turnover =E 3 687,093 686,362
Cost of sales HER AR (396,798) (392,455)
Gross profit EF 290,295 293,907
Other revenue E AU A 4 42,654 35,671
Other net income H bz 558 4 396 11,473
Selling and distribution expenses SHE KD HRAY (212,303) (278,885)
Administrative expenses TR (83,241) (79,095)
Other operating expenses HAE & p > (9.127) (9,559)
Reversal of impairment losses for IERBEE 2B
non-current assets E5iaHE ol 5 — 269,916
Profit from operations KEBF 28,674 243,428
Finance costs 758 A 6(a) (6,391) (13,419)
Profit before taxation BRI 2 A 6 22,283 230,009
Income tax credit/(charge) Frigsizt A/ (ZH) 7 3,541 (3,033)
Profit for the year FEEER 25,824 226,976
Attributable to: FEMRIOR -
Equity shareholders of the Company PIN/NEI - EE S =N 10 26,010 237,655
Non-controlling interests IEIENR R (186) (10,679)
Profit for the year FERF 25,824 226,976
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (cents) EAR () 12(a) 7 64
Diluted (cents) oE (L) 12(b) N/A RE A N/A & A

The notes on pages 70 to 141 form part of these financial statements. Details of  Z|RE702 141 B 72 EEMW i AR KRk 2 — 26
dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit {5 - RNEE AR REZEIE A A2 IR 2 2B H 7AW
for the year are set out in note 26(b). 7T 26(D) °

—
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4 & 2 HEUNEF

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BT —=F+-_A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (CABHEETE)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Note $'000 $'000
g Fr T
(Restated)
(BE5))
Profit for the year FEEF 25,824 226,976
Other comprehensive income FEHMBE2ERE (RB#E)
for the year (after tax) 11

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to ke @ E#7 A Bz 7EH B

profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of: PEHZRE :
— financial statements of subsidiaries — REGINHIE A R B SRR
outside Hong Kong FrEA ZEH =% (11,505) 245
— monetary items that form part of the net — BREAKEERE A A
investment in subsidiaries outside ZEREMEKIEB FIEA
Hong Kong ZMEH R 11,387 (84)
(118) 161
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 0SS # T2 Ex5 A {82 #77H B
Actuarial gains and losses of defined ERER ARG B Z B E &R
benefit retirement plan RIEE 6,136 (12,524)
6,018 (12,363)
Total comprehensive income for the year E£E2HEIKZHHEEE 31,842 214,613
Attributable to: BT -
Equity shareholders of the Company RARE=FEEA 32,971 225,299
Non-controlling interests e AR AR (1,129) (10,686)
Total comprehensive income for the year F£E2HE K45 31,842 214,613
The notes on pages 70 to 141 form part of these financial statements. FIREI0E M B BEW T AR EREX 2 — 3
,T/'\ °
[ ]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #r& B #AR i 3%

At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=A=1+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHEETE)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—CF
Note $'000 $'000
Bt F Tt
Non-current assets FEREEE
Fixed assets BEE&E 13(a)
— Property, plant and equipment — Y - MESRERE 461,316 475,861
— Investment properties — KRB 85,356 87,978
— Interests in leasehold land held for — EKEZHETEAMBEAR
own use under operating leases MR E RS 89,221 90,839
635,893 654,678
Intangible assets mAE 14 5,188 5,426
641,081 660,104
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 16 58,787 56,062
Trade and other receivables EUE 5 Kk H b BRIE 17 87,172 82,726
Amounts due from holding companies FEWIZERR A B
and fellow subsidiaries &H%Mﬂ% A R)ERIE 18 8,702 9,340
Amount due from a related company FEU RE:E A RIBRIE 18 — 829
Bank deposits RITER 19 20,168 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekERHEEER 19 112,746 100,904
287,575 249,861
current liabilities REBAE
Bank loan RITER 20 — (86,713)
Trade and other payables ENES &,H\@EEIE 21 (138,446) (120,0095)
Loan from an intermediate holding company RN ARIZER 22 (12,723) —
Amounts due to holding companies FERT AR A B
and fellow subsidiaries KA %W% A R)ERIE 18 (17,235) (3,767)
Amounts due to related companies FESRAE A RIBRIE 18 (5,139) (4,423)
(173,543) (214,908)
Net current assets REBEEFRE 114,032 34,953
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ENRERERAT —B-=FFH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %r& Bt &R 3=

At 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R=FB—=F+_HA=+—H
(LABREEE)

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 T Tt
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABARS 755,113 695,057
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank loan RITER 20 — (145,092)
Loan from an intermediate holding company R ER AR ZER 22 (190,837) —
Retirement benefit liabilities RNENBE 24(a) (17,660) (34,534)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEAE 25(a) (2,938) (3,595)
(211,435) (183,221)
NET ASSETS EEBE 543,678 511,836
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR
Share capital R A 26(C) 186,785 186,785
Reserves E 386,636 353,665
Total equity attributable to equity AATERSE ABGER
shareholders of the Company 573,421 540,450
Non-controlling interests =R RS (29,743) (28,614)
TOTAL EQUITY EAE 543,678 511,836

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 7 February 2014.

L

Ramon S. Ang
Director

EEX
ZF

The notes on pages 70 to 141 form part of these financial statements.
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Ramon G. Torralba
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BfF#& AR R 3%

At 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R=F—=F+_HA=+—H
(LABREEE)

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Ft Tt
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEEE 13(b)
— Property, plant and equipment — Y - MESRERE 397,610 410,185
— Interests in leasehold land held for —EREHETEAMBEEN
own use under operating leases FHE T 58,435 60,179
456,045 470,364
Intangible assets EmREE 14 4,781 5,031
Investments in subsidiaries I8 A Rl RS 15 624,952 620,959
1,085,778 1,096,354
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 16 45,811 45,873
Trade and other receivables EUE 5 Kk H b BRIE 17 74,186 73,911
Amounts due from holding companies FEUWIZE AR A &)
and fellow subsidiaries PAEES =N S 18 8,697 6,606
Amount due from a related company FEU RE:E A RIBRIE 18 — 829
Bank deposits RITER 19 20,168 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekERHEEER 19 73,115 73,903
221,977 201,122
current liabilities REBAE
Bank loan RITER 20 — (86,713)
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R A MBRIR 21 (66,492) (61,187)
Loan from an intermediate holding company AR A Rl 2 B3 22 (12,723) =
Amounts due to holding companies JERHZERZ A A
and fellow subsidiaries K RIZRH B AR RE 18 (7,578) (2,130)
Amounts due to related companies FESRAE A RIBRIE 18 (1,780) (2,195)
(88,573) (152,225)
Net current assets REBEEFRE 133,404 48,897
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BA#&AR R 3R

At 31 December 2013

R=F—=F+_HA=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Tt Tt
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABARS 1,219,182 1,145,251
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank loan RITER 20 — (145,092)
Loan from an intermediate holding company R ER AR ZER 22 (190,837) —
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B A RBRIE 23 (558,092) (558,173)
Retirement benefit liabilities BRARENERE 24(a) (17,660) (34,534)
(766,589) (737,799)
NET ASSETS EEBE 452,593 407,452
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRARR & 26(a)
Share capital R A 186,785 186,785
Reserves & 265,808 220,667
TOTAL EQUITY e AR 452,593 407,452

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 7 February 2014. KhEEERN T —MOF - At A#EREETE -

L

Ramon S. Ang
Director

EEX
EF

The notes on pages 70 to 141 form part of these financial statements.

Ramon G. Torralba
Director

HEE
2

FIRBT0% 101 B 2 &AM AR SRR 2 — 8

fn e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY a8 EZ & B &R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BT —=F+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RATEEREARERG
(Accumulated
Exchange losses)/ Non-
Share Share Capital  fluctuation retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity

EXKE (RiER)/
Bx  ROEE  EARG fife  WERk At FERER  BEAE

(note 26(c)) ~ (note 26(cM)  (note 26(cli)  (note 26(a)ii)
(Fik2e())  (BsE26(c))  (PRFE26(0n) (BiF3E 26(chi)
Note $000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $'000
Mt awn A T T A A T T
Balance at 1 January 2012 R=B--§
e ThoEER Bosto 857 W2g0 8N (AR s (09 218
Changes in equity for 2012: SE-CERREE.
Profit for the year (restated) EERH (BE7) = = = = 237,655 237,655 (10679) 226976
Other comprehensive income ErEkE
(restated) (BE7) i — — = 168 (12,524) (12,356) ] (12,363)
Total comprehensive income ERTENREE
oA il S S A
Balance at 31 December 2012 R=F-=%
and 1 January 2013 +=A=1-H
R=-E-=F
-B-R&& 186,785 65,739 112,970 80,305 94,651 540,450 (28,614) 511,836
Changes in equity for 2013; “E-CEREEE:
Profit for the year EERT - - - - 26,010 26,010 (186) 25,824
Other comprehensive income b= il 1 - - - 825 6,136 6,961 (943) 6,018
Total comprehensive income EERElnEE
for the year - - - 825 32,146 32971 (1,129) 31,842
Balance at 31 December 2013 ~ R=F-=%
T-R=t-BE# 186,785 65,739 112,970 81,130 126,797 573,421 (29,743) 543,678
The notes on pages 70 to 141 form part of these financial statements. HIRETOENM B2 SEMFAARMEHRE 2 —6
3o
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EEENEEHERAT —B-ZFFRK

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT & RERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BT —=F+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHEETE)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—CF
Note $'000 $'000
iz T T
Operating activities Py S
Cash generated from/(used in) operations B ZHERA CRl)  19() 67,262 (40,045)
Income tax FriS %t
— Tax paid outside Hong Kong — BAEIINE e (31) (20)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEERIBERA ORd
operating activities e 67,231 (40,065)
Investing activities REEK
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets BABREEE (5,009) (14,157)
Payment for the purchase of BAHMBTEE
other tangible assets — (1,031)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEE T EEFS IR 870 319
Proceeds from disposal of other tangible assets &1 I 4.3 bt — 3,951
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HeEmEEMSRIAE 505 288
Increase in bank deposits SRITIEFRIE N (20,168) =
Interest received BUFIE 688 1,777
Net cash used in investing activities REXKZREREFE (23,114) (8,853)
Financing activities L& EE
Proceeds from new bank loans, net of FTILIRTTE R
transaction costs (BEHBRRZA) — 419,103
Proceeds from loan from an intermediate NI AT ZER
holding company 203,623 =
Repayment of bank loans BERIRITER (231,939) (499,552)
Decrease in pledged deposits ERFRR D — 198,000
Interest paid BFLE (4,394) (13,311)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BETBH2RE (Rd) FHA
financing activities portoi] (32,710) 104,240
Net increase in cash and cash HeRERRLER
equivalents Z BRI N 11,407 55,322
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BZEE
at 1 January RERRESEBEEER 19(a) 100,904 45,586
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes Ex#E) & 435 (@)
Cash and cash equivalents R+T-A=t+—HZEE
at 31 December FERHRSEBER 19(a) 112,746 100,904
The notes on pages 70 to 141 form part of these financial statements. FIRE70 R 14 B 2 REW AR EHRE 2 —3P

%)
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70

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies 1 FESHBK

(@) Statement of compliance (@) ErEg
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all R EHRER BB EE 2 BB EHRE
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which B ([BEPEMELER ) (FEUBRE
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial EH—RAIBREE S B/ H Z2E B
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and BA®ER BB EREER - HESEER
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public ([HHEeEl]) R2E -  HEAZetE
Accountants (“"HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong BIREBNTHERN ZFHE) MiEIE - 3258
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. BRRMETEAMALINAER AR ES
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure EWRA ([ EWRR]) ZEAHEERE - &
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock SERAZEFEZSHBERBENT o
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first ERAetM AR EME T2 AKERTZ
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting ARV BEREED  WRAEERARFZ
period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides information A et BB e R AR AR E R - &
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application IRFERIL S AR AR 2 # 5T £ Fro| 8
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group REBARAT e R 2 g ERE
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial ERAIEHRERARER - BREERSH AT
statements. 1C) ©

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) EEBBBEHERZZER
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December BE-_Z—=F+-A=+-—"BILFEZ#K
2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as AU BRRBEAQRALEMB AR (5
the “Group”). BIAER]) -
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial WIIEmMRTIARE LA BIRIREE o
statements is the historical cost basis.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS requires IR A BB S REER MBI EREE K
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect EEEBEHeTERRERREE  BF -
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, WA BB Y RSB HE - GET R BER
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are BT o [Eat R EBRRIIBERFLER M
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed ZEAEEEEBRER TEAEMNEMEZEM
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form B - EERERAYEEMRIRL TEAS
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and AMEEHAGREEEDHARNER - &
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results BREERAIREAENZEHRT ©
may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing et MR RReFE R - $esthata
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in TEETR - BB R EZAME - Algs]e
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in EEET IR N R  BEET 2 2RE
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both AR AR PR AR - BIFEEET R R SR BARR AR o
current and future periods.
Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that LA BB SRS ER R T E B9 H T
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of NRIERE T —FE 2 BB RR B EANA
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2. BER 2 EETH AR EHIIRM 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1  EEEBER @
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) mEBHMEHRKZER (B)

(Continued)

As disclosed in the Group's financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012, there were conditions as at 31 December 2012 that
indicated the existence of a material uncertainty which may have cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and, therefore, it may have been unable to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The directors are of the opinion that such conditions did not exist as at 31
December 2013 on the basis that;

0]

(i)

The Group generated a consolidated net profit from continuing
operations of $28,674,000 and a net cash inflow of cash and cash
equivalents of $67,231,000 in respect of operating activities for the
year ended 31 December 2013 through the following:

(a) For the Hong Kong operations, the Company continued its
efforts in exerting a disciplined approach over discounts
and promotional spending. As a result, a significant
reduction in discounts and promotional spending was
registered across all business channels. The Company also
refined sales incentive schemes to be more flexible and
achievable for the front-line sales account executives.

(b) For the mainland China operations, an expanded
distributor and wholesaler network in the core markets
was achieved in 2013 as per the target set out at the
beginning of the year. This strategy will continue in 2014
whereby the Group will recruit more qualified distributors
in all selling markets within Guangdong province.

The Group refinanced its external bank loan with a five-year
inter-company loan from an intermediate holding company in
September 2013 at a lower interest rate. The principal amount
of the inter-company loan is due and payable in sixteen equal
quarterly instalments with the first quarterly instalment due and
payable on the fifth quarter after the date of the first drawdown.
As a result, the Group’s finance costs decreased from $13,419,000
in 2012 to $6,391,000 in 2013 and the Group’s net current assets
increased from $34,953,000 at 31 December 2012 to $114,032,000
at 31 December 2013.

BUOAEEHE—_T——F+-_A=+—8
FFEE AT BREAER R —=
FH+-_A=Z+—BBEREEEATHARZE
ZER SAEEBELE R NEEK
MG ERAEBTREREEEBR
RREREEERFERLAE-

EERA RN E—=F+-_A=+—8H¥
TFERERR - HTIER

0) HE-_Z—=F+-_A=1+—1*F
E AEBBBTISBESRERE
BICEFETS 2 578 F 815 28,674,000
TIMEEER 7R RERIREER
2B E TR A67,231,000 7T ¢

@ BEXRBIE  NARMEE
B BRAR FE AT H0 Ko e R B
X Ht MBEXBREZ
FMEEERASHAET
Bk o AN B IR A 36 22
e EEFAEEE S
RIARHE R P EEE HEK
HEREBRE

(b) RENER T E - AR R
BRI —F—=FERZDL
(R PAGE N ED A g E
W EREFEDMEIGTZAB
1Fe REBBR - —mF
AEBHETTIL IR - EER
EMAHEMSHEESZA
BIRDHE -

(i) REBR-_ZE—=FNABBRAIFN
R ARIES AFIARIMER -
SRAMEBRMEEINFRITER -
ANRAEERZASE YD +N8%
XA B-HEEMRRERRE
BEHEZ2EFRAFTHHEIMN F
I AEBZHFERB=ZE—=
F 71341900 TRE_TE—=F 2
6,391,0007C * MAEE 7 KB EE
FEAB-_ZE——F+-A=+—8
234,953,000 T E—FT—=F+—
A=+—H2114,032,000 7T,
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEHEE®
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) SEBXNEH
The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments EaEetMASCElhAE TEFEKERE 2
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of EEMBREEL  ZEBITHEANNEER
the Group and the Company. Of these, the following developments are ANEAEEHHEAR AR - Hp EARER 7 B iR
relevant to the Group's financial statements: FRBBOFTEA KSR ¢
— Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — — EASHEREE (BE]) [B1K#H
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income K22 — AmEEKmIEL 2 £
3]
— HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements — EBBREERE 109 AL 05
#Hx
— HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities — BBV SR EERIFE 125 (A ERE
w2 BE]
— Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits — EHEEFEAE19 (K85 [EE
&
— Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting financial — BAPBmMEERZETIR (BF) [#
assets and financial liabilities FE—oREEReHAERE]
The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not AREBWAREABEMR AR HER MR L
yet effective for the current accounting period. BH TR SRR o
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements BRI ERE 1 (BEBEBRER
— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income 2% — Hib2EKREBEE 2275
The amendments require entities to present separately the items of EREERFE1REMEIEREREET
other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or 10ss BHERERT  BEREABBERKIEEHIA
in the future if certain conditions are met from those that would never BamEMme2mkzsEE BRI T2 EH
be reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive ABFNEMEEWZER 2SR - KE
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in these BEMEEWEN 22 /ELAEED -
financial statements has been modified accordingly.
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements EBMBEREERE 105 [ LFREMBEHR
x|
HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated and EBMEREENF 105K EBRERLGE
separate financial statements relating to the preparation of consolidated B mERNEBSHERE 275 (4748 K&
financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special purpose VHB#HE] REE (FRREZES) BB
entities. It introduces a single control model to determine whether an NEFI12R[E6H — EHEMER] 28
investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has o BBIEHRERERF 105 5| AE—IF
power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its FIET, - LETHWRERRIES TUEHE
involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power to affect the 1 MERRIMESEE RS B
amount of those returns. WERR  REERENREBEAE
Bl @b Ak iR - A RERE TR
ZERMESTEHRES o
As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed its AN E B NS S EERE RS 1098
accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has control over WERNERETERSERIEE T HRIE
an investee. The adoption does not change any of the control conclusions HlHE 2 ZETBUR - BBV BMELLE
reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with other entities as 10RTEeRELAERARBE—_T—=F—A
at 1 January 2013. —ARIE2EAMBEEXEBMERNEMNE
RATESI T E R AR o
[ ]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1  EEEBER @
(c) cChanges in accounting policies (Continued) (c) EFtEBEMEH (&)

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. The
disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than those
previously required by the respective standards. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has provided those
disclosures in note 15.

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

Revised HKAS 19 introduces a number of amendments to the accounting
for defined benefit retirement plans. Among them, revised HKAS 19
changed the basis for determining income from plan assets from an
expected return to interest income calculated at the liability discount rate,
and requires immediate recognition of past service cost, whether vested
or not.

This change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively by
restating the results for the year ended 31 December 2012 as follows:

EEMBREENE 12N [ HibERES
ZHE |

BRMBHELE 122G ERPIEMNER
Bl ALY MEARMASHNEBL
BERNESNAMBERBREREEN—5 -
HEMBREENE 12N ENREDE S
BERZAERMERNE REZ - HEER
RAKBZHE - AEBCRMBHRERM T
15 RHZSHEER -

ERSERNE 195 (RETEER
A

FREEEAFE 195 (BER]) sl AZIHMA
RERERBNERAR BN SETEENERT - £
B RIERT R BRI ERE R EERT S
BERAZZERRHOHRE SR EER
WEFFEZMBIA - AR EABEIERE
ERBEUA (TmEHBERT) o

FETBENEHEPER MR T —=
FHTA=t—BZEHRBHIWOT

Effect of
adoption of
As previously revised
reported HKAS 19 As restated
EBGTHER
WMERF2®HR F19HZAE &rE5
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt T+t
Consolidated income statement Bz—E——F
for the year ended +=—A=+—A1L
31 December 2012: mEWEE
Defined benefit retirement plan expense TEFER TR IRET 8IS 3,340 2,634 5,974
Income tax charge TSR 3,468 (435) 3,033
Profit for the year FERF 229,175 (2,199) 226,976
Consolidated statement of Bz—E——F
comprehensive income +=ZA=+—HL
for the year ended FEZEWER
31 December 2012:
Other comprehensive income FEEMEEKE
for the year 14,562 (2,199) 12,363

This change in accounting policy did not have a material impact on the
items of the consolidated statement of financial position and earnings per
share.

S BRNEHREHARBNGS MR
NREESBRANERERTE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1  EEEBER @

(c)  Changes in accounting policies (Continued) () EHEHRNEH (8
Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting financial BERMBEHREERNE 7R 2B [HE —
assets and financial liabilities tHEERSEAEIRNE
The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of offsetting HEEFSIAEHsmEEESsRBERR
financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new disclosures are required S T FE I EETE o IS E I8
for all recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance with ECRBELGAERNERR) (@ ITA -
HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation and those that are subject EMHB I ECHERERITE  TMRE
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that HUZSERTEMR S 2 a8 sl HhiTaF
covers similar financial instruments and transactions, irrespective of BEETHEUREFER 2SI A -
whether the financial instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32. maAESR T AERTREBEFSGTELNSE

325AREH

To the extent that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group WEEANAEEZETE  AEBBRTH
has provided those disclosures in note 27(f). REHTEE27() IR AR EWE LR o

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) MEBABERFERER
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls MEBARAREEMZES cEE - EA5HE
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its TRBLEEE XK MEAENZaE
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns 2 B3R N 48 BB H i R A P 2 Bl 3R & BEAY BE
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has B B AREEIZHZEL . 2T T AEFRE
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are SEZERENE B2 (KEBMEMY
considered. FrFsER)) BEERER -
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated KRB AR ZIE B RiFEA I HIERB AL
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date BB EmERN EEEGIEKLIEAIE - K&
that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and BERRalcBEEs  KXHEBEeRE - U
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated EXRSGFAELEZERREBET - T GER
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses A IS ERR R B - MEREREE
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way KEBRARRIZEZRGMEELE 2 RERE
as unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no evidence of B TIAREREFER 2 IS
impairment.
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not IR R I E M E BN AR A
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company and in respect of which MM B AR MAEEKREZIERIFS
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those FERTMAH MDD  RSEERE FHZ
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual ERTELAFNAVKABTEENETER °
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a HRNEGEMESO  SEAEENARER
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect SAEEWMB R R A PR EEFENFTGE
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the PltERIEEAR A
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement IR RS A MBI R A AR R
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to PR EEA BN EERRERES R - I
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the TRERG AR EFEABLRT R EETER
results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income B U F R AD B A FETERS 2 25 K 7] B2 B A AN
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as NERREEANE2W - AIEERERSE
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for ANEERNEZTAN Ef A N ETEREN T
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of sk (m) (BEENMEME) RirE WISk
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other NELHAEVEEGE -
contractual obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position in accordance
with notes 1(l) or (m) depending on the nature of the liability.
Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss AEBRMB AR 2 &L ER3| RIZS
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments EELNRZ G  LREGANIBZHAR - RE
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests HREZRIE T 21 N IR AR a5 /B T BE LA
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but R BRI E) - (B TRERER o
no gain or loss is recognised.

I
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FEEHERE®

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued) (d) MEARRFERER (&)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a MRAEEBKREMBAB 2 =S - ZIBEX
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or SEREEZWB AR SRR A
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former L HRERIBE - (TRIAEBHRE 2RI B
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and NERIGERIRERIEHEA QAR EER
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial ZEATREEVRERZALE AR
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment A RS R RIE R E S 2 VIR IR & A A
in an associate or joint venture. (RsE ) o
In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a EARRQNBZHBARREA - BB AR HEZR A
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)). BARBEEE (RMEE10)) 50K ©

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) W% KBRRE

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(j), with
the exception of construction in progress which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses (see note 1())).

— land classified as being held under finance leases and buildings
thereon (see note 1(g));

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land
classified as held under operating leases (see note 1(g)); and

— other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 50 years.

— Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 4t0 50 years

— Motor vehicles 4t0 7 years
No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time when the assets are substantially completed and ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

PR TR URKAR R EE R (R HE
10)) ZUBRSN - AT RO - 28 MR
AR BT E MR ERESIRR (REE10)

— DEABEHETH I EYE (R
M 1)

— ENBERKEEETH L EWAA
W (A1) 0 &

— HhESskERE -

WREERHEYRE - MBI RREEBZBE
TR EMRMSRIEFENARERIER REEZ
ZR WS E REIREPHER -

PETIFME R K RERARE b5t R
SREE (WA) AE T ARG AERFHS
BIAB AT E MM :

— DRGRMEBEE T LR EmE
EEMITE -

— aGHELMEMMERKREREE
R A A EAEY (NEBh+
F) MEPBIEHBIE -

— BB RE- MEER+F
RMNEE
— B mEELF

EEZITRREETKEARAERAIT SR
RITE -

ERYFE  MEkREZEHHE TR
FIE R - IR B &Ry 2 R RIR A IR
E OB - MEEDRIEERFTE -

AEEGFRHNEE A EAFHRERG
BE (|mA) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1  EEEBER @
(f)  Investment properties ) ®wEWE

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned or held BEMEABRIRES WA R S AERIEE

under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/or for mEBASRBEHEREZ (RHFE1E) HEaH

capital appreciation. THIREBE °

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation B Y IR AR 25T E KRB EEER Y B

and impairment losses (see note 1(i)). Depreciation is calculated to write (RMIEE13)) » I8 T8I B WSk A5 H 5

off the cost of investment properties, less their estimated residual values, S®EE (F)  ExREmEERREGETA]

if any, using the straight-line method over the shorter of the unexpired FRFH (TMBBE+TTF) MEPSEHR
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 BEREFTE MM -

years.

Both the useful lives of the investment properties and their residual REMENTFEAFHAREFIREE (0EF)

values, if any, are reviewed annually. HRFEELR -

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described & & ) E B 2 U AR 5 M5 10n)(Gil) Pt 77

in note 1(r)(i. NETHE o

(8) Leased assets (g HEEE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or MAEBRTLZHEEEREHENBAS

contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys f—Fs— Xy ZEMTAE ST EEK

a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in ZIHEEZERN  BlZLEE (AR5

return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is — R GHK) ATHENBIERE - %&E

made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is EVRBELZH 2 AR EMEL - MERLT
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease. BB AEEHRE ZEEER -
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (i) HEFEAEEZEENSE

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the HRAEENHEERENEE  WEBHEE

Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as BHEEENBARI YRR D RERL =R

being held under finance leases. £E - FHAERGIRAUAREHERS -

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards WRSHEE EE 2B RBRMFImEE A

of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the EEE Y AKLERE - LATBRIN :

following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet — REREMETENKEHENES
the definition of an investment property is classified as investment WHOBREIREWE - MBEWH BRI
property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as B ZHEEUREREANR
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a finance )53
lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, where the — BIEKSHELABRAMBEAERN M -
fair value cannot be measured separately from the fair value ABRnBEEES AR RN
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is BBt FNEEN QA BES M
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the 2 SERBEREHEERBAK
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these bRIEBBEEMBEARBEEHOTE
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was A BtERlER - Btk s - HERF
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the previous RIS AANEEE R LA o
lessee. WRTEMABEFE o

I
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEEE®
(8) Leased assets (Continued) (g) MHEEE®
(ii)  Operating lease charges iy KEHE
— Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating — MAEBRBEKLEHEEFREE B
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or BN 2 BTN ER R AERE
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by EHRENFTRE 2 25t R - AT
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit B EMEEEIIEAFTTERNERE
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments FHENREN - EERPRE
made. R o
— The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is — LA T S 3575 + A Uk B A 2R 2 4%
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease B ERNEE - RESIEY
term. Impairment losses are recognised in accordance with the FRERMIEE 10) V2 5THBURRIER ©
accounting policy set out in note 1(i).
(h) Intangible assets (hy B|EEE
Intangible assets are trademarks and club debentures acquired by the PIE N @ P ERE B LA AR A R B B 1R 1) BR
Group and stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)). (RFIEE3) ©
These intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are ZEBWEEWESY RAEAFEAFH
assessed to be indefinite and are tested annually for impairment (see note WS AT LEFAERE R (R
130). FE0) ©
The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite BEEAEZEAFHIRENERETTF
is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances BT ABEIBRAEREBE L TR EE 2T E
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. FERAFHZTEER -
(i) Impairment of assets (i) EERE
(i) Impairment of receivables (i) W RERRE

Receivables that are stated at amortised cost or at cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

RE SR AT R 2 RYRTAN & B E R ETT
mE UHEEER A TBRER A LI
B MENEBEEREATASERIN
—IENZERRFENABRNE

— EEAERNHHEE

— EBRAH flinERIEEREEN S
HAEFIR

— EBRAETREREMCPBEE/E
AREHIR ¢ &

— TR - T REIOERIREN
EAUNEHEBABTHEE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEBER (@
(i)  Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) EERE®G
(i) Impairment of receivables (Continued) (i) ME AR ERRERFIERRE (8)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and HAERERERRELBFE - EARER
recognised as follows: BT YIEE RHER
— An impairment loss is measured as the difference between the — A BRZ A ERD ARG AR
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future RERERELEZHAH  BILZEH
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective ERMEEZRANERFE (APEL
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial BEYILERAETENTEN X)) E
recognition of these assets) for receivables carried at amortised 1TRAIE (fHBLIREZEBEKR) - FIE
cost or discounted at the current market rate of return for similar BEENAV R EREERHRE
financial assets for receivables stated at cost, where the effect O RS (A8 R EART1E
of discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively W) TR BB T ERE - HRE
where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics, BEATAL o MATARE @REED
such as similar past due status, and have not been individually ARREBRENREZSEERRE
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which ERUNEENBEREBLR -
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.
If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment 10ss R EEESENEEEERD - m
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an BRI A B E M R A E R
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the BHEEHAHRE  AREESBNE
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of e[ o WENMSFEBHEE ZREE
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount BEWRN AT FEY EERZRES
exceeding that which would have been determined had no BRREET -
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets (B 5 18 B AR FE A EE A - MERE IR E
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade W& 5 K H b AR R FE IR E 5 AR SR P I 3R A
receivables included within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is B - OB R B 1F & TR SE
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for AlVERzR o FELLIE R T » RIEEABEER
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group FRBERTE c SAEEEMNNE#e B
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable AR AEINENESEEHEELEK
is written off against trade receivables directly and any amounts held in B SRR - mERSI AR GRS &
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent BHEMNSES WD c EZEWE ZRID
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are EBEEDNG S e FERERED &
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance [ o BEERR AR Bt B B R H AR U El 2 Rl E,
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off BHEEMENS LB TER -
directly are recognised in profit or 10ss.
[
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1  EEEBER @
(i)  Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) EERE @@

(i)  Impairment of other assets (i) H#EERE

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

Property, plant and equipment;
Investment properties;

Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating
leases;

Intangible assets; and

Investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
In addition, for intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), or value in use.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

REEGEE B SR REl RINEER - A
RATHEERDEHIAES 2 #RZ
HERGE MFEIRD

— WE - e AR

— REYx:

— ERERETAEAMBENAE LI
MRS

— EPEE: R
—  RADFEMBRRRONE LR E

S

)

E

WEFEEMABETR - AEHtEENT]
WEIEER - toh - R B HEE A £ AF
BREEMS  ASEESFHFTETEE
TR UHEEEDBEFARETR

—  FEAKESHE

BEZAWNESEREEEFENE
REEMEFZBSE - R EER
EER - 2 ARTATRR 45T
MARKREREMREIE - LR
e R T I5 E R FTRT A 2 B
BEENZEEZBBRR - MEE
WARBEAE R BB A E At 2 T HREX
REeng AstBIRIESREZ
BNMARIEE (BIREUR € B h7) 2k
EERROEER -

—  HERREEE

BEEE (REMBNREELS
i) WEREEBBE T KRE S - B
SHEWERERRERR - SLERDER
S EAMERHBERE R E
i (HZAEM) BENREERL
FIoE - EEREETNSHOEE
REAZH R R EBRHERAKE
REE (FEET) -

— BEREER
fisl P VA BE AT I W [0 2 88 2 fh ot 3R 4F
& - QB ERIE -

B0 R R TR R B S
RHERR B AT AT 2 BB 2 B
A - 002 R B A AT R R AR 2
R A -

79



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R = HizE

80

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1  EEEBER @

() Inventories G =8
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. FETIRR A A EIRFEME 28 K& G

& o

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises A AINBE AR AL E - WEEMAR
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in B « INTAARREFSESIRR IR
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. RSP 4 2 EAB AR o
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of AR FEAREES 2 AT EER M T
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs AR M AR E AN ©
necessary to make the sale.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is REEFER  ZEFE ERESRRE
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is AU HARPER X - FEMURE ] &IR%
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable B2 858 M FTA 78 E B MUE sk EEH
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the BBIER . o (R n] 83 5B 18 00 & E 5
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any EAaIF & R B & H1REE (0] 25 A HA e P i SR A
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of S e
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

(k)  Receivables (k) FEWFIE
Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at ERFIERNE AR BERER - HERINE
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for BRA AR E AR B R ZERARES
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1()), except where the receivables BAME (RMFE10) - HWE B EEKGRIE
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed AETHEATBETVECMETERENR
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such BEF - BEIIRZENAE - BI{ERI
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of EZZEERT « FEWERIELRR AR RIZES
doubtful debts. TERETIER -

()  Interest-bearing borrowings () HEMER
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less WEBREVIZARBERELR S ERE
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest- R o NiERE - M EEFIREEKAIE
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference BB RBEN A EES B FREE N
between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being BEBRAEEEBERER o
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(m) Payables (m) FENKIE
Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at FERZTEBSEVIRALBEER - HE0ixE
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in SERKARBIE - HEIHBLIR RS E K - BlIRAk AN
which case they are stated at cost. HI{E o

(n) cash and cash equivalents (n) HERERBRLHEH
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand HeNERFESERBETER Re R
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly 17 N E b B TS 8 2 R EATE N B B
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash mZWE - MZFRERER A K E M8
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having RecHARERSERAR WABAKL=
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. EARNEIE 2 REIEE -

I
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEEE®

(0) Employee benefits (o) EEREF

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined (i) HHESENR EFEMER
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined BRINFTEIZEHRF S FRIEL BEHFF
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are B TRHIRKRTE 2 HAR N AREB TR
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by H 7 IEEERNINANEEREIZHABER
employees. B2 FEERE o

(i)  Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (i) TEEEFERAREEIZEE
The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement AEFEEETHEEIERSENFAERIE
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount B TR KB A P IR M RIS (A 5T H
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service BEEL R R SRS ST E R FI AR EH
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine RESHREMEEEN AT EE - B
the present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The STERAERNBEMUTET B ERAE
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit 17 BtEHEREAERT KA - BHER
credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, EER NI AR S MR RR R EH I
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits HMERIBAE AN ENRIRE -
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
Service cost and net interest expense or income on the net defined EREN B ENREEFENRBEKATNFE
benefit liability or asset are recognised in profit or loss and allocated by THRBRAFREEERRER - WRHER
function as part of “cost of sales”, “distribution costs” or “administrative S A [HENA] - [HiEFAZ] 5k [T
expenses”. Current service cost is measured as the increase in the S H—En - MEFIRISAK A RIZR A&
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee ENRBITELENEREN B EMIREE M
service in the current period. When the benefits of a plan are changed, or I E o i AMNFIS LIRS SR AR
when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past 4EREE o BE B RTIRERS A BT EIE
service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised as Ik RSB - SERT IR E
an expense in profit or loss at the earlier of when the plan amendment or s 4B R B A R ek MR AE R B 4B AR AR B B IR AR
curtailment occurs and when related restructuring costs or termination FEF (UBREEEE) RIBERERAEX
benefits are recognised. Net interest expense or income for the period is o BAF B S H s I A F 58 R A TE SR R
determined by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined VEtEFEENBEMRBANITRERERR
benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting period to the net EFEENBEREEFEMET - TR
defined benefit liability or asset. The discount rate is the vield at the end REEZRBEEBHERNSEAEAGHRR
of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity HENBE L EBEFRRERRNWFRE
dates approximating the terms of the Group's obligations. oo

(ili)  Termination benefits (iiiy AREEEEA
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can KRIHEBENAS ANEBREE BN IR
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises ENETHRBEENABE IR IERHE
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits. HER (UEEEA%E) -

(p)  Income tax (p) FAEH

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

REZZFEREBEARIEMRLEREE
ERBEZEE - NEINIAMRLERIAE E
MBEZEBHERSPER  EE SRR
Hib 2 E W B &N e P ERRIAR
A7 Bl FE EL b 2 [E W ol SR 2 AR RERR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEREE®

(p) Income tax (Continued) (p) FREW (&)
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the AREAFIIE TR E AR E S FEE R A - AR
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the HEEBAMRI TR AME EZRETE 285
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous ENTIE e TEE 2 EMANBEELT
years. {A] 2 o
Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable BEBEEERAEDSIREBEERAE
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the HE R ERERANZEEENEREMNES
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes ZA R ERTE s R ER - RIEFHIBE
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses ENMAAEABSAZHEERNMERE B Z
and unused tax credits. T R FTE A ©
Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities and all BETERZAIMER  FFEREEMREEE
deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable MEEREEE (LNEEA R e ARNERER
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are KIEBB SMEAR) e TR - &
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of HAERAN NS EREELE 2 EERIE
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include BERRERFGH  FFEERIRGE
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary AN EREMEE 2 I NBHERE8
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation MEEZ S 2= %A 78 B [B) — T TS ML B 2 AR [R) B SR A
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either EREEW  WHEHNREHEL AN ERZE
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary %8 ko ER S AEEENIBEEMEL Y
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax HIEEEB Y B —ERAEE - RETIHGRE
asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when AT EEA S SRR AT IEEE
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support the IR T E A Z IR E ER N LA FER
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and R - IZEEHEF BB HERERE
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to REERBER  WEHATRES AT IESER
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected W FEHM (—B3 %K) AL - Blg
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be FLAETA
utilised.
The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities RELEBRBEERBEZLEOINMER
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible REREHBEETTHREIE - ReiER
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect VESYESTRERHEFNZEEXAE
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a (MW IEEBEF 2 —BM) EEZERZE
business combination) and temporary differences relating to investments AW MRB AR ZIREERE 2 Eh
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, EF o BERTERN S AN EE A 1E 5
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the EEFfE - RRA] RAGRAG Nl gefml =5 A
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the case of PR - skEt Rl FI =58 M = BB A ] e AR 3K
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the BE[O1E AR -
future.
The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the BEMBE RSB IOEEERBEZERT
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of BEEHERKLINER  ZEREEA
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted FAIERAB LRI EZRMEE - BEFIEE
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ERAGBY TR -
not discounted.
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of FEFEEE, RABDRSAERETE
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer R Mia TNEBEOeeE B 52 ERBIEF LA
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related MR EERIES A EERBEES T
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that LA A o Z BB & B Pl 1B 2 SR B s 7
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available. Bl e IR o

[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEEE®
(p) Income tax (Continued) (p) FREW (&)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, REARGEE SRS MEZBEE 5 R
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax T~ WEADTEE o REAFRLEMEHEE
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets REERN B ANEBR B LTI THEEAKRE
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally MM EEREAPMEHaE  YAKE
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities AR B AGERIE R T » A A A B 5 2
and the following additional conditions are met: ARSI ALE -
— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the — KEFSHEEMEAE « KAARIHA
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset SEFEIRFRALELY - (FARE
and settle the liability simultaneously; or R EEMEEZEE &
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to — ELEFTEHEEMEE - EHEEM
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either: BENBERR—FSEBRATER
— BRI FTIST A -
— the same taxable entity; or — Bl —FERR TR 5 ok
— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in — TEMERTIEE - ELHE
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or BT EIETEHE KRBIRLERT
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to BRAEBEEBRFEIELM
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax 151 & B AT LA B ) & 4R R
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously. FKEAR - IR R AT K
HRPT 1S B A B RS (5N B A
FWEE  SKRRZEHEZE
EMEEZBE -
(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities (q EERIAREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount MRANE N AREB B B LSRR
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation FEESETEY  AMEHeEREELE
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of Wz B B RSN - FE AT LAYE AT S R BT
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable B AR AERFEem LB EERN
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, FRAEGEHREE MEEEBBESA
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to BIIRTERT AT S M IRE R A 4 -
settle the obligation.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be MR EELE Rz E RN A g1
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is K s & LS EAEEER TG
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of FERZEBRERIABE BERING
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence B RTRE AR R A BR AD - IR AE BRI EBA
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or BIEEFRNZRAREEE LA AT
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the REFE - TeHEANBEEE  BERI
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. LAY AT BE AR AIBR A ©
()  Revenue recognition (N WARR
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or U AR BA B MCER Bk AT AR BN B A o (BEET
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow B o MESHLBENEMERTEERALRSE
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured AR B AS (0@ ) RESIVE L AT 52 Y
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows: SFER BRRABZRUATAARNERERA
=2
(i) Sale of goods (i) HEWA

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’
premises or picked up by customers for domestic sales and when goods
are shipped on board for export sales which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax and
consumption tax and is after deduction of any trade discounts and returns.

HEEWAERMIEEN S IR E m xR
BHL LSRR EN  AHAHEEMS )
REmOEEM  IBREEIERREHE
BT UAR - HEWATBIEEER LA
anfi - W BABRPAE B SN AR E o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEHEE®

() Revenue recognition (Continued) (n WARESZ @#E

(i)  Interest income (i) FEWA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest FEWA TR ER TR EAGE -
method.

(ili)  Rental income from operating leases (i) RLEHFEMERZHESKA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit RIEGEZEHEMEI B A - JThAEEE
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term. RIHFTRE 2 25T EIRER - BEHEEH
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part EhFahe T E AT A R EE S H & T E Ay — 50
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. DIEEmP R o

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (s) HhEEHB

(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) MEEEEREREE
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s REBESWBATZUBREMBIEZIE
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic B DIRZWBARSER T EELEIR
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The B2EWE ([T g% ]) 18 - KEeBmEk
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, LAETE25 - METAKRARZIEER2H
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. j={:- 3

(ii) Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign (i) FRINEFEIT 2R G AR 5B 2 HNE
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and ERRE - PINEEE B EENRAE
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign BIAEE H 2 NS TERIRE - [ H 185 5T
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains ABz=HF o
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of AN IR SR ARTHEREEBEERBE
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign AR 5 B EINERE 5§ REITITE o
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong EBINEBNERERER 5 B /ERE
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates approximating the foreign ERERME 58K - AR RERAIER IR
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of HEEAMERREREE - FIEENERZE
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing B B B 25 (B B R D N FERR o
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount B HHERBUINERRES - B KA g
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified from RABAHEEFNRFTIELEHESNERE
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised. B AR FKEE o
Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items that EMIBEELARNINKENLIBZ (BUBERSE
in substance form part of the net investment in an operation outside PEAIMEE M — &) B 2 TRIBER S
Hong Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified to equity on HEEEN D ETHERE AR RER -
consolidation.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEEE®

(t) Borrowing costs (t) BERK
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, AU ZEEEREREE (AN ERE
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a B—BEREESAERTHENEEZE
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are E) MEEELZEER AN BIEZEEE
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are ZEBR AN o Eo b 18 B A AN TE EE A ) HAR
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. FIIERI ©

(u) Related parties (u) BEEAL

0]

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

(M

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in ().

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

0]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1  EEEBER @

(v) Segment reporting (v) EERZHR
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported LE SRR IBEHREANE RS D EHIEE
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information SHEETFHRERRFAERSZSITHREEAE
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for RERDE N EANEBNES IR EEMN
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, 58 7 IR B MR IBA BT 7S B B i
the Group's various geographical locations. RBIH 2R o
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial R BERME  BRIEDBEBELUNEE
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic BELEERERBME - AFETFHE -
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products EEEAISIER - BESRE QIR HRE
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of M EREERENEE FEAL - TS
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide HEARE YT EITEE o [HRIFEEK
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating RS - INRAA Pt KEBHIEXE - 8
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they ETAE °
share a majority of these criteria.

2  Accounting judgements and estimates 2 gEitarRAE
Notes 5 and 24 contain information about the assumptions and their risk MRAMIEES 248 B BREIEREN EERE R
factors relating to the non-current assets impairment and retirement BEREBENEEZREI U THEReTEE
benefit liabilities. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as IhE N B KA R AhET -
follows:

(@) Impairment of fixed assets and intangible assets (a) EBEEBEREFEEZRE
If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of these assets WABBRERZEEENEEEKD - BE
may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered “impaired” WA A [ORE]  WaiERBE S5
and an impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS FI6HEERE | ERBEEHE - BEER
36 Impairment of assets. Under HKAS 36, these assets are tested for BEFEREI6H - ZEBERSBHNIBENR
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that B AR E A0 8% 2 BRE(E ] pef kUi (O] i
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such BNZE#EITRE R - RIEIRBRBIER @ Bk
a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable HEAYREWESZE - AJ UG58 A%
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs HEEHEFTHREEMNENRSE - REEF
of disposal and value in use. In determining the fair value less costs of HEER  EEEeLXEHELENTER
disposal, management refer to the observable market prices for similar M5B - REEERMERRERIUEE
assets. The Group uses all readily available information in determining an ARECENESERE - Al - BRMISE
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount. KA ge B RINRE - WAl B S EEE
However, actual market prices may be different from assumptions which NEEEEFEEEAARE BETEENETE
may result in a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets ENMEMEREEEFBES IR E13R%14
affected. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of fixed assets and R EE o
intangible assets are disclosed in notes 13 and 14 respectively.

(b) Depreciation or amortisation of fixed assets (b) BEEEEZHESRE#H
Fixed assets (see note 13) are depreciated or amortised on a straight- B &EE (RHE13) RErREGMEFRGRE
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the B (A) 1% - TEGEAIFERFRIZESRE
estimated residual values, if any. The Group reviews the estimated useful WE - KREBTHEEEMN G FERER
lives and the estimated residual values, if any, of the assets regularly in MEEHRISBRERE (1B) ELRE - UEE
order to determine the amount of depreciation or amortisation expense MRS AT AR S ITE B - 1]
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual FEHFREFIGEEDIBEREBLELUE
values are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar ERRTARREE RS MRS EmIE
assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes. The e WEB A AR A EARNE - RRIEN
depreciation or amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if there WEMRX AT -
are significant changes from previous estimates.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

2  Accounting judgements and estimates (Continued) 2 @& RAER (B

(c) Impairment loss for doubtful debts (c) RERRBEFSE
The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful debts for estimated losses KEBBEB ABREEEL AN mE
resulting from the inability of debtors to make required payments. The BHhET BB RRERMRERSE - A%
Group bases the estimates of future cash flows on the ageing of the trade BIRBIRBE AN 17 PR E RS
receivable balance as disclosed in note 17, debtors’ credit-worthiness and 2R - B ANEEBEMRSRE AR
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of debtors were to RIBEMEIELEET o WEB AN BHAR
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated. Bt BEMEEERESMEETEHT

(d) Useful lives of intangible assets (d gEREEZUEAFH
Intangible assets (see note 14) are not amortised as their useful lives EREE (R4 T el &2
are assessed to be indefinite. The conclusion that the useful life of an EAELAEZAIFEAFHEERTEE -
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether HRNUFRRE  #EEENERFHSRN
events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life BEEEUE T ELBIE SN E Y I5E
assessment. The Group may need to amortise intangible assets in future HEENEAFHRATHE o (NRIARKE
periods or recognise impairment losses for intangible assets if events and BIRE XA FAFEEART - NEBER AL
circumstances indicate that the useful life is not indefinite. SHEFEEEDBHIERREES -

(e) Deferred tax assets (e) EEMEBEEE
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and EERIEE E S ARB A 2 MIBEE TR
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can only MAERER - ARZEEREHIEEENE
be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits RIER AR E R T B o] BIEE AR E
will be available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised, A B AARWIES - 1R EANERK
management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of being PR B a e - B EBY BT GE
able to generate future taxable profits. Management's assessment is TR HAEE R ¢ ik R IR FE SR B K 48 B Uk [T
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised RERIEEE - MERRAFEINELEHIAER
if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred B o IEERIIEE E RS AR mE 1B M
tax assets to be recovered. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of 25N o
deferred tax assets are disclosed in note 25.

3  Turnover and segment reporting 3 EXURSUEHER

(@ Turnover (@) ExH
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and distribution REBZzFBEF AR ERDHBE  BE
of bottled, canned and draught beers. ARSI o
Turnover represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of discounts, EHETEANEER ZEZRENBRTTM -
returns, value added tax and consumption tax. RME - IBET LA

(b) Segment reporting (b) HWBERZHH

The Group manages its businesses by geography. In @ manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group's
most senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments:

— The Hong Kong operations mainly comprise the manufacture
and distribution of own brewed beer products and distribution of
imported beer products in Hong Kong and overseas.

— The mainland China operations mainly comprise the manufacture
and distribution of own brewed beer products in the southern part
of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and overseas.

All of the Group's turnover is generated from the manufacture and
distribution of bottled, canned and draught beers.

AEBZBEERRLER - SEAFZ2RE
HerEBRaBITRERBABUNESRE
BREGHERBER B AEBD 28T
MEAT 23D E :

— BREBIEERET BB
BHEBE EHEMN D HED 28
TBE ©
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3 Turnover and segment reporting (Continued) 3 BETRSBEEHER )
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SDLERZIR (&)
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities iy HFEE BEEREE
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating HAFEBEDIBERREDESDHER » KEEZ
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management = E TTE&E@AE\E&LAT% WEERE BT
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable EROEEMZESE  BEREBE
segment on the following bases:
Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and current PHEEREMBEENEE BEREENR
assets. Segment liabilities include trade creditors and accruals attributable BEE - DEHBEEBES DI EE KD HEE
to the manufacture and distribution activities of the individual segments, Eﬁfamﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁlﬁ&uﬂmgﬁﬁ DEE
bank loan and retirement benefit liabilities managed directly by the EERMRITERREREN B EARRE
segment and other current liabilities with the exception of deferred tax BE - HELEHIEAERBI -
liabilities.
The measure used for reportable segment profit or loss is profit or 10ss z ;tz,é%gi&gﬂgmgﬂéﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ273—;‘27,%%):1
before taxation. Taxation is not allocated to reportable segments. Inter- BIZAA S EE - MR SERSILEAT
segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. RO - P EEHE %L/(&$7]D 2R
MEIEERE -
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the DEEREHR 2 GFTEREARNEE 2 27T
Group's accounting policies described in note 1. H(RMIEE Frit) —2K ©
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to the HE T =0N8_"F——F+-A=1+—
Group's most senior executive management for the purposes of resource Hit - FARBRTASESSETHERA
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years ended BUDEERRFED PRI ERET 0
31 December 2013 and 2012 is set out below: N
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BB FEIRt ay
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
-B-=% —T-f ZE-zF —F-CF ZE-zF 3
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000
i i Fr T i Fr
(restated) (restated)
(BE5) (BE5)
Revenue from external customers — SMREFIA 539,670 537,243 147,423 149,119 687,093 686,362
Inter-segment revenue DERMA 329 — — 4,839 329 4,839
Reportable segment revenue AFEHRIBRA 539,999 537,243 147,423 153,958 687,422 691,201
Reportable segment profit/(loss) AT 2HAHEe
from operations B/ (B8 27,598 274,931 (5,315) (44,922) 22,283 230,009
Interest income from bank deposits %Efﬂ’ A2 U A 632 127 133 204 765 1,371
Interest expense on loans EFFERY (5,494) (5,185) - (7,561) (5,494) (12,746)
Depreciation and amortisation ERFTEREH
for the year (22,784) (15,324) (1,775) (1,980) (24,559) (17,304)
Reversal of/(provision for) EERRIZRNE
impairment losses recognised in EERR/ (REER
profit or loss in respect of )
— non-current assets —FnPEE - 272,344 - (2,428) - 269,916
— trade and other receivables e (1,049) (351) 10 N (1,039) 20
Reportable segment assets BTERIVEE 1,225,441 1,223,173 83,560 66,548 1,309,001 1,289,721
Additions to non-current segment  FRIERE D SBEEZM
assets during the year 3,884 9,095 1,056 3,667 4,940 12,762
Reportable segment liabilities ~ EF2H2HEE 300,710 335,057 461,675 439,233 762,385 774,290
I
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3 Turnover and segment reporting (Continued) 3 BEXEHRSBEEHER 9
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SDILER2ZIR (&)
(i)  Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, (i) ZAFE®/HBWA - B SEREEZ
assets and liabilities ik
2013 2012
$'000 $'000
—E-=F —E——F
Fr v
(restated)
(B&75)
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue BT 2mMDIBUYA 687,422 691,201
Elimination of inter-segment revenue "*BZF'EJH&MESI% (329) (4,839)
Consolidated turnover N -t 687,093 686,362
Profit 27
Reportable segment profit from operations BT E2HmD A E B 22,283 230,009
Elimination of inter-segment profits 8B 2 R FIHEH — —
Reportable segment profit derived from KEINABEZBETER
Group's external customers and DEBEFI R
consolidated profit before taxation SEAEBTAT 22,283 230,009
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets ATERHBEE 1,309,001 1,289,721
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 2B ZF'EJF W BR TR SR (380,345) (379,756)
Consolidated total assets SEBEEE 928,656 909,965
Liabilities =1
Reportable segment liabilities BYERHDIBERE 762,385 774,290
Elimination of inter-segment payables 8B ZF'?JEHBEIE@% (380,345) (379,756)
382,040 394,534
Deferred tax liabilities FELEFRIBEE 2,938 3,595
Consolidated total liabilities LEMRARE 384,978 398,129
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(b)
(iii)

(c)

90

Turnover and segment reporting (Continued) 3 ERNRSBAHAZR D
Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SBWERZHK (&)
Geographic information (iiiy WEEHR
The following table sets out information about the geographic location TEHYEB () AEBIINATPIWA R () A
of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s SRETEENEREE ([FBEIERDE
fixed assets and intangible assets (“specified non-current assets”). El) 2HEBNEER - BREZHMEMNE IR
The geographic location of customers is based on the country of BERBPKMEFTEBRRME ° 8FIF
establishment of each customer. The geographic location of the specified MEEEZWENERBEEEERMNE
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the assets, in the (WBRETEE) NEZBEBHEE ZZEM
case of fixed assets, and the location of the operation to which they are 2 (WEBEFEEE) ME -
allocated, in the case of intangible assets.
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
PREFWA EBEFRBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—F —EB-=5F —E——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T T 7 T
Hong Kong (place of domicile) — Z&# (F 7i12h) 444,214 463,588 609,887 629,049
Mainland China R A9, 94,220 119,876 31,194 31,055
Philippines JEEE 136,233 92,176 — —
Others E Bz 12,426 10,722 — —
242,879 222,774 31,194 31,055
687,093 686,362 641,081 660,104
Major customers (0 FEZFE

In 2013, the revenue from the Group's largest customer which was
served both by the Hong Kong segment and the mainland China segment
amounted to $137,605,000 or 20% of the Group's total revenue (2012:
$93,144,000 or 14%). The revenue from the Group's five largest customers
amounted to 43% (2012: 39%) of the Group's total revenue.

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from these customers are set
out in note 27(a).

RZE—Z=F REAEEEERPEALD
ETE 2 BRREFHURA A 137,605,000 708k 1k
REB AU A 20% (=T — 4 : 93,144,000
TLE 14%) ° REAREEE AR FHKRALL
AEBR AW ARA3%( ZZ——F : 39%) °

REZEEPZHAMEERB SN M
27(a) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
4  oOther revenue and other net income 4 Rt AR Rl o RHE
2013 2012
—E-=5F —FE—=
$'000 $'000
F T
Other revenue HAb A
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFRZ I BWA 765 1,371
Rental income from investment properties REZEYFEHHES A 6,206 5,872
Rental income from property, plant and equipment R E 4% - #eE R REMAS WA — 3,099
Advertising and promotion subsidy (note 29(a)) B R miniEEREL (M:E29@)) 32,382 23,240
Subsidy from local government in mainland China  # B s i J5 IR 2 %84 3,005 —
Others HAih 296 2,089
42,654 35,671
Other net income Hithh s #58
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEEZFRREAN, (BE) 697 (36)
Net gain on disposal of other tangible assets HEEMWEREE 2FRF
— to a customer (note) — T—AEF () — 6,894
— to fellow subsidiaries (note 29(a)) — FRIZEMB AT (MsE29@0)) — 2,835
— others — Hfb — 1,116
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains 5% (B518) /&R (556) 641
Net gain on disposal of intangible assets HEELEEZFRF 255 4
Others EAh — 19
396 11,473
Note:  Other tangible assets represent returnable bottles and crates used by MisE - HiaBREERMNTRAMEBRRMA
subsidiaries in the PRC. All of the other tangible assets were fully impaired WZERE R R B - FRAEMER
prior to 2012 and the carrying amount was nil. In 2012, some of these BEDR-Z——_FZr28RERER
assets were disposed of to a customer who in return agreed to extinguish HERT -RN_T—_F —LHMBEFL
the Group’s payables to it. The gain represents the amount of trade BENET  REPUREASEHHL
payables derecognised. FEBRIE - BAIEENE 5 RRIBR LR
K2 o
5 Reversal of impairment losses for non-current 5 FRDFEZRKEGRELD

assets

Reversal of impairment losses for non-current assets represents:

FRBEERERIERDE

2013 2012
—E-=5F —E——4F
$'000 $'000
T T
Non-current assets relating to BT BN IERE B E
mainland China operation (note 5(a)) (K$7£5@)) — (2,428)
Non-current assets relating to ERBBEEEBNIERDEE
Hong Kong manufacturing operation (note 5(b)) R )) — 262,206
Investment properties (note 5(c)) wEME (MIFE5() — 10,138
— 269,916
[
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(a)

92

Reversal of impairment losses for non-current 5 JERDEEZRESRERD ®
assets (Continued)
The above reversal of impairment losses is further analysed as follows: A EREEBRERMGFAITIOT ¢
2013 2012
—EB-=fF T4
Note $'000 $'000
PiEE Fr F7t
Provision for impairment losses: WA RS
Fixed assets TEE 13(a) — (2,284)
Other tangible assets HibBREE — (144)
— (2,428)
Reversal of impairment losses: BEEERE
Fixed assets BEEEE 13(a) — 272,344
— 269,916
Mainland China operation (@ HEIRMEERL

The Group noted a decline in demand for its products in mainland
China compared to previous sales forecasts, as a result of fierce market
competition and the operating losses that consequently arose, which were
indications that non-current assets of the operations in mainland China,
comprising mainly the production plant located in Shunde, Guangdong
Province may be impaired. The Group assessed the recoverable amounts
of the cash-generating unit to which these assets belong (“the China
cash-generating unit”) and as a result the carrying amount of the assets in
the China cash-generating unit was written down by $2,428,000 in 2012,
details of which are as follows:

AEBEZ MR PATAHEERR - AR
TISHE AL P BN A EEERNT
KR SIBEIRLEER  ERTENEE
EBHFERBEEN LS ARERBE - FL
FEMBEETIZOREUNEREIRENEE
B o AEBEFGEREEEMBNRSEE
B ([hEEREAEESM ) /R RE S ERT
AR —FE— —FRE R BER S A E B
BERME(E2,428,0007C * FIEWT

Provisions for impairment losses: BEEERE

Fixed assets EE&E
Other tangible assets Hih BB =

(2,284)
(144)

(2,428)

In 2013, the Group assessed the recoverable amounts and concluded
that no further impairment losses nor reversal of previously recognised
impairment losses are required as at 31 December 2013.

The estimates of recoverable amount were based on the assets’ fair
values less costs to sell, determined by reference to the observable
market prices for similar assets. In estimating this amount, the Group
engaged an independent firm of surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors
Limited, who have among their staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors.

M_T—=F ANEBFEAIRESHE 5
HrEmAN _—_E—=F+-_A=1+—HK
miE—SRERE  MEFERBILIEER
ZRERIE -

A E S B EE DIRIBEEEN A AERE
HERA - NEUBENABREMISERE
DEMEE - AEEREAT —BLAER
A MEITRAEMARAR  HETZ2HA
BENEMBENEXRSERMAHLEHE -
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5 Reversal of impairment losses for non-current 5 ERDEEZREGRERD ®
assets (Continued)

(b) Hong Kong manufacturing operation (b) BBEEXEK

The Group's non-current assets relating to the manufacturing operations
in Hong Kong comprise mainly the production plant, an office building
and a warehouse in Hong Kong (“the HK cash-generating unit”). The
Group had recognised impairment losses of $716,167,000 in respect of
the HK cash-generating unit prior to 2012 in order to reduce its carrying
amount to the recoverable amount, which had been determined based
on value-in-use calculations, as the Group could not determine fair value
less costs of disposal reliably because there was no basis for making a
reliable estimate of the amount obtainable from the sale of certain assets
belonging to the HK cash-generating unit in an arm'’s length transaction
between knowledgeable and willing parties.

In 2012, there was a change in the estimates used to determine the HK
cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount as the Group was able to
determine fair value less costs of disposal based on a reliable estimate
of the amount obtainable from the sale in an arm’s length transaction
between knowledgeable and willing parties for most of the assets
belonging to the HK cash-generating unit, due to recent comparable
transaction data becoming available. The Group determined the
recoverable amount based on the fair value less costs of disposal and
reversed a part of the previously recognised impairment losses in respect
of the HK cash-generating unit to the extent that the revised carrying
amount of individual assets did not exceed the smaller of respective fair
value less costs of disposal as at 31 December 2012 and what would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

The estimates of the cash-generating unit's fair value less costs of disposal
were determined by reference to the observable market prices for similar
assets. In estimating this amount, the Group engaged an independent firm
of surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who have among their
staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

NEBEEBEBEEEB 2 IERDEEETE
BREBNEERE  BAKEERAE ([&F
BESEESBMN]) - AEEER=_ZT—=F
ZRMEBER S EESEUERARDEER
HE{EZE AT E 5 58 2 5 B E5 18 716,167,000
Lo AARNEBETHEENERERBALTZ
BN S e A k= i heya sy
EBNNATEEMSNEE  FTUEAEE
REEAT S AR AR ERAHERA - Al
el e EERESFEAEETFEMET

E-Z——F AEERKREEEERSE
EBNARESE T EEANE - AANR
HEEERZHEEHRSE  AEFEEER
ENSEREBALTZEOAFZSH » A5
MR EEAREEEBUZ KBNEE
FBMmess  MEEAABEREHEMA -
AEEERAABREHEXNAUAEETE S
W AESBMMIREE%E  WEBEMNZ
AR AR EBEE AR EELETTERR
ErMBARNHER-E——F+-A=+—H
RARBEREHEEKRA  MERNEEERTE
FEAERDREBENESRAEE -

RefESUNRAEREHEKRAR G
DRBEBEUEEN A BRTIGERIEREM
EE - ASEERT —BIAEMQR - A
BITAEMBRAR  EET 2HhAEEN
BREENEXGERMFUEHE -

2012
—E—-—fF
$'000
Tt
Reversal of impairment losses: BEEERE :
Fixed assets EE&E 262,206

In 2013, the Group assessed the recoverable amount and concluded
that no further impairment losses nor reversal of previously recognised
impairment losses are required as at 31 December 2013.

R-F—=F AREFEHEATKREOSE 5
HEmAR_E—=F+_-_A=+—HK
HE—HRERE - MERRDLRCER
ZRIEEE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
5 Reversal of impairment losses for non-current 5 JERDEEZRESRERD ®
assets (Continued)
(c) Investment properties (c) ®EWE
The Group had recognised impairment losses of $12,000,000 in respect REBOCR -_E——FZRIMHEKREMER
of its investment properties prior to 2012 in order to reduce their carrying R T BB &8 12,000,000 7T BA R A B BRI &
amount to the recoverable amount which had been determined based on ZrEIE5E o A E B IIREBEA L ER
fair value less costs of disposal. KIHERAMEE -
In 2012, the Group noted an increase in the investment properties’ HE-ZT——F AEBEFEIREMENA
recoverable amount, mainly arising from an increase in the fair value WEEFEEN  TEREALBEREHEER
less costs of disposal, which exceeded the relevant carrying amount. ARG - BB T ABMEREE - At 0 K
Hence, the Group reversed previously recognised impairment losses on SEMLET CEEENEAEN T ——F
the investment properties to the extent that the revised carrying amount +T-A=+T—"BZAREREHESEHMA A
did not exceed the smaller of the fair value less costs of disposal as MECETBTFERRIBRERE  #
at 31 December 2012 and what would have been determined had no BT 2 AIFER IR B Y2 2 B8 -
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
The estimates of the investment properties’ fair value less costs of REYWEN DR BEREHEERARZ G TR
disposal were determined by reference to the observable market prices ERUSENIERTEERERXR=EMmME
for similar assets. In estimating this amount, the Group engaged an T AEEBRT B AZMAR) - g
independent firm of surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who TRAZERARAR  HETIZHBBREBHE
have among their staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. MBenEEe 8RS -
6 Profit before taxation 6 [IREIEHR
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREA BRI (5t A) T5IE
(crediting): B:
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
(restated)
(BE5)
(@)  Finance costs (a) Bi%EH
Interest expense on bank loan ARAFRNEEEE
wholly repayable within five years ZIRITERN BT 4,205 12,746
Interest expense on loan from an intermediate ARAFRNEEEER
holding company wholly repayable ZHRNERAE]
within five years BRI S 1,289 —
Amortisation of transaction costs for bank loan RITERR A2 #5H 755 410
Bank charges RITEH 142 263
6,391 13,419
(b)  Staff costs (b) BT HM
Retirement costs RIS A
— Defined contribution retirement plans — EREHIURAKETE 6,362 6,782
— Defined benefit retirement plan — TERER AR KRGS
(note 24(a)(v)) (FI3E24()(v)) 6,769 5,974
13,131 12,756
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREAMET 106,631 104,724
119,762 117,480
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
6  Profit before taxation (Continued) 6 [REMN @
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRBAIEFIC R (5t A) T5IE
(crediting): (Continued) g : @)
2013 2012
—E-=5F —_E——F
$'000 $'000
Fr T
(restated)
(2 E%)
(c) Other items (c) Hiig B
Amortisation iE
— Land lease premium (note 13(a)) — HE L FIE (MiFE13(a) 2,624 3,277
— Other tangible assets — Hih B EE — 838
Depreciation (note 13(a)) e (MiEE13())
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - IS KRR 19,210 10,730
— Investment properties — REWME 2,725 2,409
Cost of inventories (note 16) FERA (FFE16) 394,540 390,219
Operating lease charges: KEHREEM
minimum lease payments RERERMK
— Land and buildings — T REE 1,958 2,830
— Other assets — HMEE 254 —
Rental receivable from investment properties KEYHEZHBSWA
less direct outgoings of $2,976,000 R EEE M 2,976,000 7T
(2012: $2,949,000) (Z=Z——4%;2,949,0007T) (3,230) (2,923)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET B &
— Provision for the year — REFERE 3,353 3,314
— Under-provision in respect of prior year — EFERETR 140 343
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment EUE 5 Kk HE AR
losses) for trade and other receivables ZREER, CRERE)
(note 17(b)) (Fg7E17(0)) 1,039 (20)
7 Taxation in the consolidated income statement 7 k8RR ZAER
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) HZREWFEKRZFBEIE -
represents:
2013 2012
—E-=£ —E——F
$'000 $'000
Fr T
(restated)
(2 E%)
Current tax — Outside Hong Kong AHAFIIE — FBLUI
Provision for the year REERAE (31) (20)
Deferred tax (note 25(a)) EZEHE (KisE25(a))
Origination and reversal of temporary differences i8> HIR RO 3,572 (3,013
Income tax credit/(charge) Frig#iat A (i) 3,541 (3,033)
[
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7 Taxation in the consolidated income statement 7 HFaka8RZHAEBM ©
(Continued)
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) #HmEWERZAMERIE " (@)
represents: (Continued)
The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company and other Hong Kong AARREMBEENBRATNEEMES
subsidiaries was 16.5% (2012: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits 16.5% (ZZF—=F : 16.5%)  NQ B R EA
Tax has been made for the Company and other Hong Kong subsidiaries BEVEM B R T AR R HIEE B BE AR
either because the accumulated tax losses brought forward exceed the FEEERR B SRR RIEEE W
estimated assessable profits for the year or the entities sustained losses EBFETIEL BHE -
for taxation purposes.
The statutory tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established in the PRC AR BIRK SZ BB B A BB A TE TR A 25% (=
was 25% (2012: 25%). No provision for current taxation has been made T——F 1 25%) o SR BERIHKTER
for the subsidiaries established in the PRC because the entities sustained TR EEREER R ERANEEHRE
losses for taxation purposes. VEH B -
Provision for current tax outside Hong Kong for 2013 and 2012 represented CE =N T ZFEEFEBUINET
a withholding tax levied at 10% on interest income earned in the PRC by a BEREE—HIFEFECEEROMBEAR -
subsidiary which is a non-PRC resident according to the relevant rules and R BB R RAER A E R E AT RS
regulations of the PRC. B S U ATEIR Y 10% FEFRFTS L ©
(b) Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/charge and (b)) FEH (3t A) ZHESHBRZHA
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: & :
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——-%F
$'000 $'000
Fr v
(restated)
(BE7))
Profit before taxation R A% Bl & A 22,283 230,009
Notional tax on profit before taxation calculated WA BET AR 2 EAR R
at the rates applicable to the tax jurisdictions PRI B FTE 2 AR HIE
concerned 3,264 34,445
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses DAHIRAS 2 IR & 2,798 3,917
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue IERTRIMA Z FRIBRE (107) (403)
Tax effect of contribution to retirement benefit plan  RAGRIETEE R 2 Fila & (749) (1,696)
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary differences  REtIEILEF IBIER < T I8 E8
not recognised for deferred tax purposes REREER 2RI E 3,226 7,574
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously J& R SE R AR FER BB FS B 18
unrecognised ZBEE (11,973) (37,898)
Others Efth — (2,906)
Actual tax (credit)/charge Fris# (Gt A) /S (3,541) 3,033
[ ]
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(BRABIETIN - BERAEEFHEHE)

8 Directors’' remuneration 8 EEMe&
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong BIEEBRTMEOIE161GER ETRANZHE
Kong Companies Ordinance and the requirements of the Listing Rules is TEWBEIEEMe T
as follows:
2013
—E-=f
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e FERER iEfRA BRESHN a5
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive director HITES
Ramon G. Torralba HEE (RZFT—=F
(appointed on 15 January 2013) —Rt+RAEZA) 2,375 - - 2,375
Peter K.Y, Tam Bk (R-T—=F
(resigned on 15 January 2013) —R+RBET) 335 — 56 391
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang BB — — - —
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SR — — — —
Chan Wen Meg, May (Michelle) REX - - — —
Teruyuki Daino RERE - - - -
Shobu Nishitani BAHE — — — -
Roberto N. Huang #ER - - - -
Takeshi Wada Takeshi Wada
(appointed on 19 April 2013) (R=ZB—=F
MA+NBEZE) - - — —
Taro Matsunaga MAAB (R=F—=F
(resigned on 19 April 2013) mA+ARET) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
David K.P, Li TEHE - — — - -
WS.Ng RUEZ — - - — —
Carmelo L. Santiago b= — - - — —
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno — - - — —
Adrian M. K. Li ZRE - - - - —
— 2,710 - 56 2,766

The executive director waived his entitlement to his director’s fees. All
of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.

HITEECHMEEBS - EIFNTESER

BYFERTETCHEEMEME
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8 Directors’ remuneration (Continued) 8 EEME ©
2012
—E-—F
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses contributions Total
e e h2at []=peza RIKSHT G
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T T T Tt
Executive director TES
Peter K.Y. Tam ERR — 2,037 — 315 2,352
Non-executive directors FUTES
Ramon S. Ang 232974 — — — _ _
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SER = = = = =
Taro Matsunaga NG YN — — - - -
Chan Wen Meg, May (Michelle) REX — — — — —
Teruyuki Daino REFR= — — _ _ _
Shobu Nishitani AT — — — — =
Roberto N. Huang 2ER (R=2—=F
(appointed on 8 November 2012)  +— A\ REZ(E) — — - - -
Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr.
(resigned on 8 November 2012) (R=—Z—=F
+—AN\BEH) — - - - -
Benjamin P Defensor. Jr. UK (R=T—=F
(resigned on 8 November 2012) +—A\BHE&E) = — - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
David K.P. Li FTEE — — — — —
WS.Ng REEF = = = = =
Carmelo L. Santiago M= = = = = =
Adrian M. K. Li TRE = — — _ _
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno (R=ZE——4
(appointed on 8 November 2012)  +—A/\REE(E) = — — - -
— 2,037 — 315 2,352
The executive director waived his entitlement to his director’s fees. All WITESCHEEES - IAEIERTES K
of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors B ITESEREEMANS -
waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.
I
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9 Individuals with highest emoluments 9 HMemEEZAR
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2012: one) is a BEEeHFhBABR  —F (ZF2—=F: —
director whose emoluments are included in note 8. The aggregate of the %) BEE (KM ENME8EEE) - Hi
emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2012: four) individuals are as WE (ZE——F : %) MemazABZ
follows: & sagEamnT

2013 2012

—E-=5F —E——F

$'000 $'000

Tt Tt

Salaries and other emoluments i MoERL 6,461 5,777

Retirement scheme contributions RIRSHK 973 863

7,434 6,640
The emoluments of the four (2012: four) individuals with the highest WE(ZZE——F : %) Mema s ABZ

emoluments are within the following bands: e atranT

2013 2012

—E—-=F —E——-F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AEEE ANEHE

$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000 7T — 2

$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7© 2 2

$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000 7T 2 —

10 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the 10 #*AFEEEEAEERT

company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company RABIE=REAEGGEBNBEERT
includes a profit of $39,005,000 (2012 (restated): loss of $120,042,000) 39,005,000 (ZE—=F (B&E%) : EE
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note 120,042,0007T) B & ARR G5 (b
26(a)). 7 26(a)) °
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11 Other comprehensive income 11 HtiZEkKES
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income Hi 2 Em &M THIETE
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——fF
Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax  Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount effect  amount amount effect amount
BEASE BEVE REASE KRUNeE WEYE BUKSE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Fr T T Fr
(note 25(a)) (note 25(a))
(K5t 25(a)) (FI7E25())

(restated)  (restated)  (restated)
(BEY) (BEYW) (BEF)

Exchange differences on EXES :
translation of:
— financial statements of —REGINB AT
subsidiaries outside IBHRRAEE
Hong Kong ZENE5 (11,505) - (11,505) 245 — 245
— monetary items that form — RERNEERHTB AR
part of the net investment in ZREMEHIER fES
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong ZIERES 11,387 — 11,387 (84) — (84)
(118) — (118) 161 = 161
Actuarial gains and losses of ERBEMERGTE
defined benefit retirement plan ZIRERFREE
(note 24(a)(v)) (Pt 5E 24(a)(v)) 9,051 (2,915) 6,136 (15,395) 2,871 (12,524)
Other comprehensive income Hib2EMa 8,933 (2,915) 6,018 (15,234) 2,871 (12,363)
12 Earnings per share 12 EERE?
(@) Basic earnings per share (@) ERELRER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit GRERBRDBBERARAIEZTE AR
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $26,010,000 (2012 iy 2 F) 526,010,000t ( ZZF— —F (B
(restated): $237,655,000) and on 373,570,560 (2012: 373,570,560) ordinary F ) : 237,6550007T) RAFEANE #
shares, being the number of ordinary shares in issue throughout the year. 172373570560 E @B (=T — —4F :
373,570,560 i EimAR ) 5HE o
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) ®WEZBRER
Diluted earnings per share is not presented as the Company did not have e RABFWARTIIE - BARRIE
dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years presented. BEEMEEMEELBRTE -
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13
(a)

Fixed assets 13 BEERE
The Group (@) &&=
Property, plant and equipment Interests in
NE - BERRR leasehold land
Land and Machinery, held for own
buildings equipment, use under Total
held for  furniture Motor Construction Investment  operating fixed
own use and fixtures  vehicles inprogress  Sub-total properties leases assets
EREHET
BALH #E RE- BAmEEH it
REE GARESE BE ERIE At REMEASLHER BTEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T T T
Cost: B
At 1January 2012 R-Z——%—A—H 1,009,554 1,694,823 16,846 3N 2,721,594 121,555 122,554 2,965,703
Exchange adjustments X A% 93) (172) (12) — (277) — (1) (288)
Additions =1 614 8,895 117 1,965 11,591 m 29 11,731
Transfer from construction in progress &E#&BERZ TR 1,528 437 — (1,965) — — — —
Disposals & — (20,383) (2,974) — (23,357) — — (23,357)
At 31 December 2012 WZZE——F+-F=1+—H 101,603 1,683,600 13,977 371 2,709,551 121,666 122572 2,953,789
Accumulated amortisation, e EREEESE
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2012 WNZZ2——F5—f—H 862,011 1,626,006 16,766 371 2,505,154 M,417 29,461 2,576,032
Exchange adjustments & 5, A% 93) (170) (12) — (275) — — (275)
Charge for the year (note 6(c)) FERFEZ (KizE6(0) 4,623 6,043 64 — 10,730 2,409 3277 16,416
Impairment losses (note 5) BEEE (EE5) 1,665 619 = - 2,284 — = 2284
Reversal of impairment losses (note 5) B BEE (FizE5) (261,201) = = —  (261,201) (10,138) (1,005 (272,344)
Written back on disposals HERE = (20,028) (2.974) — (23,002) — — (23,002)
At 31 December 2012 R-Z——F+-A=+—-H 607005 1612470 13,844 371 2233690 33,688 31,733 2299111
Net book value: FREFE
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—H 404598 71,130 133 — 475,861 87,978 90,839 654,678
Cost: A
At 1January 2013 R-ZE—=%5—F—H 1,011,603 1,683,600 13,977 371 2,709,551 121,666 122,572 2,953,789
Exchange adjustments JE 5 A% 13,858 23,251 269 12 37,390 - 1,601 38,991
Additions NE 587 3,648 - 602 4,837 103 - 4,940
Transfer from construction in progress E# B T2 36 535 75 (646) - - - -
Disposals & (4) (1,956) (3,512) - (5,472) - - (5,472)
At 31 December 2013 WZE—=F+=A=+—H 1,026,080 1,709,078 10,809 339 2,746,306 121,769 124,173 2,992,248
Accumulated amortisation, 28 EREEESE
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1January 2013 R=—F—=%—F—H 607,005 1,612,470 13,844 371 2,233,690 33,688 31,733 2,299,111
Exchange adjustments B 5 A% 13,858 23,250 269 12 37,389 - 595 37,984
Charge for the year (note 6(c)) FERFX (FizE6(C) 12,572 6,494 144 - 19,210 2,725 2,624 24,559
Transfer from construction in progress & @R T2 - a4 - (44) - - - -
Written back on disposals HEEE (@) (1,784) (3,511) - (5,299) - - (5,299)
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=F+-A=+—H 633431 1,640,474 10,746 339 2,284,990 36,413 34,952 2,356,355
Net book value: BRERE :
At 31 December 2013 RZZ—=F+-A=+—H 392,649 68,604 63 — 461,316 85,356 89,221 635,893
|
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13 Fixed assets (Continued) 13 EBEESEE (&)
(b) The Company (b) &QF
) Interests in
Property, plant and equipment leasehold
X EERRE land held
Landand  Machinery, for own
buildings  equipment, use under
held for furniture Motor operating Total
ownuse and fixtures vehicles Sub-total leases fixed assets
ERERET
BRLH  HE- R BRMEEN
REE GHRER 1] & HEIHER AHETEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000
i it it i T i
Cost; B
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——%—f—H 496,328 958,186 4,907 1,459,421 74134 1,533,555
Additions NE 368 8416 17 8,901 — 8,901
Disposals HE = (18,600) (472) (19,072) = (19,072)
At 31 December 2012 WZE-——%+-A=1t-H 496,696 948,002 4,552 1,449,250 74134 1,523,384
Accumulated amortisation, 2 HERRESE:
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2012 RZE——%—f—H 402,694 889,501 4,827 1,297,022 12,713 1,309,735
Charge for the year ERFET 2976 5,991 64 9,031 2,247 11,278
Reversal of impairment losses REEBEAE (248,011) - — (248,011) (1,005) (249,016)
Written back on disposals HERM — (18,505) (472) (18,977) — (18,977)
At 31 December 2012 W-B-——&+-A=1-H 157,659 876,987 4,419 1,039,065 13,955 1,053,020
Net book value: BEEEE .
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——%+-A=1—H 339,037 71,015 133 410,185 60,179 470,364
Cost: KA
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—F—H 496,696 948,002 4,552 1,449,250 74,134 1,523,384
Additions NE 385 3,319 - 3,704 - 3,704
Disposals HE — (391) (1,508) (1,899) - (1,899)
At 31 December 2013 RZZE-—=%+-A=1—H 497,081 950,930 3,044 1,451,055 74,134 1,525,189
Accumulated amortisation, 258 WERRESE
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%F—A—H 157,659 876,987 4,419 1,039,065 13,955 1,053,020
Charge for the year FREY 10,381 5,819 69 16,269 1,744 18,013
Written back on disposals HERD — (381) (1,508) (1,889) — (1,889)
At 31 December 2013 R-EB-=#+-A=1-H 168,040 882,425 2980 1,053,445 15,699 1,069,144
Net book value: BEEEE .
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%+-A=1—H 329,041 68,505 64 397,610 58,435 456,045

—
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13
(c)

(d)

Fixed assets (Continued)

13 BEERE (&)

The analysis of net book value of properties is as (c) YIEREFEZIMWOT :
follows:
The Group The Company
rEE b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F —E-=F —E——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Medium term leases REFRE
— in Hong Kong — &% 536,439 552,755 387,476 399,216
— outside Hong Kong — BN 30,787 30,660 — —
567,226 583,415 387,476 399,216
Representing: oM
Land and buildings held BERtTHMNEE
for own use 392,649 404,598 329,041 339,037
Investment properties LB 85,356 87,978 — —
Interests in leasehold land FREHETERAmMEE
held for own use R E iR
under operating leases 89,221 90,839 58,435 60,179
567,226 583,415 387,476 399,216
Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (d) KEHETZEETEE

The Group leases out investment properties which are located at Nos.
9-11 Shing Wan Road, Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with
an option to renew each lease upon expiry at which time all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are receivable as follows:

AEBRBLERE/UNEEYD BHAREX
BN ZIREMELE - HOFH—K
R_E=F AEERIMBREREY
[E B S B R P fRX - BRI &
BRAES -

A S AR 57 A S T 1 B 5
AEHAEDT

2013 2012
—E-=£ —E——F
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Investment properties REYE
Within 1 year —F R 6,760 4,211
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEEAFH 2,791 442
9,551 4,653
[ ]

103



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R = HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
13 Fixed assets (Continued) 13 EBEE#EE (&)
(e) The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2013 is (@) ®EWENR _—_ZE—=F+_-_A=+—H1H
$278,570,000 (2012: $236,730,000), which is based on a valuation using 2N {EAE278,570,000C (—ZF — —4F :
the investment approach which considers the capitalisation of net rental 236,730,0007T) © AR B EHEITHIE - BIK
income receivable from existing tenancies and the reversionary value AW A NEREE KBV NZEMERE
of the property after tenancies expire by reference to market sales EREE (2EEATE FRBEAKZS) 2k
transactions. The valuation was carried out by an independent firm of A (HETHRBI A ERTABITAZRA
surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who have among their RATHET EREiEESIEMmEen
staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with valuation H¥es EEERENMENERAS
experience in the location and category of the property being valued. hEAS
The fair value measurements are categorised as Level 3 valuations under AABEHERBEESHBREERE13%A
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value FEEFEMERZ ZMARBEEEED
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified MAFE=AHE - BAABEFESBEZE
is determined with reference to the observability and significance of the IR 2E N T EE R AT ESIE 2 AT ER
inputs used in the valuation technigue as follows: MREEHEBET
— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. — F—RIHE - EFERE R ASE
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or (BIRFTEHRBEEXGENER
liabilities at the measurement date TG REFHERE) srE2E2 AR E

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs — FoREE: FHRE KRR ASE
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using (BNRgEERFE—F 2 ] EBREm A
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for ) B RFRAEARTAERE A
which market data are not available BrtE2 B E - Tr]ERE ASE

BETISEE 2 8 AEE

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant — FEAHE - RAEAT A BREE
unobservable inputs AEZARE

The significant unobservable input in the fair value measurement is the FTERAREMEAZER T BERERE AT

discount rate, which ranged from 2.7% to 3.0%. HE - BEA27%ZE3.0% -

[ ]
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14 Intangible assets 14 HLRE
The Group The Company
r5E O
Club Club
Trademarks debentures Total Trademarks debentures Total

wE  efEER &t BE  efifEER &t

$'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000

i i T i T i
Cost: A
At 1 January 2012 WZE——%—f—H 39,116 6,363 45,479 39,116 5,031 44147
Disposals HE — (660) (660) — — —
Exchange adjustments [ 5 B — 1 1 — — —
At 31 December 2012 WZE-——#+-A=1—-H 39,116 5704 44,820 39,116 5031 44147
Accumulated amortisation REBHERAESE

and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2012 WZE——%—f—H 39,116 654 39,770 39,116 — 39,116
Written back on disposals HEREM — (376) (376) — — —
At 31 December 2012 RZE——%+-A=1—H 39,116 278 39,394 39,116 — 39,116
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2012 RZE——%+-f=1+—-H = 5426 5426 = 5,031 5031
Cost: BA
At 1 January 2013 W-E—=f-f-H 39,116 5,704 44,820 39,116 5,031 44,147
Disposals ik - (250) (250) - (250) (250)
Exchange adjustments & 5 R - 21 21 - - -
At 31 December 2013 WZE—=%+-f=1+-H 39,116 5,475 44,59 39,116 4,781 43,897
Accumulated impairment losses: it RHERE
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%-F—-H 39,116 278 39,394 39,116 - 39,116
Exchange adjustments A% - 9 9 - - —
At 31 December 2013 RZE-—=%+-A=1—H 39,116 287 39,403 39,116 - 39,116
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+-f=1-H - 5,188 5,188 - 4,781 4,781
[
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15 Investments in subsidiaries 15 MMEBLRER
The Company
b NN
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—4F
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Unlisted investments, at cost JEETRRD (FRAXAN) 603,249 603,249
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A BIBRIA 1,171,609 1,167,616
1,774,858 1,770,865
Less: Impairment losses B R E SR (1,149,906) (1,149,906)
624,952 620,959
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no I A R AR IR RIS - 2R IOZA
fixed repayment terms. The entire balance is expected to be recovered EEENE - HH2EHEHRNBRA—FRIK
after more than one year. [@ o
The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the TRHEFIARARMBEHRNBARIESR :
Company:
Proportion of
Place of Issued share ownership
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by Principal
Name of company operation capital Company Subsidiary activity
MR, BRITRE FiERERS
AR BB AR i B & A LN Fff 8 A = TEEK
Best Investments British Virgin 50,000 100% — Investment
International Inc. Islands ordinary shares holding
of US$1 each
ERBELRS 50,000 A& TEER
BRAEE
1ET 7 Rk
60,000,000 100% =
preference shares
of US$1 each
60,000,000 A%
SkEE
1ETT 2 BER
Hongkong Brewery Hong Kong 100 100% — Dormant
Limited (note () (BH#E ) ordinary shares
of $1 each
BB 100 % gz
BREE
1702 EfAR
Ravelin Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 100% — Property
ordinary shares holding
of $1 each
s 10,000,000 A% FEWE
BiREE
1702 &AL
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15 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) 15 MEBLTRER
Proportion of
Place of Issued share ownership
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by Principal
Name of company operation capital Company Subsidiary activity
3y Ay OBITRE FiERERS
ACIEL AR i B &R AN E] MEAT FTEXEK
San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited Hong Kong 18,000 92.989% — Investment
class “"A" shares holding
of US$500 each
ENE (BR) BRAFR BB 18,000 A% AR
BREE
5003E7T2 (A) IR
1,000 100% —
class “B” shares
of $1 each
1,000 %
BEE
172 (B) Ak
Guangzhou San Miguel PRC Registered capital: — 70% Distribution
Brewery Company Limited US$36,507,000 of beer
("GSMB") (note (ii))
M A= R E B R A 7] H A SHES IR
(TR A 77 1) (B & (i) 36,507,000 357
San Miguel Shunde Holdings Hong Kong 200,000 92% — Investment
Limited ordinary shares holding
of $10 each
BB 200,000 A REER
FREE
1072 &R
San Miguel (Guangdong) PRC Registered capital: — 100% Manufacture
Brewery Company Limited US$39,933,000 and sale of
("SMGB") (note (iii)) beer
£ (ER) BBEER AR A A B K SHES )R
(MR 1) (B =% (i) 39,933,000 7C
Notes: Bﬁgf .

0]

(ii)

Hongkong Brewery Limited ("HKBL") has not traded since incorporation but
it established a joint venture, namely Global Brews Hong Kong Limited, in
Hong Kong on 18 March 2011 with an authorised share capital of $10,000
divided into 1,000 shares at $10 each. HKBL holds a 50% equity interest in
this entity. As at the date of the approval of these financial statements, the
joint venture has not commenced its operations yet.

GSMB is an equity joint venture formed between the Company'’s subsidiary,
San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited, and Guangzhou Brewery. According to the
joint venture agreement, GSMB has an operating period of 30 years expiring
on 29 November 2020.

SMGB is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise with an operating period of 50
years expiring on 4 August 2042.

(i)

(iii)

Hongkong Brewery Limited ([HKBL]) &
ARSI - —ERA#ITEMNRS
BR=ZZ2——F=A+N\BREBRLT
—FE4 & Global Brews Hong Kong Limited
B& & A F (FUEE R /410,0007T © £
1,000 1% & A% T 1B 10 7T A& 9 48 K ) © HKBL
FEZEREY 2 A TIRE - HEARMB
HERMEZH - ZEERREBE KRB E
X7

BIMENEBBRRARTIRAR B R
AN (FEER) AR F E=E M R ER
K zEBERERAE - REAEREW
B RARZEEHR=TEF RIT
ZFE+—AZF+NBER -

B0 (BER) BEAERARDARINAHE

¥ BAKEMLTF  R-_TWN_F
NAMHE &R
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(BRABHETIN

BEEEHE)

15 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued 15 MELTEES (&
The following table lists out the information relating to SMGB, the only TR BEENERZER £ HERR
subsidiary of the Group which has material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). REBUE—FEEEAFEREZDOHNE A
The summarised financial information presented below represents the 7] o AR B 75 & R 25T A 7
amounts before any inter-company elimination. PSR £358 o
2013 2012
—E-=5 —E——F
$'000 $'000
FT T
NCI percentage FEERRER B L 8% 8%
Current assets MENEE 36,949 23,937
Non-current assets EMBEE 33,164 33,063
Current liabilities REBE (72,749) (56,649)
Non-current liabilities IERBEE (369,611) (369,510)
Net liabilities BEFE (372,247) (369,159)
Carrying amount of NCI IR RS BRI (E (29,780) (29,533)
Revenue ION 86,143 74,994
Profit/(loss) for the year FEAF, (FHE) 8,331 (13,246)
Total comprehensive income ¢F KRR 8,331 (13,246)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DIREFEER RS AR (EE) 666 (1,060)
Cash flows from operating activities CEERE IR RE 11,188 (54,870)
Cash flows from investing activities KREEKZBRERE (794) 4,750
Cash flows from financing activities MEESH RS RE (53) 50,788
16 Inventories 16 KW
The Group The Company
AEE ¥ NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E—=F —E-=F —E—=fF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tt Tt
Products in hand and in process I H7ZE G RIS 37,228 38,796 29,900 31,215
Materials and supplies Wl K e 21,559 17,266 15,911 14,658
58,787 56,062 45,811 45,873
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as ERZAEY 2 EESEOMOT ¢
follows:
The Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E:—=5F —E——F
$'000 $'000
Fr T
(restated)
(BE5)
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFERAE 394,540 389,113
Write down of inventories FEMR — 1,106
Total (note 6(c)) 4z (MFsE6(c)) 394,540 390,219
[
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17 Trade and other receivables 177 BEESIRHEMIER
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F
$'000 $'000
FT T
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BRTH 81,947 77,992
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (note 17(b)) W REREE (MIEE17(0) (11,227) (10,525)
70,720 67,467
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments Hih U ER - 12e RIEft A 16,452 15,259
87,172 82,726
The Company
¥ N
2013 2012
—E-=F —F2——F
$'000 $'000
T FT
Trade receivables fEUE SR8 63,973 62,709
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (note 17(b)) B RIEBEREHE (FURE17(0) (925) (526)
63,048 62,183
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments EM R - e RIETFIE 11,138 11,728
74,186 73,911

The amount of the Group'’s and the Company’s deposits and prepayments
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses after more than
one year is $1,262,000 (2012: $1,254,000) and $814,000 (2012: $664,000)
respectively. All of the other trade receivables, other debtors, deposits and
prepayments are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses

within one year.

REBRAQNBEGTZR —FEATRE
BRAITEOESNBNRESES A
1,262,0007C (=& — =4 : 1,254,00070) &
814,0007C (—ZFE——4F : 664,0007T) ° FiH
HEmpElE ZREREMEREE  Ze kE
NRBBAE—FNRRETEER -
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17 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 17 BERBRSIBEEMER (9
The Group and the Company held the following collateral over trade AREBRARRELEEHREWRE FRERF
receivables at the end of the reporting period. BUTHEAR
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=5 —E——4F —E-=5F —E——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT FT Tt Tt
Buildings L7/ES 5,971 29,915 4,050 16,250
Cash deposits WEFK 4,725 6,175 1,655 1,096
Bank guarantees SRITHEIR 500 500 500 500
Cash deposits disclosed above and note 17(b) are included in the Group’s LA £ KB 5E17(0) PR IR £ 77 5 51 AR S
and the Company's other creditors and accrued charges and are expected B RAATTERZR—F RN EMER
to be settled after more than one year, as disclosed in note 21. BRIBRTEIRER - R 21 5 -
The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the trade receivables AEER A KR RRE T EKE SRE
is mitigated by the collateral in the amounts indicated above. The value WEERR - EFWEBERRDENR_-Z
of the buildings collateral represents the estimated market value of the —=F+_A=+—HEOHE-
buildings as at 31 December 2013.
(@) Ageing analysis (@ BRERD
The ageing of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) at the FEUE 5 8RIE (IR RIZRE®) WEERZ
end of the reporting period is as follows: BRERIOT
The Group The Company
TEE ¥ NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-=fF T4 —E—-=f —E——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T F
Current AE|HA 52,104 51,234 51,703 50,827
Less than 1 month past due BEAR LR —EA 9,152 9,361 8,466 9,140
1to 3 months past due BHHA—Z=={8H 2,702 1,980 2,016 1,229
More than 3 months but BEBEA=EA
less than 12 months past due =2+ _1@A 2,940 2,668 863 957
More than 12 months pastdue  @BHIHZ A+ _{EA 3,822 2,224 — 30
70,720 67,467 63,048 62,183
According to the Group’s credit policy set out in note 27(a), the general BB 27@) AEENEERR - —
credit period is payment by the end of the month following the month BEERHE AMNERN AHTAREIE -
in which sales took place. Therefore, all the current balances above are It EAFT B ARG TEEZAEER
within two months from the invoice date. &8 A REIE -
——
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17 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 177 BRESEAMERER (@
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EWESZKREBEZRHEEBR

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade receivables directly (see note 1(i)(i).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as
follows:

BREWE ZRENREBREBBERT
8% BRIEA KBS MEUGE EE R DA
ERBERT REBESERERKESK
RS (FEEE30)3)

FRRERBBEOESHMT -

The Group The Company
AEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=fF — T —_4F —E-=fF =

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T FT Tt Tt
At 1 January n—A—H 10,525 11,216 526 1,057
Exchange adjustments PE H AR 313 (4) — —
Impairment loss recognised BEEETER 1,296 432 1,239 400
Impairment loss written back B EIE B ] (257) (452) (190) (49)
Uncollectible amounts written off $H447~ Ak B4 %8 (650) (667) (650) (882)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 11,227 10,525 925 526

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables
of $16,134,000 (2012: $12,878,000) and $2,974,000 (2012: $655,000)
respectively were individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables were balances in dispute with customers or related
to customers that were in financial difficulties and management assessed
that only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of $11,227,000 (2012:
$10,525,000) and $925,000 (2012: $526,000) were recognised by the Group
and the Company respectively. The Group and the Company hold the
following collateral over these balances:

R-ZT—=F+-"A=+—H KEEEAK
NAEHEERE HERTEE A 16,134,000 T (=
T——4F 1 12,878,0007T) F2,974,0007T (=
T——4F : 655,0007) ZERFETRE - @
BB EEIERANZELMR L ERE -
MiEEREF(E - RASHZRER AKE -
AR EBAAR T D BIE11,227,000 7T (=
T — —4F :10,525,0007T) K 925,0007T (=
T— 4 1 526,0007T) RIRZBERME - K&
NS AP W 3 E Y S SR A

"F
The Group The Company
rEH YN

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——F —E-=fF —E——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Buildings LS 1,921 — — —
Cash deposits REFH 1,232 1,075 155 —
Bank guarantees RITHER 500 — 500 —

—_—
—_
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17 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 17 BERBRSIBEEMER (9
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) REFEREBSEZEWESKRE
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor REVERERE 2 EE ZRIERERIAT
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:
The Group The Company
rEH NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F —T--F ZB-=F T -F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Neither past due nor impaired AENEA R N ER 51,131 51,168 51,113 50,793
Less than 1 month past due BEAR DR —E A 8,861 9,361 8,175 9,140
1to 3 months past due BHAR—E==EH 2,397 1,979 1,711 1,227
More than 3 months but WEIR A=1{E A
less than 12 months past due =+ (@A 2,077 2,605 — 894
More than 12 months past due  BERBE A%+ @A 1,347 1 — —
14,682 13,946 9,886 11,261
65,813 65,114 60,999 62,054
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide RENVEA R MERE 2 FEWE 58RI - R
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. S AR EREER - FIANERE -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of WEEMEREBECERE ZREEZEER
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. IR SREL SR M (BRI E S A RE o IRAEARE -
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment AREEETESEANNE  SEEREE
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been EphiE L FUBELEE - AR DRABLLE
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered RERIER] 2 EpUE o RNEERARTRA L
fully recoverable. The Group and the Company hold the following collateral JEW AR EEMARIAT
over these balances.
The Group The Company
rEH KATF
2013 2012 2013 2012
=F—=F T —_F =B-=F =
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T T T Tt
Buildings L7ES — 2,972 — —
Cash deposits REFN 197 — 197 —
——
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IR )

18

19
(@)

Amounts due from/(to) holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries and related companies

Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and do not have fixed repayment
terms except for the following trade-related amounts which are repayable
under normal trade terms:

B R AEATFIREA

BT 51 B RIB AR E BRI -
HEMIER AR - FAAMBRALEER

RIEDEEN - RENEEEERES

18 MBREEMZERAF - ARRH[EL

e
5

The Group The Company
TEE ¥ /N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=5F T4 —E-=F —E—F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Tt Tt
Amounts due from holding e ONG|
companies and fellow KR RZRWEB A RIRIE
subsidiaries 5,868 9,324 5,851 6,597
Amounts due to holding JERTZERR A A
companies and fellow KR ZH B AR RRIE
subsidiaries (7,119) (1,713) (6,967) (1,713)
Amounts due to related FEfSRAE A RERIA
companies (1,896) (4,423) (1,780) (2,195)

The trade-related balances were not past due as at 31 December 2013
and 2012.

Related companies included a non-controlling shareholder and companies

whose ultimate holding company has a significant influence over the
Group and the Company.

cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits comprise:

HESIER AN B =ER T

FHZA=+—RIARIE -

B33 1 B B A SRR OR B B R AR A

HAEBRARBBEAFZENRF]

27

19 BeRFARALRARBITIFER

REkERAEHEB RBITERERE -

The Group The Company
rEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=%F —ET——F —E-=F —F—=
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T T+t
Bank deposits within TR R
three months of B=EAA
maturity when placed EERTTIF R 66,474 66,050 54,801 54,452
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEERIES 46,272 34,854 18,314 19,457
Cash and cash equivalents ERE B ARR R
in the consolidated statement  Ri&FSBEEREFRT
of financial position and MIRE RERRELEE
consolidated cash flow
Statement 112,746 100,904 73,115 73,903
Bank deposits with more than FHEEIERA
three months to maturity RiBiE=EA
when placed RYERITIF 3K 20,168 — 20,168 —
Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits as at 31 December 2013 R-IZE—=F+"A=+—H BEEZR

include $26,778,000 (2012: $13,900,000) placed with banks in mainland
China, the remittance of which is subject to relevant rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

BEEE RRITHEREET KT B A MR
1726,778,0007C ( — & — — % : 13,900,000
U) - HEFRAZHEBFBEMRERRR &
SNESEARPRE] ©

—
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19 cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 19 BReRFEARESHFEHRBITER

(Continued) (5&)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BMRBABFELEEBEZHERA
generated from/(used in) operations: (OfiH) FBER :
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—-F
Note $'000 $'000
s Fr T
(restated)
(BE5)
Profit before taxation BrE B2 A 22,283 230,009
Adjustments for: M TPIEIEEL AR
Amortisation of land lease premium FRE TR 2 6(C) 2,624 3,277
Amortisation of other tangible assets BB EE 2 #H 6(C) — 888
Depreciation of property, plant Y% - BERREZINE
and equipment 6(C) 19,210 10,730
Depreciation of investment properties & &2 2 & 6(c) 2,725 2,409
Reversal of impairment losses for ERHEEZ
non-current assets EEEEE 5 — (269,916)
Interest expense FEZ T 6(a) 5,494 12,746
Interest income FEUWA 4 (765) (1,377)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of HEBRTEEE
fixed assets 2% (BH) /&8 4 (697) 36
Net gain on disposal of other HEREMEREE
tangible assets 2B 4 — (10,845)
Net gain on disposal of HEEREE
intangible assets ZIRRF 4 (255) (@)
Foreign exchange gains HNEE 5 37 R (2,791) (1,304)
Changes in working capital: EEEARZBH)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEz (%) R (2,725) 9,104
(Increase)/decrease in trade and R E 5 Kk E AR
other receivables 2 (38 R (4,368) 5,471
Decrease/(increase) in net amounts FEUYIE RS A 7] K.
due from holding companies and B [T /E A R ERIA
fellow subsidiaries SFEEZRA (38h0) 14,106 (11,682)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due FEUR A E N R)ERIA
from a related company 2R, () 829 (829)
Decrease in amounts due to FEfE:E A RARIA
related companies 2R 716 2,099
Increase/(decrease) in trade and EE 5 R HE A RRTE
other payables 2, CRd) 18,699 (19,027)
Decrease in retirement benefit liabilities  EREFIE &2 w4 (7,823) (1,836)
Cash generated from/(used in) REHETE 7S
operations A Gii) 67,262 (40,045)
[ ]
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20

21

Bank loan

At 31 December 2012, the bank loan which was borrowed from a related
party was unsecured (see note 29(a)(v)). The bank loan was repayable in
eight equal quarterly instalments from June 2012 and bore interest at one
year LIBOR plus 1.85% which ranged from 2.83% to 2.92% during 2012.
The bank loan was repaid in full during 2013.

At 31 December 2012, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

20 SRITER

REZB——F+-_A=+—0H RITEFRH
EEMLEEMEAR (RME290@)V) « R
TEFR_B—_FXAREH \HEE -
AR MRS —FHmBRITREST M
1.85% ( ZZE—_FNE2.83%E2.93%) iR
TERER_ZE—=FRN2EEE -

R-T——F+-A=+—0 RITERA
W TFIREE -

The Group and
the Company

AEBREQT
2012
—T——F
$'000
Tt
within 1 year or on demand —F RN BEREKEER 86,713
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR 116,039
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZRBRAFR 29,053
145,092
231,805

Trade and other payables EEHREMEE

The Group The Company
AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F T fF —E-=F —E—CF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT FT Tt Tt
Trade payables FEfTEE S ER1R 52,914 51,020 32,845 36,916
Other creditors and accrued E i fETARIE

charges 85,532 68,985 33,647 24,271
138,446 120,005 66,492 61,187

The Group’s and the Company'’s other creditors and accrued charges
include provision for advertising and promotion costs of $33,237,000 (2012:
$28,860,000) and $19,813,000 (2012: $13,648,000) respectively.

The amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s other creditors and
accrued charges expected to be settled after more than one year
are $4,789,000 (2012: $6,328,000) and $1,655,000 (2012: $1,096,000)
respectively. All of the other trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year.

AEBMEARABNEMEMNEEREBEIRER
BREESEREEEED B A33,237,0005T (=
T — — 4 :28,860,0007C) 19,813,000
(ZZ— % :13,648,0007T) °

REBEARRBAREZN —FEIAHE
b FE 1 BR 18 M B 1R B A 9 Bl 414,789,000 7T
(ZF— 4% :6,328,0007T) & 1,6550007TC
(ZZE—4F : 1,096,0007T) ° PA EfER
EHREMBBEBAE—FRIZN -
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21 Trade and other payables (Continued) 21 EBRSZREMERE (&
The ageing of trade payables as at the end of the reporting period is as ENBSRENGEE A ZRERNT :
follows:
The Group The Company
KEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F —E——4F —EB-=fF —E——F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT Tt T Tt
Current and less than REIEA K BERH
1 month past due LR—EAH 48,067 43,372 31,185 34,760
1to 3 months past due BEEA—Z==EA 3,163 6,965 1,449 1,961
3 to 6 months past due BEAR A==/NEA 1,395 479 20 47
More than 6 months past due BEAE Z 7N A A 289 204 191 148
52,914 51,020 32,845 36,916
The Group's general payment terms are one to two months from the REERN—RNRERERNEZBHE—=
invoice date. Therefore, the current and less than 1 month past due AE A REIES - Atk i REIHIRGBETA
balances above are mostly within two to three months from the invoice DPR—EANEBRAENETEEZAERE
date. ={EAREIE] -
22 Loan from an intermediate holding company 22 HHEBRAFIZER
At 31 December 2013, the loan from an intermediate holding company RZFB—=F+-_A=1+—H FNM2RA
was repayable as follows: RIZ BEFAR THIEREE -
The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB—-=F —E——%F —EB-=fF —E——-%F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T T
Within 1 year or on demand —HFRRBREREEE 12,723 — . 12,723 — |
After 1year but within 2 years ~ —&F{&BRRER 50,890 — 50,890 —
After 2 years but within 5 years ~ REZERER 139,947 — 139,947 —
190,837 — 190,837 —
203,560 — 203,560 —
Loan from an intermediate holding company is unsecured, repayable in FNERAGBIZERAEET  YRZF
sixteen equal instalments from September 2014 and bears interest at one —MFEAABRAS FAHESR  EKENTF
year LIBOR plus 1.5% which ranged from 2.08% to 2.16% during the year. ER—FHREBEITRENEMIS%(ZF
—ZHFENE208%E2.16%) °
23 Amounts due to subsidiaries 23 [EMMEBATIRER
Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and do not have FENWEARREAEER  RERTE
fixed repayment terms but are not expected to be settled within one year. EEEFRER  BTFER—FALN -
[
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24 Employee retirement benefits 24 (EEREHRIEF
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (@) TEHEEBEFRAKETE

The Group operates a defined benefit retirement plan which covers 16%
(2012: 18%) of the Group’s employees. The plan is administered by an
independent trustee, with the assets held separately from those of the
Group. The members’ benefits are determined based on the employees’
final remuneration and length of service. Contributions to the plan are
made in accordance with the recommendations of an independent
actuary who values the retirement plan at regular intervals.

For the purposes of preparing these financial statements, an independent
actuarial valuation was carried out at 31 December 2013 by the above
independent actuary following the methodology set out in HKAS 19,
Employee benefits.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as
follows:

AEE AR 16%(ZF——4F : 18%) 2{ER
RUCERBFIRAG B « A BT — 28
STRFEAEIE - LEAREZEEDHAT
BIE o i BRFI YRR E 2 Bk H S BB
EEEE o 52 (R HOVRE — R BIRE
02 B RIEEEE AR B
R o

Boh - R E AR E A BB R IERIE 9
% EREF) 25 AR B —=F = f
=+—BEITR - AR RS
Ko

REATEAR R IER 2 SR T

The Group and the Company

AEBEALAT
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E—F
$'000 $'000
Ft T

Present value of funded obligations BEEERIRE 89,613 100,841
Fair value of plan assets HEEEZARE (71,953) (66,307)
Retirement benefit liabilities RINENBIE 17,660 34,534

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after more than
one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount from the
amounts payable in the next twelve months, as the retirement benefit
payable to plan members and future contributions to plan assets will also
depend on staff turnover and future changes in actuarial assumptions.

Plan assets consist of the following:

(i)

EFOBERERENEE —FR - R
- ARRAEN S BIKE 2 BN RS
AHEIBEZ ARPHAR T BERKR 2 AE
g Rt MNEERZEREERL @
RZERNRIED FERRE -

AHEIBERE

The Group and the Company

AEBEAAT
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E——F
$'000 $'000
FT T
Mutual fund HREIES 62,671 63,588
Cash HE 9,282 2,719
71,953 66,307

At the end of each reporting period, an Asset-Liability matching study
was performed by the trustees to analyse the outcome of the strategic
investment policies. The investment portfolio targets a mix of 30% in equity
securities across a range of industries and 70% in government bonds.

REELER  SEACETEERGBICA
e WHNTIREBR R 2 AR - 8 EH
AEEA—RINTEZIBREEZHHEE R
70% BT ES -
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24 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 24 EREWHERER B
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEHEEBBFEKFTE (B
(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations: (iii) ERENEaEMNREZS
The Group and the Company
TEBRAQF
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
$'000 $'000
Frx T
(restated)
(BE7))
At 1 January m—HA—H 100,841 81,324
Remeasurements: Eif
— Actuarial losses arising from — AORBREEEEERN
changes in demographic assumptions REER — 15
— Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from — B RREEELEN
changes in financial assumptions B8 (BR) /Eia (3,557) 18,046
— Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from — EBREEELR
changes in experience B8 (BF) /EiE (2,138) 1,998
(5,695) 20,059
Benefits paid by the plan ST &I A 2t F (12,280) (6,950)
Current service cost I8 B AR A AR AN 6,159 5,233
Interest cost AP SND %N 588 1,175
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—8H 89,613 100,841

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations is 7.8

years (2012: 8.1 years).

(iv) Movements in plan assets:

ERENABEZIMETFOFRR78F (ZF

—ZF :81F)
vy EFFEIEEZEE)

The Group and the Company

AEBEAAT
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
(restated)
(BE7)
At 1 January m—H—H 66,307 60,349
Contributions paid to the plan by the employer BEXNEET IR 14,592 7,810
Benefits paid by the plan FT &I AT 2t F (12,280) (6,950)
Interest income FLEWA 406 920
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income HEEEZER (TEREFNEWKA) 3,356 4,664
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets SEIBEZITHEHX (428) (486)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 71,953 66,307
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24 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 24 ERE#ERER B
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (@) TEEEFENKEE (B
(V) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive  (v) REFEEERERER AT -
income are as follows:
2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——F
$'000 $'000
Fr T+t
(restated)
(B&E%))
Current service cost IR BF AR 75 B AR 6,159 5,233
Net interest on net defined benefit liability FEEEAEA G BIREE 182 255
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets FTEIEE Z1THAX 428 486
Total amounts recognised i profitorfoss RB@mPRR M 6.769 NN
Actuarial (gains)/losses wBE (Br) /EE (5,695) 20,059
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income Jr%UﬁEZ@#& (B FEFI B U A) (3,356)

Total amounts recognised in other

REMEEEERERLZ

comprehensive income (A iz (9,051)
Total defined benefit costs TEREfR A A 4ARE (2,282)
The current service cost and the net interest A A RAGR AN & FEZEAE A
on net defined benefit liability are recognised FEBEZFEFETIR
in the following line items in the consolidated ToamEakzERz A
income statement; ZTE B RHER
— Cost of sales — HERA 678 337
— Selling and distribution expenses — HERDHEEX 3,664 3,081
— Administrative expenses — 1TBAX 2,427 2,556
6,769 5,974
(viy  Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis are as follows: (vi) FEMRERRIMEZEDTAT ¢
The Group and the Company
AEBREAT
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
Discount rate BhIR =& 2.10% 0.60%
Future salary increases KK FHE ZIEN 5.00% 4.00%
The analysis set out below shows how the defined benefit obligation as at THDMHAEZREERR0.25% 2 # L
31 December 2013 would have increased/(decreased) as a result of 0.25% EREE ﬂ% 1$E/\f$*_¢+fﬂ =+—H
change in the significant actuarial assumptions: &/ CRd) ar -
Increase Decrease
in 0.25% in 0.25%
#110.25% WA 0.25%
$'000 $'000
Fi Fi
Discount rate BRIR & (1,780) 1,836
Future salary increases R Fr & 2 N 1,883 (1,835)

FREEESNEBRRE BRSBTS
1B EERRE S T E B E B
RIOAARALE -

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes
in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore it does not take
into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions.
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24 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 24 EREWHERER B
(b) Defined contribution retirement plans (b) TEBEMFCRATE
0} Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining the above defined () RIEES CREIEATESEEIED) - K&
benefit retirement plan are required to join the Group’s mandatory EEESEBmMITEMA L FEEEFEK
provident fund plan under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund HEMEES ANAANEERGSEAES
Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a defined T2l - s BlERESFE N —ERBELEE
contribution retirement plan administered by an independent corporate SZRAABENEREEFRIRGE - RIEEH
trustee. Under the plan, the Group and its employees are each required to e AEEREEES AR EELH
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, P HEAREEBARNS%  WEFABM
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $25,000 ($20,000 prior to ABH&RE/KFEA25000T (ZFE—=—F X
June 2012). Contributions to the plan vest immediately. A LART £20,0007T) o ¥ 5T &5 A g5k A0
RSB o
(in Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of pension (i) FREEARIEE APRENEENT IR
schemes operated by the PRC government. The Group is required to Kestg8MKE -  REBBYHPREKRSE
contribute 18.75% to 31.10% (2012: 18.50% to 31.10%) of employees’ HEMHKIEAEEBEINIEEES  HEA
remuneration to these pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only BEEMER18.75% E31.10% (=T — —F :
obligation for the Group with respect to these pension schemes is the 18.50% £31.10%) - AEEH AP REKRES
required contribution under the central pension scheme. Contributions to HEIW—ERABRERRERLSEEIZBE
these schemes vest immediately. BB o WEHSIER R EFRERRE -
25 Deferred taxation in the statement of financial 25 BERREFRIIZELERE
position
(@) The Group (@ X£E
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the RIEFEMBEARERBERZBEERBEERE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during B EKID RERNZ EBINT ¢
the year are as follows:
Depreciation  Impairment
allowances losses for
inexcess of  receivables  Retirement
the related and benefit
depreciation  inventories liabilities Tax losses Total
nERBE EWERE
BRAEENE kFE BAEF
ZEE  ZHEEE 28 BEER @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
(restated) (restated)
(2E51) (25751)
Deferred tax arising from: EERERE :
At 1 January 2012 RZFE——F—F—H 8,663 (176) (1,841) (3,193) 3,453
Charged/(credited) to i bty
profit or loss (note 7(a)) M/ GrA) (7)) 44,039 88 (986) (40,128) 3013
Credited to equity (note 11) PEETREA (FEE11) = — (2,871) — 2,871)
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-A=1+—H
and 1January 2013 k=—F—=F—f—H 52,702 (88) (5,698) (43,321) 3,595
Charged/(credited) to i bty
profit or loss (note 7(a)) B/ GEA) (7)) 752 (66) (131) (4,127) (3,572)
Charged to equity (note 11) PERPETA (FEE11) — - 2,915 — 2,915
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-A=+—H 53,454 (154) (2,914) (47,448) 2,938
I
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25

(a)

Deferred taxation in the statement of financial 25
position (Continued)
The Group (Continued) (a)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following
items, which pertain to the subsidiaries in the PRC and the Company:

MK RAIIZEERE (%)

AEE ()

AEBRPENNBARRARRL AL T
PS8 B A5 BUZ IRAE AU IR B E M FERR -

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—-—4F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Tax losses FRIEEE 604,955 619,932
Deductible temporary differences AR SR E R 410,017 409,340
1,014,972 1,029,272
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(p), deferred RBFIRA M 10) F5HER - AR KRAEHE

tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as it is
not probable that the relevant entities will generate future taxable profits
against which the above items can be utilised.

The unrecognised tax losses relating to the PRC subsidiaries can be
carried forward up to five years from the year in which the loss originated
and will expire in the following years:

FEAERAM B A BIR KA S R AR B
MR E M &S - AN B AR IER L5118
BATSI B2 B IAEE ©

ERTEMBARRERNHEABRAESE

BERFER - BREZMFEOLT

2013 2012

—E-=5 —E——F

$'000 $'000

T Tt

2013 —E—=4F —_ 7,141
2014 —Z=—puF 65,206 63,229
2015 —E—FhF 138,438 134,239
2016 —T—RF 143,043 138,705
2017 —EF—+F 100,665 110,765
2018 —E—N\F 42,972 —
490,324 454,079

The unrecognised tax losses relating to the Company were $114,630,000
(2012: $165,853,000) and do not expire under current tax legislation.

NN B A HERR B B TE 5 18 /5 114,630,000 7T
(ZZT——% : 165,853,000 7T) * WRIEBITH

BROITEEIH -
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25 Deferred taxation in the statement of financial 25 HERAIERINZEERIE &)
position (Continued)

(b) The Company (b) AT
The components of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities recognised in the REBIRR R R IRIETIE (BE) RAE
statement of financial position and the movements during the year are as ZHRKER D REAR 2 EBIAT ¢
follows:
Depreciation
allowances
inexcess of Impairment  Retirement
the related losses for benefit
depreciation  receivables liabilities Tax losses Total
FERHE
BOEENTE PR RINGER
ZEH ZREEE ZEfE BEER st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T T
(restated) (restated)
(2551) (2531)
Deferred tax arising from: BEEFERY :
At 1 January 2012 R-_F——%#—F—H 4,269 (176) (1,841) (2,252) =
Charged/(credited) to profitor loss ~ RiEzssin%/ (5 A) 43,294 88 (986) (39,525) 2,871
Credited to equity G EA = — 2,871) — (2,871)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZ——F+-A=+—H
and 1January 2013 k=Z—=%—H—H 47,563 (88) (5,698) (41,777) -
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss ~ #MBzss K/ (5t A) 884 (66) (131) (3,602) (2,915)
Charged to equity PSR IG — — 2,915 - 2,915
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%+-A=1+—H 48,447 (154) (2,914) (45,379) -
I
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26
(a)

(b)

Capital, reserves and dividends 26 BEF - FEERER
Movements in components of equity (a) HERIIEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of KEEZ%?/M%\ hEE DB FEY) RFERE
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the Zv?é,.\lff& = @Jﬁﬁqﬁlﬁﬁ NN =S |
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the pg =HEEHH E VR EREE ISR AT
Company'’s individual components of equity between the beginning and & -
the end of the year are set out below:
Share Share Retained
capital premium profits Total
&S B3R 1E Wi wE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr T T
(restated) (restated)
(BE7) (BE7)
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-B-——F-—-F—H&&H 186,785 65,739 287,494 540,018
Changes in equity for 2012: TE-CERREE:
Actuarial gains and losses of EREE AR
defined benefit retirement plan, ZIEE R R EE
net of tax (BFig) — — (12,524) (12,524)
Loss for the year (note 10) FEEE (HEE10) = - (120,042) (120,042)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R=-ZFE—=-&+=-A=+—H
and 1 January 2013 k-_F-=F—-F—-H&H 186,785 65,739 154,928 407,452
Changes in equity for 2013: —E-CEEREE
Actuarial gains and losses of FE Rt ARG 2
defined benefit retirement plan, AR R EE
net of tax (BRTi1%) — — 6,136 6,136
Profit for the year (note 10) FEAF (fFE10) — — 39,005 39,005
Balance at 31 December 2013 R=-FE—=%+=-A=+—H
b33 186,785 65,739 200,069 452,593
Dividends (b) RE
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to REFARBIERFAEAZRE
the year:
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E-—F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Final dividend proposed after the end of REEE B R AR E
the reporting period of $0.01 per ordinary share BAREEAZ0.01 T
(2012: Nil per ordinary share) (ZFB——%F : 5RT@EIRET) 3,736 —

The above has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the

reporting period.

REEHRER S  YERASEER
ZBfE-
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 26 B*E - FHWEREE (&
(c) Share capital () m’=x
The Company
NN
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——4F
$'000 $°000
FT T
Authorised: EERA :
400,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.50 each 400,000,000 & &A1& 0.50 7T
BRI 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ORTRMEIRA :
373,570,560 ordinary shares of $0.50 each REH]] F FF 7K 373,570,560
as at the beginning and end of the year SAREE0.50 T 2 E AR 186,785 186,785
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as LTERFFE ABRKETREIRMRE - I
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at AIEARAIRE LA —REROHKR—F -
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to HRARRMFEGEE ALY BARHEES
the Company’s residual assets. R o
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) HEHERAZR
(i) Share premium (i) g
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section 48B JEARMGREIRTIZE S (R REH]) 55488
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. {RFTESE ©
(i)  capital reserve (i) EXRFE
The capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the capitalisation BARREEE—HPENB AR ZREBEF
of retained profits of PRC subsidiaries. B mEE 2 G
(iii)  Exchange fluctuation reserve (iiy EXREREE
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange P R B R ERERRERB UM B R
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of A BHRREE MEELZERARES
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign exchange differences KIEE (BRIHBHBRIMLINE AR 2 FE
arising from translation of monetary items that in substance form part of &) ZERERE - ZREBRENE16) ez
the net investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt EETHER MR o
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s).
(e) Distributability of reserves (e) DikfEE
At 31 December 2013, the reserves available for distribution to equity RZFE—=F+ZA=+—8 A9k
shareholders of the Company total $200,069,000 (2012: $154,928,000). HE T AR RIERFFAE A 200,069,000 7T
After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a final —Z— — 4 :154,928,0007T) - A& E H
dividend of 1 cent per ordinary share (2012: Nil cents per ordinary share), B EEBRERARHAREERE®ERKR001T
amounting to $3,736,000 (2012: Nil) (note 26(0)). This dividend has not (ZZ=——F - ghkETRRZT)  KRERKRE
been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period. A3,7360007L (ZE—=F : Tx) (M3
26(b)) NEFEREBIRECIRE - WEERE
HEEHZBE-
——
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(f

Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of an adjusted net-debt to equity ratio. For this purpose
the Group defines adjusted net-debt as bank loans and loan from an
intermediate holding company plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2013, the Group's strategy was to maintain the adjusted net-debt
to equity ratio at a reasonable level, not exceeding 100%. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The net-debt to equity ratio at 31 December 2013 and 2012 was as
follows:

26 BEE - HEREE (@)
) EBXRER

AEBEREANTIRARREREEEEE
MEFERLE  WMEERRREHROBRER
H R & R IF R ¢ ARBKF AR &
EmiEE - URRERESE

IBE R E R

ARG R B EARRE RS RE
1B ERBREERER T TS B
B BT B 4 0 AR R B S
R05 2 FBUE T4 - 0 ERAL RS B
WAL B -

AEBNERNFEEL R REREZHEERN
R EATTEMER M- AREMEA
B REBEERHEHEEFRBESRITEFN
FRIMER A R Z EREARFHERURAR SOR R
TERAERERERBALAE - LHBER
BIREAE AR D RAFHREKEE

R-T—=F  NEEZREZIEHEHE
BEARFEEEERI00%EBEN < BT ##H
HAEZLLE  AEERSHETHL - AR
RS EREEEENREERE -

RIB—=FR-_B——"H+-A=+—H
ZERFRELRNT

The Group The Company
rEE KAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF —E-=F —E——F
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
M5t T T T T+t
Bank loans and loan from an RITERKRN
intermediate holding company — #ZRE AT Z &
less bank deposits and cash IR TIF R R
and cash equivalents ReMERBES
IHH 70,646 130,901 110,277 157,902
Add: Proposed dividends s BRI E 26(b) 3,736 — 3,736 =
Adjusted net debt KARBEFE 74,382 130,901 114,013 157,902
Equity s 543,678 511,836 452,593 407,452
Less: Proposed dividends B BERAR B 26(b) 3,736 — 3,736 —
Adjusted capital ERBEER 539,942 511,836 448,857 407,452
Adjusted net-debt to equity ratio AL FHRE A B E L = 14% 26% 25% 39%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

Ko

AN R SAE AT B8 1 R I AR A SME B AT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 SREBREERAAMRE
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the AEEE—MEBBEFFEEE  RFPE
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's exposure to these &~ MERE RINERE o AEBEEZE
risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by the BEREE R AEEMFEASIEZESR R 28
Group to manage these risks are described below. BERHER KBS - ST o

(@)  credit risk (@ FFERR
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other AEBMNEERRTIEREENRES KEAM
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Management has a credit BEENESRERIIRSIER - BEEIAE
policy in place and the exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an EBoR - MEeREBEERZSEERR -
ongoing basis.
Credit limits are offered to customers following a financial assessment EEREBEIINETT T GEMEREEY
and an established payment record. The general credit period is payment R RS MERE - —REENHEE ANE
by the end of the month following the month in which sales took place. B AN ELERS R o AEFE e ELE S
Security in the form of mortgages, cash deposits or bank guarantees is 151518~ RITFNIRITIERIEARIE - &
obtained from certain customers. Customers who are considered to have RERPAERSEHRARE @ BINNESETR
higher credit risk are required to trade on a cash basis. Credit control staff 5 - ZEERASSEREWE HRENMR
monitor trade receivables and follow up collections. HEUK o
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual AEEzFERBETEXZERNEFNEES
characteristics of each customer. At the end of the reporting period, 14% o NEEH 14%(ZZT——F :15%) &
(2012: 15%) and 44% (2012: 39%) of the total trade and other receivables A0% (—F— 4 : 39%) MEWE H K EM
was due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers BRIEDRRERNEBZAEERAAREF ©
respectively.
The Group and the Company do not provide any guarantees which would REEE AN 70 4 A VR H b YE R
expose the Group and the Company to credit risk. ZERK -
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are placed with financial RAEBEWR S ERERIRSEREGFHRNEZH
institutions with sound credit ratings and the management considers the SR RIS R - Hit - BEERANR
Group's exposure to credit risk is low. EEEENEARBARK -
The Group’s exposure to the credit risk and its policies for managing such AEBAZNEERREEEERRE T
risk were unchanged from 2012. — ZFHHR °

(b)  Liquidity risk (b) FKEBESRR
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own ERlEegeEas EAGMNIELEIR IR
cash management. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity requirements BAEERRTHERERHESETE A
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate HREGF TR 2ReHEEN T EYKHEE
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its FARHEEHESREE  UncAREEE
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. HrReEeFER -
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(b)

Financial risk management and fair values

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

27

(b)

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to pay:

EREREERARRE

REBESER (8)

TERREAEERARARNGEERUBAELZ
= ER A KV HIRAERE A DT - WIARTHIAREEIR
Reng (MEREITOERFEZMEX
o B R AR REEREAZEX
AHEZMENE) RASEEARARRRHKE
RZ&RFERERELONESE -

The Group REHR
2013
—E-=F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ERNLABBNEERE
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FR%
RERK % mER
E)- EmER BEEFR e REH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr Tr Tr T
Trade and other payables ENE 5 R EMEE 138,446 — — 138,446 138,446
Loan from an intermediate RNERARZER
holding company 17,384 54,656 144,562 216,602 203,560
Amounts due to holding companies  FEfHZRRAR]
and fellow subsidiaries RREZNBAAERE 17,235 — — 17,235 17,235
Amounts due to related companies  fEf & A RIBRIE 5,139 — — 5,139 5,139
178,204 54,656 144,562 377,422 364,380
2012
—ET——F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AN ERURMERNE
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FR
RE K —% Gl
Eal) EMFRA BRFR k) AREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Tt
Bank loan RITER 92,720 118,882 29,251 240,853 231,805
Trade and other payables FERE 5 REMERIE 120,005 — - 120,005 120,005
Amounts due to holding companies  FERF#2RR A ]
and fellow subsidiaries LEZHBATEE 3,767 — — 3,767 3,767
Amounts due to related companies  fEfEEE A rlERIE 4,423 — — 4,423 4,423
220,915 118,882 29,251 369,048 360,000
[ ]
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 SMEREERAAMEE®
(Continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBELEE (4
The Company VNN
2013
—E-=F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ENLABBHNEERE
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FR%
RERE —£% mE#R
) EmER BRER k) BRE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Trade and other payables ENE S REMER 66,492 — — 66,492 66,492
Loan from an intermediate RN AR Z BN
holding company 17,384 54,656 144,562 216,602 203,560
Amounts due to holding companies  FEfH2RRA ]
and fellow subsidiaries LRZWBARERE 7,578 - — 7,578 7,578
Amounts due to related companies  fEfE8E A mlBRIE 1,780 — - 1,780 1,780
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENHBARRE — 558,092 — 558,092 558,092
93,234 612,748 144,562 850,544 837,502
2012
T F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BN ERBBRNRSRE
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FR
REKEF —Fik REE
25 EREAN ERFR ok KAz
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT T T T FiT
Bank loan RITER 92,720 118,882 29,251 240,853 231,805
Trade and other payables ENE S REMER 61,187 — — 61,187 61,187
Amounts due to holding companies &% A &)
and fellow subsidiaries S EES R 2,130 — — 2,130 2,130
Amounts due to related companies  fEf#8E A A]8RIE 2,195 — — 2,195 2,195
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B A RIBRIE — 558,173 — 558,173 558,173
158,232 677,055 29,251 864,538 855,490
[ ]
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(i)

Financial risk management and fair values 27 SMEREERERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
Interest rate risk () FEmEp
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing REBZHERBEIERTEERESLE - K
borrowings. The Group monitors the level of its variable rate borrowings. EEEeEIYEBFERNEDKE - KEER
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out in BB EEPER N AR E R T () ©
(i) below.
Interest rate profile (i) FlZaEE
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s bank TRAXNEENEER ZRITERKFNE
loan and loan from an intermediate holding company at the end of the R AR 2 ER 2 FI R -
reporting period:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Amount rate Amount
% $'000 % $'000
BRA=E &8 HEENE x|
% T % T
Variable rate borrowings: FENFIERER
— Bank loan — RITER — — 2.83 231,805
— Loan from an intermediate ~ — FRNIERA T 2 B
holding company 2.08 203,560 = =
2.08 203,560 2.83 231,805
Sensitivity analysis (i) SBMEDH

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit after taxation and
retained profits by approximately $2,036,000 (2012: increased/decreased
the Group's profit after taxation and increased/decreased retained profits
by approximately $2,318,000). The tax effect was assumed to be nil as the
entity which has drawn down these loans had unrecognised tax losses
for deferred tax purposes and it is not probable that it will generate future
taxable profits against which tax losses can be utilised.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after taxation and retained profits in respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period. The impact on the Group’s
profit after taxation and retained profits is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense of such a change in interest rates.

MN-ZE—=F+-RA=+—08 fHEM=t
Tt/ TR AT EEMAI R ERE
TEMBRT  AEBAFERBREEF KL
RET AT, 492,036,000 (=ZF
——F  AEEAFERREEFRZAR
FHE I A0, 4 492,318,000 7T) © B AL
HETE R S BE SIE 1S B SV R TR B R A 0 Y
BEE BEARYRERRGEBIISZ
IRIERLTE - I RRIER L o

PA_E SR 0 AT BUR AN SR B Y R B AR B R e
2R BAZ B EL - IR AEERER
B ARFBNETA - S| BASEmEE
RERNERBRAEL - NEBRHIRERT]
REZFABNOTERUZENRE(CHT S
ERNFRZEFERG
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Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales, purchases,
borrowings, expenses and recharges amongst group entities which
give rise to receivables, payables, loans and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars, Euros
and Australian dollars.

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars,
all sales and purchases are denominated in either Hong Kong dollars
or United States dollars, except for certain purchases from Europe or
Australia. Given that Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States
dollar, management do not expect that there will be any significant
currency risk associated with such United States dollar denominated
transactions. For transactions denominated in Euros, management
monitor the level of exposure closely and take actions such as an earlier
settlement considering movements in the exchange rate. For transactions
denominated in Australian dollars, since the volume of such transactions
is not significant, management consider the exposure to currency risk to
be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is Renminbi, except for
certain transactions amongst group entities that are denominated in either
Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars, most of other transactions
are denominated in Renminbi. For those transactions amongst group
entities denominated in United States dollars or Hong Kong dollars, the
management consider the transaction amounts are not significant and the
exposure to currency risk is low.

The Group's exposure to currency risk and its policies for managing such
risk were unchanged from 2012.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate. The exposure arising
from the borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of
the net investment in subsidiaries is excluded. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated
using the spot rates at the year end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong
into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

27

(d)

M

EREREERARRE 5

SN LB

AEETEREERS B3 KEZH
HE RN BN ELASNE (A% 5N E
WIRBER 2L EH) BB R
o BNERR - BRERSEF  AmEY
SMNER o SIBSMNER 2 EE T EBREE
T BRERRTT ©

HREBANETHENEEEN S EERE
BRI G BN SORMNETIREBIN - FTE
HERBEOVETHETIERHER - A
RBTTERIETTEND - MAREEEMET, B
TEXTEERBES) - ERABENEZ
X5 BEETY)EZEERSNERKFE
3 fE I E R B B RRERIE B - AR AIAAIR - =
RIAVRTEHE 2R S ARNAZEEWEFHE
MXHENZ  MAKERRAELNERH
SMERER K

HRNEBAAARBEDREERNSEE
B BRTHEEARZGRINVETHETIEE
i B R ZFRUARBIEEL - GRASE
MAETHABTIEENNR S - ERERR
RBERTIEK - AEREHNEBINERR T
* o

REBAZIINERBRMETEREHE_-T
—ZFAHR °

Az JME LB

TERAEEEARRBNGEE AL IELAERE
ERGEEEHENCHABEERBEMA
X ZINERBIERFHADN - TRTER™E
B AR HHE R RIELER (AERERR
ARCHIHTE R R FRE M — ) MEL
B - TROSEDIRER B ZEXR KR
RBBERI A - HESEBAIINER
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 SMEREERERAAMEE ®
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) SPERBS ()

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) A ZINERBR (8)
The Group rEE

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SRR (RBTEE)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
United Hong United Hong
States Kong States Kong
dollars dollars Euros dollars dollars Euros

E B 563 e BT Bz
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
fr__ Fr  Fm TR Fr I

Trade and other receivables EWE 5 N HABRTE 288 — 1,308 934 — 1,379
Amounts due from holding AR A A

companies and fellow REZRITE R ERE

subsidiaries 8,683 — — 9,322 — —
Amount due from a related U BAE A RIBRIE

company — — — 829 — —
Cash and cash equivalents B LERIRSIEE 370 42 76 10,277 63 73
Bank loan RITER — — —  (231,805) — —
Trade and other payables FERE 5 R EHAMEEE (11,423) — (4,935) (7,235) — (5,770)
Loan from an intermediate RN ERA B ZER

holding company (203,560) — — — _ _
Amounts due to holding JERHZERR A A

companies and fellow KRRZWBARRE

subsidiaries (17,082) — — (3,767) — —
Amounts due to related FEfTRREDRIERIE

companies (1,614) — (166) (1,807) = (35)
Net exposure B\ R R R (224,338) 42 (3,717) (223,252 63 (4,353)

[
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Financial risk management and fair values

(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

The Company

(BSHIETI - DRAEE)
27 aREREERLAKRE
(d) SMERP (5
i) FEEZHERR (8)
LN

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
SNEEER (IRETEE)

2013 2012
—E-=F T
United United
States States
dollars Euros dollars Euros
Ep & ETT EL7&
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T Tt
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R EMERIR 288 1,308 934 1,379
Amounts due from holding R AR A &)
companies and fellow ARG
subsidiaries 8,683 — 6,605 —
Amount due from a related FEUSFEE A R BRIE
company — — 829 —
Cash and cash equivalents BehERBESIER 262 76 10,154 73
Bank loan IRITER — — (231,805) —
Loan from an intermediate ANMER AR ZER
holding company (203,560) — — —
Trade and other payables FENE S REMERIE (7,112) (4,935) (6,790) (5,770)
Amounts due to holding FESER A A
companies and fellow PAEES | =YNGIE S
subsidiaries (7,578) — (2,130) —
Amounts due to related FEfTR:E A RERIE
companies (1,614) (166) (1,807) (35)
Net exposure [\ R A TR R (210,631) (3,717) (224,010) (4,353)
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 SMEREERERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) SPERBS ()
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BB
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's TRETASEENGEE BREE X 25
profit after taxation and retained profits that would have arisen if foreign WMIERNEHSEEAER 2 BHEBEMN KR
exchange rates to which the group entities had significant exposure at the ZABA AR - BREE b E S S E
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other NF o gtk E  EREBITEETLZEN
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the BMBERAM FTRETLLEMEE 2EE
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar BETRE - WH - BRREET ARKER
would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value EERHERTATEINBEER &
of the United States dollar against other currencies. Also, the tax effect BAEARIEEERZELERE - B
was assumed to be nil for the entities which had unrecognised tax losses RIEBETLE -
for deferred tax purposes since it is not probable that they will generate
future taxable profits against which tax losses could be utilised.
2013 2012
—E-=F —Z——F
Increase/ Decrease/ Increase/  Decrease/
(decrease) (increase) Decrease/ (decrease)  (increase) Decrease/
in foreign in profit  (increase) inforeign inprofit  (increase)
exchange after inretained  exchange after  inretained
rates  taxation profits rates taxation profits
SHNEEZR BRBEARA  RHBA NEEX REEAEN  ZHAF
tRn/ "/ WD/ =/ e e
(%) (4&m) (18m) (T) (4 m) ($Zm)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr FT T
United States dollars = 5% 685 685 5% 38 38
(5)% (685) (685) (5)% (38) (38)
Hong Kong dollars BT 5% (2 (2) 5% ®) ()
(5)% 2 2 (5)% 3 3
EUros Bz 5% 186 186 5% 218 218
(5)% (186) (186) (5)% (218) (218)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the group entities’
profit or loss measured in the respective functional currencies, translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to currency risk at the end of the
reporting period, including inter-company payables and receivables within
the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group's presentation currency.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis as for 2012.

ERAZINZAMEREAEEZEERIN
BRI ERAE (REREN  CREE
AZEERNBGET) < NFERR N

=4

AN [ BL 488
SR -

BRMDTERRINEEX BBHEARE
FETEARBEMHA LR AEE A EREEE
RIMERR 2 R T A - BiEEERE AL
B HETT 2 R BB F E ML U R
FRIE - WEBHRREEBEEHEET —FE&
HAMERAREFHNSIEFME - AW T
BEGEBAINGB R R 2 M BRKRBEK
AEBZ2HEEMES 2 E8 - ZANN
BT FHHR AT -
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Financial risk management and fair values 27 SMEREERAAMEE®
(Continued)
Fair value (e) 2REE
The non-trade balances with holding companies, fellow subsidiaries BT AT - B RH BN B M EEE R R IE
and related companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed BoEEEHRY ABERL S E BEETE
repayment terms. Given these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their WH - ERZERR BEHEAARBZEE
fair values. TR o
All other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts FEEMEREHEENEENERAEE
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2013 and HHEEN - ZE— =K _FT——F+_A8
2012. ZSt—BEHARBEITERSERER -
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities () SHMEERSHEFBIKE
Trade discounts payable included in trade and other payables and trade AR AEFERB RS FZRFEIECHERS
receivables are offset in the consolidated statement of financial position %o WL FREEELE et A AENES
as the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the FEMBRB Z ENEZSITNEEWRE 5ERE
recognised amounts and intends to settle on a net basis. REFE P BAORKR AN EREH -
The Group holds cash deposits as collateral over certain trade receivables, REFEFERGIESIEAE TREWKE Z5EE
which are included in trade payables and not offset against trade ZHBR  ZERSHAEMNESEERT -
receivables as the Group does not have a legally enforceable right to set WHEEEWE FREE AR  RRAARSE
off the recognised amounts. B me ARt S ERe I ES -
The following table sets out the carrying amounts of recognised financial TREYZ LT HRE 2RSS I A
instruments that are subject to the above arrangements. ZAREIE
The Group AEH
2013
—B-ZF
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented the statement
instruments in offset in the inthe of financial
the statement statement of statementof  position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
REBHRR REBRRR REBRRAREE
ERRERIA b Yl REBRRE  EHEEZE —
288 IHZ&H A KBREEAR #E
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i 7 7 7 i
Financial assets SREE
Trade and other receivables [EWE S REMEBE 17
— Trade receivables — kB 55E 105,698 (34,978) 70,720 (4,725) 65,995
—Financial assets not inthe scope  — S BAETEHEL
of offsetting disclosures LBEEE 16,452 - 16,452 - 16,452
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and other payables ERESREMRE 21
— Trade payables —ENBSERE 87,892 (34,978) 52,914 - 52,914
— Financial liabilities not in the scope  — 4B & B R
of offsetting disclosures LBEEE 85,532 - 85,532 - 85,532
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 SMEREERERAAMEE ®
(Continued)

()  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ) <sREERSREGEESE B

(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

FEE (&)

2012
“E-CF
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented the statement
instruments in offset in the inthe of financial
the statement Statement of statementof  position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
RETBRAE RETBRRE REBRRFZE
ERERSHIA RiEESR ROBIRRE RSB TE—
kx| TEz%8 258 WEE S H A e
Note $000 $/000 $'000 $000 $000
ik T i i A T
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables ENE S REMERE 17
—Trade receivables 107,437 (39,970) 67,467 (6,175) 61,292
— Financial assets notinthe scope  — R BEMEEH
of offsetting disclosures 15,259 — 15,259 — 15,259
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables ERE S REMIRE 21
—Trade payables 90,990 (39,970) 51,020 = 51,020
— Financial liabilities not in the — SRAETMHH
scope of offsetting disclosures 68,985 — 68,985 — 68,985
The Company VNN
2013
—g-=%
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented the statement
instruments in offset in the in the of financial
the statement statement of statement of  position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
REBERRE REERRE REBRRERE
ERISRIA ol REBRRE  EHREEZE—
iz | 1828 ZR8 BEREEAR ik
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i T T i T T
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables ENE S REMERE 17
—Trade receivables 98,026 (34,978) 63,048 (1,655) 61,393
— Financial assets not inthe scope  — £ BAE S
of offsetting disclosures 11,138 — 11,138 — 11,138
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables ENE 5 REMER 21
—Trade payables 67,823 (34,978) 32,845 — 32,845
— Financial liabilities not in the — SRARTEEH
scope of offsetting disclosures 33,647 — 33,647 — 33,647
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 SMEREERAAMEE®
(Continued)
()  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ) csREERESREGEESE B
(Continued)
The Company (Continued) ARAT (&)
2012
—E-CF
Related
(Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented the Statement
instruments in offset in the inthe of financial
the statement statement of statement of position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
REBImRE RETBRRE RBBHARRE
ERZeRMIA RigEEeR R BAR  BERE TE—
kx| TEZ2E 258 WER S B AR T8
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
g it it it T i
Financial assets SREE
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 R A fRIE 17
—Trade receivables — EREFRE 102,153 (39,970) 62,183 (1,09) 61,087
— Financial assets not inthe scope  — £RAETEHH
of offsetting disclosures Pt L iE 11,728 — 11,728 — 11,728
Financial liabilities SRR
Trade and other payables ENE S REMRE 21
—Trade payables — ENEZERE 76,886 (39,970) 36,916 = 36,916
— Financial liabilities not in the — SRAETEHH
scope of offsetting disclosures Pt L ilE 24,271 — 24,271 — 24,271

The gross amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities and their
net amounts as presented in the statement of financial position that are
disclosed in the above tables are measured in the statement of financial

position at amortised cost.

The amounts in the above tables that are offset in the statement of

financial position are measured on the same basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
28 Commitments 28 ik
(@) capital commitments outstanding at 31 December @ R=-B—=F+=ZA=+—H XR%E
2013 not provided for in the financial statements were B G 3Rk P IRE 2 R EARRIEES
as follows: mE
The Group The Company
rEE b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F —E-=F —E—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Tx
Contracted for EEES) — 987 — —
Authorised but not EHUEERETA
contracted for 2,421 3,335 2,389 3,335
2,421 4,322 2,389 3,335
(b) At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease (by R=Z2—=F+=HA=+—H  RE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were FAHSESEREMENS 2 RRKEE
payable as follows: HEREBEWOT :
The Group The Company
AEE ¥ NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F —E-=F —E—=
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT Tt Tt +7T
Land and buildings T R EE
Within 1 year —ER 1,715 1,575 — —
After 1 year but within 5years  —&E#&EBRER 3,689 4,569 — —
5,404 6,144 — _

The Group, as a lessee, leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to four years
with an option to renew each lease upon expiry when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

AEEEAEREARBESEENATSHE
EE - REAE ML AH—EmE
BEREEENHARES  ERAEER
M BT - R ESSEET TRERSE
e -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
29 Material related party transactions 29 EXREALEZS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these MGAFIERERBERE RS MEEGHIN » K
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material related SEEFIVATERBEEALRS ¢
party transactions:
(@) Transactions with group companies (@) KERAXEBRERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
<8 Bl () ERERE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —EF—_F —E-=fF —E-—F
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B 5t T T T T
Purchases from A= (0]
— intermediate holding company — FIM42AZ A A 4,851 4,712 (557) (869)
— fellow subsidiaries — RRMB AR 22,447 31,768 (6,562) (844)
— related companies — BE QA 12,780 7,952 (1,896) (2,326)
Sales to &5 (0]
— intermediate holding company — FI M 2EAZ A A 137,319 92,872 5,851 9,313
— fellow subsidiaries — RZRRB AT 286 272 17 1
Royalty payments to XTEREE R (i)
— intermediate holding companies — F /M2 A 7] 129 147 (133) (26)
— a related company — @A 2,129 2,089 (3,243) (2,097)
Engineering design fee payable to Sz {t[R ZHi B A A
a fellow subsidiary TEEFER (ifi) — 321 — (322)
Leasing fee from a fellow EESGEPNG]
subsidiary HEEH (iv) — 3,099 — =
Rental expense payable to S HRRRKEAR
a fellow subsidiary HeEH — 153 — —
Sales proceeds on disposal of HEEMETEE
other tangible assets to FTRIZME R A
fellow subsidiaries WA — 2,835 — —
Sales of raw materials to RRHE TR RK B AR
fellow subsidiary 289 — — =
Interest expense payable to FMEZH
— a related company — BE AT (V) 4,205 5,185 — —
— an intermediate holding — BN R AR
company (Vi) 1,289 — (372) —
Advertising and promotion subsidy Yt MERR A Bl ELS
from an intermediate holding K hisHE E L
company (vii) 32,382 23,240 — =
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRARBIERIN  BRBEFHEH

29
(a)

Material related party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with group companies (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Sales to and purchases from group companies were carried out at terms
mutually agreed by both parties. The terms of the outstanding balances are
set out in note 18.

Related companies are related to the Group as their ultimate holding
company has a significant influence over the Group.

(i) Royalties are payable to intermediate holding companies and a minority
shareholder for the use of certain trademarks pursuant to relevant licensing
agreements.

During the year, the intermediate holding company waived royalties
payable by the Group amounting to $1,003,000 (2012: $1,431,000), which is
not included in the amounts disclosed above.

(iif) Engineering design services were provided by a fellow subsidiary in respect
of a subsidiary’s brewery expansion plans according to an Engineering
Design Services Agreement.

(iv) Leasing fee from a fellow subsidiary represented rental income earned by
leasing out the Group’s waste water discharge pipeline located in the PRC
to a fellow subsidiary.

(V) Interest expense was paid for the bank loan obtained from a related party
in 2012 over which the Group'’s ultimate holding company had significant
influence.

(vi) Interest expense was paid for the loan from an intermediate holding

company in 2013.

(vii) Advertising and promotion subsidy was received from an intermediate
holding company for promotion of certain brands in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

These transactions also constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules, except for the purchases from related companies, which the
directors do not consider to be connected transactions under the Listing
Rules.

29
(a)

BEXREALTRS (@)

SEREERERS (H)
PHfE

@ WEZFRET AR ZIGETET - B
’Fﬁ%z TR EE 18 FIAR ©

RSN R AR E A ER AR ER R
AHAEEEEATE

(ii) R EBAEERAME] - BEA
EREEEN FTHRMERAT R —IEER
RRERMER -

RAFE AN ERAFERAEBR
SRR 1,003,00071(:271?
1,430,0007T) * WS BIWEERFBELNU L
B SRS -

(iii) TIERFTERDRBEIERASRNE
RAZBBEERT A -RAMBARIR
e

(iv) WRIRMELREEERRIE - RRNE
N RIH A E R T B R T KB E B TR
FHOHESWA -

v) R EXMNASXB B BEAR
HERTTER » ANERE M RAEIR A B EZ
PENRBEATED -

(vi) TR -ZEXNNMEHTIEFRN
NRIMEZ

(vii) PEFR M PERL N RIURER ) i 5 K T 05 HE PR A
BETVRRRE T RSP B R BENHEE

RELETRA KWEXS (BEBERRZ
RHEIN) BRERER S - HEARIRG -
ARREEFHRBAMERRRITERER
HER S
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
29 Material related party transactions (Continued) 29 BABEEALETE @
(b)  Other transactions with group companies (b) EEREMBEERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
x| B (fF) FRER
2013 2012 2013 2012
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
—EB-=F —F—— —EB-=fF —E——4F
Frx T Fr Tt
Expenses paid by the Group AAEBEREEAN TR
on behalf of group companies KX &H
— ultimate holding company — EXARPERG A A — 7 — —
— intermediate holding — MR AT
companies 650 311 290 —
— fellow subsidiaries — RRWE AR 412 209 2,544 16
Expenses paid by group HEAEQFRAEE
companies on the Group's KEER
behalf
— Uultimate holding company — BRIZEIRAF] 106 129 (106) (129)
— intermediate holding — MR A A
companies 3,626 2,986 (9,501) (1,559)
— fellow subsidiaries — RZRMBAA — 27 (4) (18)
— arelated company — &R 3,534 1,436 — 829
Ultimate holding company represents San Miguel Corporation, which IR EIER A B AENB AT o HakFE32
was no longer ultimate holding company as at the date of these financial PRt EE - WA BHRERRER - £NERF
statements as disclosed in note 32. B IEmAIERR AR
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) FEEBEAEME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEEFZERABZHE (BIEMTES TR
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8 and the BRAARAREEI N 2 RB R FIMEKE
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows: mETE=FEEX NS 2HIE) T
2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——F
$'000 $'000
FT Tt
Short-term employee benefits 0 HilE B fa A 15,484 13,612
Post-employment benefits BEER (& 12 A1 1,645 1,893
17,129 15,505
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)). “eEst ATEIHM] R (RHIEE6D))

30 Non-adjusting events after the reporting period 30 WREHH&FRAEHEER

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a final REZEBREZTRRRPNE - E—FF15
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 26(b). BT EE 26(0) ©
[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
31 Comparative figures 31 LEB#HF
As a result of the application of amendments to HKAS 1, HKFRS 12, revised REEAREBSFENE % (BF]) - &
HKAS 19 and amendments to HKFRS 7, certain comparative figures have BEEREER S+ 5% BEQLRE
been adjusted to conform to current year's presentation and to provide T (F185]) RBEBHMBHREEAFE 5K
comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time in (85]) » BETHEEFE/EHAE  UFE
2013. Further details of these developments are disclosed in note 1(c). REFZ2H  MR2013FE A BEEL RS
B o THE ME—FSEHBERMEE10) -
32 Immediate and ultimate controlling party 32 HERRHEEERAR
At 31 December 2013, the directors consider the immediate parent R-ZZE—=F+-_A=+—H B=ERAK
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Neptunia Corporation EENBEETATIRERIERAT S B A
Limited and Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. respectively. Neptunia 57 6 F A R A &) & Top Frontier Investment
Corporation Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong while Top Frontier Holdings, Inc. » 323 F| B R A Rl & & Mt
Investment Holdings, Inc. is incorporated in the Republic of the Philippines. FXAZ i Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. produces financial statements BI) 72 JF 12 & L A1 B 5 i 5% 32 » Top Frontier
available for public use. Investment Holdings, Inc. #& &8 15 #R X T2
RIEHA o
33 Possible impact of amendments, new standards 33 EBHEGERRBE_ZEZ—=%+=

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a few amendments and a new standard which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

1 January 2014

Amendments to HKAS 36, Impairment of assets
— Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

1 January 2014

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

R=+—HLFEERMHENE
B - MR R RETRERNE

BERBMBHRETIER  FESHMAEE
EMEZEREE T —=FT-A=1+—H
IFEEMARERNEINETT R AR LR
A 5 R W AR A2 TSR £ -
Hep o ATEAKEAR

RTH B

ZEREBZ

SEHBER

BB REERZE 3255 —Z—E

(B [£@MITA - —A—H
23— 2@mEEK

TEBEEHH]
BRI 3657 —T—E
[BERE] — FomEE —A—H

AU Bl AR 2 L FE

AEEEFAEZFERNET N &R EREZ
FE DEARL  AEER/EANZFE
AT AREEGRAMBREBRERNTE
EVRTREIETR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT BN H RS

Independent Auditor’s report to the shareholders of
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of San Miguel
Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 62 to 141, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

[
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2013 and of the Group'’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

7 February 2014
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Our Company continues
to endeavor not just

to be commercially
successful, but also to
be socially responsible
in the way we do
business.




EEENDEHARAT —B-=FFH

GROUP PROPERTIES E£EY)%

Details of the major property of the Group are as follow: AEBZ EESYEFBOT -

Existing use Term of lease

REERAR ik

Major property held for investment
BERENEIEME

Portions of Dangerous Goods Store, Warehouse rental Medium-term
two Car Parking Spaces
on the Ground Floor,
the whole of Mezzanine Floor,
the whole of Second Floor,
the whole of third Floor,
a portion of Fourth and Fifth Floor,
the whole of Sixth Floor
and a portion of Roof Floor,
San Miguel Industrial Building
Nos. 9-11 Shing Wan Road,
Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong

BoERmRE W TMERERA - ERME T H
MERE —B2E ZB2E-
RO R ED B

NERE  REHKRE
EBYDBAEKER 9-1158
ENTEKRE
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY EEEHBE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABEERTE
The Group
TEH
2013 2012 201 2010 2009
—B-=f -—T--% —T——F -T-TF —TTHEF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr T FT
(restated)
(BE5)
Results #i5
Turnover EEE 687,093 686,362 683,879 589,322 696,824
Profit/(l0ss) before taxation BHAEF, (EE) 22,283 230,009 (69,027) (782,509) (345,324)
Income tax credit/(charge) FER A/ () 3,541 (3,033) 389 8,522 2,272
Profit/(loss) for the year FERH,/ (EBE) 25,824 226,976 (68,638) (773,987) (343,052)
Attributable to: FE(HEAT :
— Equity shareholders — RREIERFEA
of the Company 26,010 237,655 (53,464) (736,984) (334,856)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (186) (10,679) (15,174) (37,003) (8,196)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEAT,/ (EB) 25,824 226,976 (68,638) (773,987) (343,052)
Earnings/(l0ss) per share SRET/ (E8)
— Basic (cents) — EA () 7 64 (14) (197) (90)
Cash dividends per share (cents) R\ SRS (L) — = — — —
Assets and liabilities BEHAEE
Fixed assets FBE 635,893 654,678 389,671 398,011 1,087,198
Intangible assets B EE 5,188 5,426 5,709 5,678 17,122
Other tangible assets Hit G EE - — — — 18,565
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/ (AE) FE 114,032 34,953 (73,729) 9,988 77,370
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEAR 755,113 695,057 321,651 413,677 1,200,255
Retirement benefit liabilities RINENERE (17,660) (34,534) (20,975) (18,143) (18,089)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEEE (2,938) (3,595) (3,453) (4,060) (12,682)
Bank loan RITER — (145,092) — — —
Loan from an intermediate R R AR ZER
holding company (190,837) — — — —
Net assets BEFE 543,678 511,836 297,223 391,474 1,169,484
Capital and reserves RAR # &
Share capital %N 186,785 186,785 186,785 186,785 186,785
Reserves s 386,636 353,665 128,366 205,485 945,805
Total equity attributable to equity AR FMEZEE A
shareholders of the Company fEfEHERE 573,421 540,450 315,151 392,270 1,132,590
Non-controlling interests JEPERT R (29,743) (28,614) (17,928) (796) 36,894
Total equity ERBE 543,678 511,836 297,223 391,474 1,169,484
Notes to the five year summary: hEFR B MEME
In order to comply with the amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial & 7 F& & B SEHERE 275 [454 KBS BBRE] - ﬁ"
statements, in 2010, the Group changed its accounting policy for the allocation of losses to = ZT—Z 4 - AEENEHEHOREE TIEERERS 2
non-controlling interests. This change has been applied prospectively as from the year ended BR - WM EREE T —TFF+_A=1+—H ¢¢FE§

31 December 2010 and net assets and losses for earlier periods have not been restated.

In order to comply with the revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits, in 2013, the Group changed
its accounting policy for its defined benefit retirement plan. This change has been applied
retrospectively for the year ended 31 December 2012 but not for the preceding years as the

directors consider that the effect is not material to those years.
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